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COMPANIES HOUSE 2e/12/885
A copy of this document, which comprises an exempt listing document relating to Aspen Communications
PLC ("the Company™) prepared in accordance with the listing rules made under Section 142 of the Financial
Services Act 1986, has been delivered to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales for registration.

The directors of the Company, whose names appear on page 2 of this document ("the Directors"), accept
responsibility for the information contained in this document and in the appended documents. To the best
of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the

case), such information is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import
of such information.

Application has been made to the London Stock Exchange Limited ("“the London Stock Exchange") for the
whole of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company, currently traded on the Unlisted Securities Market,
to be admitted to the Official List of the London Stock Exchange ("the Official List"). It is expected that

admission to the Official List will become effective and that dealings in the ordinary share capital of the
Company will commence on 23 December 1996.

ASPEN COMMUNICATIONS PLC e

(Incorporated and registered in England under the Companies Act 1948
with registered number 663645)

introduction to the Official List
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1. The Directors
The Directors of the Company are:

Henry Paul John Meakin (Executive Chairman)

Jain Keatings Burns (Chief Executive)

Edward Anthony Robertson Balding (Executive Director)
Mark Andrew Rogers (Finance Director)

Ian Vinall (Executive Director)

Peter John Maurice Threlfall (Non-executive Director)
James Douglas Salmon OBE (Non-executive Director)

all of Aspen House, Thomas Street, Cirencester, Gloucestershire GL7 2AX.
2.  Financial Statements

Following the appointment of the Company's new Chief Executive, Iain Burns, in May this year, the Directors
decided to change the Company's auditors. Coopers & Lybrand were duly appointed in place of KPMG Audit
Plc and, based on the initial stages of the 1996 audit, have drawn the attention of the Directors to certain
matters. These concern the accounting treatment of (i) a transaction (“the Lease”) entered into in September
1989 between the Company and Hambros Leasing Limited under which the Company sold and leased back
from Hambros Leasing Limited the Company’s interest in its London office in Cosway Strest London NW1
("the Property") and (ii) certain bonuses and other items. '

These matters, including their impact on the Company's financial statements for the year ending 31 December
1996, are more fully described in the circular to the Company’s shareholders dated 20 December 1996, a copy
of which is appended to this document. The following tables (which are reproduced from the circular) detail
the principal features in the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings
(“the Group") for the three years ended 31 December 1995 as previously reported and the restated figures
reflecting the appropriate accounting treatment.



2.1  Summary of financial impact of adjustments

Consolidated profit and loss acconnt 1993 1993 1994 1994 1995 1995
£'000 £'000 £'900 £'000 £'000 £'000
As reported Adjnsted  Asreported Adjusted  Asreported Adjusted

Operating profit before exceptional items 1,630 2,046 2,691 2,970 4,180 4,356
Exceptional items (1,123) 1,123) 165 165 34 34
Operating profit after exceptional items 507 923 2,856 3,135 4214 4,390
Net interest payable (350) (1,012) (354) (1,056) @75) (1,208)
Profit /(loss) on ordinary activities before 157 39 2,502 2,079 3,739 3,182
taxation
Taxation (511) 430 878) (738) (1,312) (1,128)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation (354) (519) 1,624 1,341 2427 2,054
Minority interests ) @ (53) (53) 55 55
Profit/(loss) for the financial year (356) (521) 1,571 1,288 2,482 2,109
Dividends (666) (666) (748) (748) 918) (918)
Profit/(loss) retained for the year (1,022) 1,187 823 540 1,564 1,191
(Loss)/eamings per share (pence) @6p (38 11.5p 9.5p 17.5p 14.9p
Consolidated net assets 1993 1993 1994 1994 1995 1995
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Asreported  Adjusted  Asreported  Adjusted  Asreported  Adjusted
Fixed assets 10,373 11,609 11,983 13,176 17,166 18316
Current assets 23,670 23,610 27,725 27,644 33,025 32,944
Current liabilities (19,958)  (20,024) (25,128)  (25321) (32,129)  (32,642)
Net current liabilities 3,712 3,586 2,597 2323 896 302
Creditors falling due after more than one year (1,859 (7,248) (1,038) (6,659) (3372) (9,187
Provisions for liabilities and charges, deferred (976) (647) (961) (492) (1,009) (356)
income and minorities
Net assets 11,250 7,300 12,581 8,348 13,681 9,075




Cas.h flow statement 1993 1993 1994 1994 1995 1995
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As reported Adjusted  Asreported Adjusted  Asreported  Adjusted

Net cash inflow from operating activities 3,157 3,555 6,814 7,263 5313 5852
Retums on investments and servicing of finance (1,053) (1451 (1,100)  (1,549) (1349)  (1,888)
Taxation paid (1,155)  (1,155) (289) (289) (962) (962)
Investing activities (1,579) (1,579 (3335) (3335 (7068) (7,068
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing (630) (630) 2,090 2,090 4,066)  (4,066)
activities

Financing 1,306 1,306 (1,618)  (1,618) 3,444 3,444
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 676 676 472 a7 (622) (622)

2.2 London office lease

The Lease has been accounted for by the Company as an operating lease up to and including the Company’s
interim statement published on 23 September 1996. In the light of advice received from Coopers & Lybrand,
the Directors have concluded that the Lease should be accounted for in the Company’s financial statements
as a finance lease, not an operating lease.

The impact of treating the Lease as a finance lease is that the depreciated fair value of the asset, after
provision for permanent diminution in value, should be shown as a fixed asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, net of capital repayments, should be shown as a liability. The profit and loss
account should contain a charge for depreciation of the asset, charged in arriving at operating profit, and a
finance cost attributable to the finance lease included in net interest.

For the purposes of determining the restated balances the Directors consider that the depreciated fair value
of the Property, including the fixtures and fittings already shown in fixed assets and after provision for
permanent diminution in value at 31 December 1992, is £2.1 million. The net addition to fixed assets at that
date is £1.2 million.

The adjustments required are set out below.

Consolidated profit and loss account 1993 1994 1995
£000 £'000 £000

Reported operating profit before exceptional ifems

Operating lease rentals 398 449 539
Depreciation 43 (43) 43
Net adjustment to operating profit before exceptional items 355 406 496
Net interest - finance lease interest (662) (702) (733)
Taxation impact in year 101 98 78




Consolidated net assets 1993 1994 1995

£000 £'000 £000
Fixed assets - property 1,236 1,193 1,150
Prepayments (60) (81 (81}
Creditors f#.lling due after more than one year - finance lease (5,389) (5,621) (5,815)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - deferred taxation 307 403 483
Cash flow statement 1993 1954 1995

£'000 £'000 £'000
Net cash inflow from operating activities - operating lease payment 398 449 539
}letums on investments and servicing of finance - interest on finance (398) (449) (539)

eases

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents NIL NIL NIL

2.3 Bonus accruals
Performance related bonuses in respect of a financial year are paid in the following year. The Group has

previously accounted for certain bonuses on a cash basis. The correct treatment is to account for bonuses on
an accruals basis and to charge the profit and loss account in the year they are earned.

The adjustments required are set out below.

Consolidated profit and loss account 1993 1994 1995

£000 £'000 £000
Opetating profit before exceptional items - bonuses 61 (127 (320)
Taxation impact in year (20) 42 106
Consolidated net assets 1993 1994 1995

£000 £'000 £'000
Current liabilities - other creditors {66) (193) (513)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - deferred taxation 22 64 170

2.4  Company balance sheet

The Company balance sheet adjustments are similar to those for the consolidated balance sheet in respect of
the Lease and are not material in respect of the bonuses.
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4.

Indebtedness

At the close of business on 6 December 1996, the Group had the following borrowings:

£000

Secured bank loans 3,000
Secured bank overdrafts 2,010
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 9,588
14,598

On the same date the Group had the following contingent liabilities:

(a) Additional consideration may be due to the vendor of Aspen Veenhuizen Direct BV, a
company acquired in 1992. The vendor, who left the company at the beginning of 1993, is
claiming payment of the maximum sum of £380,000 plus additional damages of
£1,170,000. The Directors do not believe that the maximum sum is payable or that
damages are due and intend to defend the claim vigorously.

(b) Additional consideration may also be due to the vendors of the minority shareholding in
Spafax Airline Network Limited which was acquired during 1995. The maximum
additional consideration which may become payable is £1,550,000 based on profits earned
by the company in the year ended 31 December 1995 and the year ending 31 December
1996 and assuming that an option is exercised by the vendors to extend the earn-out period
to include the year ending 31 December 1997.

Save as disclosed herein and apart from intra-Group indebtedness, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiary undertakings had outstanding at the close of business on 6 December 1996 any
borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of borrowings, including loan capital outstanding or created
but unissued, bank overdrafts, liabilities under acceptances (other than normal trade bills) or
acceptance credits, mortgages, charges, obligations under finance leases, hire purchase commitments
or guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

On the same date the Group had cash and bank balances of £3,280,000, including £1,943,000
relating to an insurance broking account maintained by a subsidiary undertaking.

Amounts in other currencies have been translated into Sterling at the appropriate rate of exchange
ruling at the close of business on 6 December 1996.

Working capital

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account bank and other facilities, the Group has sufficient
working capital for its present requirements.

5.

Significant changes

Save for the disposal of the consumer magazines of Aspen Litharne Publishing Limited announced on
6 November 1996, the matters referred to in the interim statement of the Group published on 23 September
1996 and those described in this document and in the circular to the Company’s sharcholders dated 20



December 1996 which is appended to this document, there has been no significant change in the financial or
trading position of the Group since 30 June 1996, the end of the period for which the interim statement was
published.

6.

Summary of rights attaching to shares

The Articles of Association of the Company (“the Articles") contain provisions to the following effect:

6.1

6.2

Share capital

6.1.1  The authorised share capital of the Company is £1,000,000 divided into 20,000,000
ordinary shares of 5p each. As at the date hereof, the issued share capital of the Company
is £773,786 comprising 15,475,720 ordinary shares of 5p each.

6.1.2  The Company may from time to time by ordinary resolution:

6.1.2.1 consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger or
smaller amount that its existing shares; or

6.1.2.2 subject to law, sub-divide its shares, or any of them, into shares of smaller
amount and the resolution may determine that as between the shares resulting
from the sub-division any of them may have any preference or advantage as
regards dividend, capital, voting or otherwise over, or may be given such deferred
rights or be subject to such restrictions when compared with, the others or any
other of such shares; or

6.1.2.3  cancel shares which at the date of the passing of the resolution have not been
taken or agreed to be taken by any person and diminish the amount of its share
capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled.

6.1.3  Subject to law, the Company may from time to time by special resolution reduce its share
capital, any capital redemption reserve fund and any share premium account in any way.

Share Rights

Although the Company has power to allot shares in the capital of the Company with such preferred,
deferred, qualified or other special rights, and subject to such conditions or restrictions, as to
dividend, capital, voting or otherwise as the Articles authorise, at present the Company has only one
class of shares, namely ordinary shares of 5p each. Such ordinary shares each give the right to
receive notice of and attend general meetings of the Company, to receive dividends and to receive
a share of any surplus assets on a distribution on the winding-up of the Company. Subject to any
special terms as to voting upon which any shares may for the time being be held and subject to
disenfranchisement in the event of non-compliance with a notice under Section 212 of the Companies
Act 1985, upon a show of hands every member present in person or by proxy shall have one vote
and upon a poll every member present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for every share held
by him. However, subject to the provisions of the Articles, no member shall be entitled to vote on
any question either personally or by proxy unless he has paid everything for the time being due from
him and payable to the Company in respect of his shares.



6.3

6.4

6.5

Distribution of assets on winding-up

If the Company shall be wound up the liquidator may, with the sanction of an extraordinary
resolution and any other sanction required by law, divide among the members in specie or kind the
whole or any part of the assets of the Company (whether they shall consist of property of the same
kind or not) and may, for such purpose, set such values as he deems fair upon any property to be
divided as aforesaid and may (subject to any special rights attached to any shares or the terms of
issue thereof) determine how such division shall be carried out as between the members or different
classes of members. He may with like sanction vest the whole or any part of the assets of the
Company upon such trusts for the benefit of the members as the liquidator shall think fit and if
thought expedient any such division may be otherwise than in accordance with the legal rights of the
members and in particular any class may be given preferential or special rights or may be excluded
altogether or in part, but in case any division, otherwise than in accordance with the legal rights of
the members, shall be determined on, any contributory who would be prejudiced thereby shall have
a right to dissent and ancillary rights, as if such determination were by special resolution passed
pursuant to Section 110 of the Insolvency Act 1986, and in any event no member shall be compelled
to accept any shares in respect of which there is a liability.

Variation of class rights

Subject to law, all or any of the special rights, privileges or conditions attached to any class of shares
forming part of the capital of the Company may from time to time be varied, modified or abrogated
in any manner with the consent in writing of the holders of three-fourths in nominal value of the
issued shares of the class or with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution passed at a separate
meeting of the holders of the shares of that class. The relevant provisions of the Articles shall apply
to the variation, modification or abrogation of the special rights, privileges or conditions attached
to some only of the shares of any class as if the shares concerned and the remaining shares of such
class formed separate classes and to any scheme for the distribution (though not in accordance with
legal rights) of assets in money or in kind in or before liquidation, or to any contract for the sale or
disposal of the whole or any part of the Company's property or business determining the way in
which as between the several classes of shareholders the purchase consideration shall be distributed,
and generally to any alteration, contract, compromise or arrangement which the persons voting
thereon could, if sui juris and holding all the shares of the class, consent to or enter into, and such
resolution shall be binding upon all holders of shares of the class.

Dividends

6.5.1 Subject to the rights or privileges for the time being attached to any shares in the capital of
the Company, the profits of the Company which it shall from time to time be determined to
distribute by way of dividend are to be paid in proportion to the amounts paid up on shares
otherwise than in advance of calls. Dividends are to be apportioned and paid pro rata (as
nearly as may be) according to the amounts paid up on shares during any portion or portions
of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid, except that if any share is issued on
terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as if paid up (in whole or in part) as from a
particular date (either past or future) such share shall rank for dividend accordingly.
Dividends may be declared and paid in Sterling or in any other currency.

6.52 The Company in general meeting may declare dividends no larger than those recommended
by the Directors. No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of profits available for the
purpose in accordance with company law, or otherwise other than in accordance with
company law.



6.5.3

6.5.4

6.3.5

6.5.6

6.5.7

The Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Articles and the law, pay interim
dividends.

On the recommendation of the Directors, the Company may in general meeting direct
payment of a dividend wholly or in part by the distribution of specific assets, including paid
up shares, debentures or debenture stock of any other company. Where any difficulty arises
in regard to the distribution the Directors may settle the same as they think expedient.

Any dividend unclaimed after a period of twelve years from the date of declaration of such
dividend or (if later) the date on which such dividend became payable shall be forfeited and
shall revert to the Company. All unclaimed dividends may be invested or otherwise made
use of by the Directors for the benefit of the Company until claimed. No such unclaimed
dividend or other monies shall bear interest as against the Company.

The Directors may, with the sanction of an ordinary resolution of the Company, offer the
holders of ordinary shares in the Company the right to elect to receive additional ordinary
shares in the Company, credited as fully paid, instead of cash in respect of all or part of any
dividend payable in respect of all or part of their holding of such ordinary shares and
(subject as provided in the Articles) upon such terms and conditions and in such manner as
may be specified in such ordinary resolution and otherwise as the Directors may determine.
Any such resolution may specify a particular dividend and/or all or any dividends (or any
part of such dividends) declared or paid within a specified period, but no such period may
end later than the beginning of the Annual General Meeting next following the date on
which such ordinary resolution is passed.

A holder of ordinary shares who elects to receive additional ordinary shares in the Company
pursuant to these provisions of the Articles shall be entitled to receive such whole number
of additional ordinary shares as is as nearly as possible equal in value (calculated by
reference to the average of the middle market quotations for an ordinary share in the
Company on the London Stock Exchange, as derived from the Daily Official List, on the
five consecutive dealing days beginning on the day when the issued ordinary shares in the
Company are first quoted "ex" the relevant dividend) to (but not in excess of) the cash
amount (disregarding any tax credit) that such holder would otherwise have received by way
of dividend.

Following an election by holders of ordinary shares in accordance with these provisions of
the Articles, in lieu of the relevant dividend (or the relevant part thereof) the Directors shall
capitalise out of any undivided profits of the Company not required for paying any
preferential dividend (whether or not they are available for distribution) or out of any sum
standing to the credit of the Company's share premium account or capital reserves as the
Directors may determine a sum equal to the aggregate nominal value of the number of
additional ordinary shares required to be allotted to the holders of ordinary shares who have
made such election and shall apply such sum in paying up in full the appropriate number of
additional ordinary shares and shall allot and distribute such ordinary shares amongst the
holders concerned (subject to any right of the Directors under the Articles to retain any
dividend or other monies payable on or in respect of the shares of a particular member).

The Articles empower the Directors to withhold the payment of dividends to a member in
the event of non-compliance with a notice under Section 212 of the Companies Act 1985
provided that the shares specified in such notice represent at least 0.25 per cent of the shares
of the class to which such shares belong in issue on the date of such notice.




6.6

7.1

72

8.

Transferability of shares

Subject to the restrictions contained in the Articles, any member may transfer all or any of his shares
by a transfer in any usual or common form or any other form approved by the Directors, but shall
be deemed to remain the holder of the shares transferred until the name of the transferee is entered
into the register in respect thereof. The Directors may in their absolute discretion and without
assigning any reason therefor, refuse to register a transfer to a person of whom they do not approve
of a share which is not fully paid, a transfer in favour of more than four persons jointly or a transfer
of a share which is not fully paid on which the Company has a lien. Not more than one class of
shares may be transferred by one instrument of transfer and it must be lodged at the offices of the
registrars of the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) and such other evidence
as the Directors may reasonably require to prove the title of the transferor. Subject to Section 358
of the Companies Act 1985, the registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for
such periods as the Directors may from time to time determine, provided that the register shall not
be closed for more than thirty days in any year.

The Articles empower the Directors to refuse to register a transfer which does not appear to them
to be a transfer pursuant to an arm's length sale (as defined in the Axticles) and which relates to
shares held by a member who has failed to comply with a notice under Section 212 of the Compantes
Act 1985 provided that the shares specified in such notice represent at least 0.25 per cent of the
shares of the class to which such shares belong in issue on the date of such notice.

Other matters

On 13 December 1996, H.P.J. Meakin, the Executive Chairman, transferred by way of gift a total
of 150,000 ordinary shares of 5p each in the Company to a trust in favour of two of his children K.L.
Meakin and O.J. Meakin, both of whom are over 18 years of age. This was to take advantage of
certain tax benefits which apply to shares which are traded on the Unlisted Securities Market.

In connection with the provision by Quaestus Management Corporation ("Quaestus") of certain
management consultancy services to the Company, on 18 December 1996 the Company granted
Quaestus an option, exercisable at any time within five years, to subscribe for 75,000 ordinary shares
of 5p each in the Company at an exercise price of 152p per share.

Documents for inspection

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company
at Aspen House, Thomas Street, Cirencester, Gloucestershire, GL7 2AX and at the offices of Phoenix
Securities Limited, 1 Laurence Pountney Hill, London EC4R 0EU during normal business hours on any
weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excepted) from the date of this document up to and including 6
January 1996:

8.1 the Memorandum and Articles of Associatton of the Company;

8.2 the consolidated audited statutory accounts of the Company for the two financial periods
ended 31 December 1995; and

8.3 a copy of this document.

10



9. Appendices

Copies of the following documents are attached as appendices to this document:
9.1 the circular to the Company’s shareholders dated 20 December 1996;
92 the Company's interim statement of results to 30 June 1996,
9.3 the circular to the Company's shareholders dated 29 April 1996; and

94 the latest three years' published consolidated annual accounts of the Company.

20 December 1996
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If you have sold or transferred all of your ordinary shares in Aspen Communications PLC, please
send this document to the purchaser or the transferee or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent
through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

Aspen Communications PL.C
(Incorporated in England and Wales with Registered No. 663643)

Directors ' _ Registered Office
B.P.J. Meakin — Executive Chairman Aspen House,
LK. Bumns — Chief Executive Thomas Street,
M.A. Rogers — Finance Director Cirencester,
E.A.R. Balding Gloucestershire,
I. Vinali GL7 2AX

P.J.M. Threlfall (non Executive)
J.D. Salmon OBE (non Executive)

Dear Shareholder, 20 December, 1996

Introduction

On Wednesday 18 December 1996, your Board announced that application has been made for the
whole of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital to be admitted to the Official List of the London
Stock Exchange. Dealings in the Company’s shares are expected to commence on the Official List on
Monday, 23 December 1996. The Company’s shares are currently traded on the Unlisted Securities
Market, which will close on 31 December 1996.

At the same time your Board announced that, following the appointment of new auditors, it had been
advised to apply a different accounting treatment to certain items in the Company’s audited accounts. 1
am now writing to explain to you the background to this and its effect on the Company’s financial
statements for the three years ended 31 December 1995 and for the year ending 31 December 1996.

Change of aunditors

Following the appointment of our new Chief Executive, Iain Burns, in May this year, the Board decided
to change the Company’s auditors. Coopers & Lybrand were duly appointed in place of KPMG Audit
Plc and, based on the initial stages of the 1996 audit, have drawn the attention of the Board to the
matters set out in the following paragraphs.

London office lease

In September 1989, the Company entered into a sale and leaseback transaction with Hambros Leasing
Limited (“Hambros™), under which the Company sold its interest in its London office in Cosway
Street, London NW1 (the “Property™) to Hambros for £4.5 million and simultaneously entered into a
30 year lease agreement with Hambros (the “Lease™). The Lease has been accounted for by the
Company as an operating lease up to and including the Company’s half-year interim statement
published on 23 September 1996.

in the light of advice received from Coopers & Lybrand, your Board has concluded that the Lease
should be accounted for in the Company’s financial staternents as a finance lease, not an operating
lease. This requires the Property, the liabilities under the Lease and the related tax effects to be
included in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet. This will be treated as a prior year adjustment in
the 1996 financial statements.




As a result, in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 1995, the Property is now included at
its estimated value of £2 million, £0.9 million of leasehold improvements already capitalised has been
written off and a finance lease creditor of £5.8 million has been set up. This leads to a reduction in net
assets of £4.3 million after adjustment for deferred tax. Profit before taxation for the year ended
31 December 1995 is reduced by £237,000. The impact on the profit for 1996 will be similar.

The effects of these adjustments on the last three years’ financial statements are set out in the Appendix
to this letter.

Under the terms of the Lease, on the occurrence of certain events, the Company can become obliged to
repurchase the Property from Hambros. The Board understands that Hambros may now consider that
such an event has occurred. The legal position is unclear. To avoid prolonged dispute and also
recognising that alternative and cheaper financing facilities are now in place, a settlement has been
agreed in principle with Hambros which (including costs) is in line with the liability in the balance
sheet of £5.8 million. The Board will thus terminate the Lease and ownership of the Property will revert
to the Company. This will release the Company from certain covenants and will have an ongoing
beneficial effect on profit before tax of the order of £0.25 million per annum due to reduced financing
costs. -

Other items

Certain bonuses which were accounted for on a cash basis in the Company’s audited financial
statements for the three years ended 31 December 1995 should have been accounted for on an accruals
basis. The effect of this is set out in the Appendix to this letter.

In addition, a review of the Group’s consolidated balance sheet has identified a number of items for
which the Board now believes a more conservative accounting treatment is appropriate. The net effect
of these items will be to reduce the Group’s consolidated profit before tax for the financial year ending
31 December 1996 by approximately £0.5 million.

In the Appendix to this letter you will find a table which sets out the principal figures in the Company’s
audited consolidated financial statements for the three years ended 31 December 1995 as previously
reported together with restated figures reflecting the relevant matters referred to above. The restated
consolidated profit before taxation for the year ended 31 December 1995 is £3.18 million, a reduction
of £0.56 million from that reported, and the restated consolidated net assets as at 31 December 1995 are
£9.08 million, a reduction of £4.61 million. The restated earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 1995 is 14.9p, a reduction of 2.6p.

New bank facilities

The matters referred to above have been discussed with the Company’s principal bankers, who have
each waived any technical breach of their current facilities which may result. In addition they have each
confirmed new comumitted, longer term and increased facilities to support the future development of the
Group.

Costs

The Company has incurred substantial professional fees in connection with the admission of its shares
to the Official List of the London Stock Exchange and arising from the matters referred to in this
document. These costs are expected to amount to approximately £300,000 and will impact on the
Group’s consolidated profit and loss account for the year ending 31 December 1996.



Significant change

Save for the disposal of the consumer magazines of Aspen Litharne Publishing Limited announced on
6 November 1996, the matters referred to in the interim statement of the Group published on
23 September 1996 and those described in this document, there has been no significant change in the
financial or trading position of the Group since 30 June 1996, the end of the period for which the
interim statement was published.

Exempt Listing Document

In connection with the admission of the Company’s ordinary share capital to the Official List of the
London Stock Exchange, in accordance with Stock Exchange requirements the Company expects to
publish an Exempt Listing Document on 23 December 1996. Copies of the Exempt Listing Document
will be available from the Company Announcements Office of the London Stock Exchange, Capel
Court entrance, off Bartholomew Lane, London EC2 (for collection only) from 23 December 1996 up
to and including 27 December 1996 (public holidays excepted) and from Phoenix Securities Limited,
I Laurence Pountney Hill, London EC4R 0EU and from the Company’s registered office at the address
set out above from 23 December 1996 up to and including 6 January 1997 (Saturdays and public
holidays excepted).

Yours faithfully

Henry Meakin,

Chairman




APPENDIX

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

The tables set out below detail the principal figures in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group as previously reported and the restated figures reflecting the appropriate accounting treatment for
the matters referred to in the Chairman’s letter.

1. Summary of financial impact of adjustments

Consolidated profit and loss 1993 1993 1994 1994 1995 1995
account £7000 £000 £2000 £2000 £1000 £2000
As reported Adjusted As reported Adjusted As reported Adjusted
Operating profit before exceptional items 1,630 2,046 2,691 2,970 4,180 4,356
Exceptional items (1,123) (1,123) 165 165 34 34
Operating profit after exceptional items 507 923 2,856 3,135 4,214 4,390
Net interest payable (350) (1,012) (354) (1,056} (475) (1,208)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before
taxation 157 (1Y) 2,502 2,079 3,739 3,182
Taxation (511) (430) (878) (738) (1,312) {1,128)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities after
taxation (354) (519} 1,624 1,341 2,427 2,054
Minority interests 2) @ (53) (53) 35 55
Profit/(loss) for the financial year (356) (521) 1,571 1,288 2,482 2,109
Dividends (666) (666) {748) (748) (918) (918)
Profit/(loss) retained for the year (1,022) (1,187} 823 540 1,564 1,191
{Loss)/earnings per share (pence) (2.6)p 3.8y 11.5p 9.5p 17.5p 14.9p
Consolidated net assets 1993 1993 1994 1994 1995 1995
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
As reported Adjusted As reported Adjusted As reported Adjusted
Fixed assets 10,373 11,609 11,983 13,176 17,166 18,316
Current assets 23,670 23,610 27,725 27,644 33,025 32,944
Current liabilities (19,958) (20,024) (25,128) (25,321} (32,129} (32,642)
Net current liabilities 3,712 3,586 2,597 2,323 896 302
Creditors falling due after more than one
year (1,859) (7,248) (1,038) {6,659) (3,372) (9,187)
Provisions for liabilities and charges,
deferred income and minorities (976) (647) (961) (492) (1,009) (356}
Net assets 11,250 7,300 12,581 8,348 13,681 9,075




Cash flow statement 1993 1993 1994 1994 1995 1995
£2000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000

As reported Adjusted As reported Adjusted As reported Adjusted

Net cash inflow from operating activities 3,157 3,555 6,814 7,263 5,313 5,852

Returns on investments and servicing of

finance (1,053) (1,451) (1,100} (1,549) (1,349) (1,888)

Taxation paid (1,155) (1,155) (289) (289) (962) (962)

Investing activities (1,579} (1,579) (3,335} (3,335) (7.068) (7,068)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing .

activities ' (630) (630) 2,090 2,090 {(4,066) {4,066)

Financing o 1,306 1,306 (1,618) (1,618) 3,444 3,444

Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents 676 676 472 472 (622) (622)

2. London office lease

The impact of treating the Lease as a finance lease is that the depreciated fair value of the asset, after
provision for permanent diminution in value, should be shown as a fixed asset and the present value of
the minimum lease payments, net of capital repayments, should be shown as a liability. The profit and
loss account should contain a charge for depreciation of the asset, charged in arriving at operating
profit, and a finance cost attributable to the finance lease included in net interest.

For the purposes of determining the restated balances the Board considers that the depreciated fair
value of the Property, including the fixtures and fittings already shown in fixed assets and after
provision for permanent diminution in value at 31 December 1992, is £2.1 million. The net addition to

fixed assets at that date is £1.2 million.

The adjustments required are set out below.

Consolidated profit and loss account 1993 1994 1995
£2000 £000 £7000
Reported operating profit before exceptional items
Operating lease rentals 398 449 539
Depreciation (43) (43) (43)
Net adjustment to operating profit before exceptional items 355 406 496
Net interest — finance }ease interest {662) (702) (733)
Taxation impact in year 101 o8 78
Consolidated net assets 1993 1994 1995
£000 £000 £2600
Fixed assets — property 1,236 1,193 1,150
Prepayments (60} (81) 8
Creditors falling due after more than one year — finance lease (5,389) (5,621) (5,815)
Provisions for liabilities and charges — deferred taxation 307 405 483




Cash flow statement 1993 1994 1995
£2000 £000 £000

Net cash inflow from operating activities — operating lease

payment 398 449 539

Returns on investments and servicing of finance — interest on

finance leases (398) (449) (539)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents NIL NIL NiL

3. Bonus accruals

Performance related bonuses in respect of a financial year are paid in the following year. The Group has
previously accounted for certain bonuses on a cash basis. The correct treatment is to account for
bonuses on an accruals basis and to charge the profit and loss account in the year they are earned.

The adjustments required are set out below.

Consolidated profit and loss account 1993 1994 1995
£000 £'000 £2000
Operating profit before exceptional items — bonuses 61 (127 (320)
Taxation impact in year (20) 42 106
Consolidated net assets 1993 1994 1995
£000 £2000 £1000
Current liabilities — other creditors (66) (193) (513)
Provisions for liabilities and charges — deferred taxation 22 64 170
4. Company balance sheet
The Company balance sheet adjustments are similar to those for the consolidated balance sheet in

respect of the Lease and are not material in respect of the bonuses.
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THIS DOCUMENT 15 IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

I YOU ARE IN ANY DOUBT AS TO THE ACTEON YOU SHOULD TAKE, YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR STOCK B8ROKER OR OTHER INDE-
PENDENT FINANCIAL ADVISER AUTHORISED PURSUANT TGO THE FINANCIAL SERVICES ACT 1986 IMMEDIATELY.

IF YOU HAVE SOLD OR TRANSFERRED ALL OF YOUR ORDINARY SHARES IN ASPEN COMMUNICATIONS PLC PLEASE FORWARD THIS
DOCUMENT AND THE ACCOMPANYING FORM OF PROXY AT ONCE TO THE PURCHASER OR TO THE AGENT THROUGH WHOM THE
SALE OR TRANSFER WAS EFFECTED, FOR TRANSMISSION TO THE PURCHASER OR TRANSFEREE.

ASPEN

COMMUDNICATIONS PLC

(Registered in England No. 663645}

DIRECTORS: REGISTERED OFFICE:
H.P.). Meakin (Chairman) Aspen House
N.F. Worgan (Chief Executive) Thomas Street
£.A.R. Balding Cirencester
M.A. Rogers (Finance Director} Gloucestershire
L Vinall GL7 2AX
P.J.M. Threlfall {Non-Executive)

J.D. Salmen, OBE (Non-Executive) 29th April 1996

To the Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 1996

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is to be held on 29th May 1996 and you will see from the notice
convening the meeting (which is set out on pages 43 and 44 of the Report and Accounts which this circular
accompanies) that there are items of special business. The purpose of this letter is to explain certain of the
proposals to be considered at the meeting as special business and the action that shareholders should take and
also to give formal notice of the intention to pass a resolution of the directors relating to the CREST system.

PROPOSAL TO ADOPT NEW ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Resolution number 9 is a resolution for the adoption of new Articles of Association. The Company's existing
Articles of Association were adopted in April 1985 and have not been amended since then. Since then, con-
siderable changes have been made to the legislation governing companies, in particular the consolidating
Compantes Act of 1985 and the changes introduced by the Companies Act 1989. There have also been sub-
stantial changes in the Rules of the London Stock Exchange and in the practice of listed companies generally.

The directors therefore consider that it is now appropriate to update the Company’s Articles of Association
to reflect these changes and modern corporate practice. Most of the differences between the existing Articles
of Association and the proposed new Articles of Association are of a technical or administrative nature, but
a summary of the principal differences is set out in Appendix I to this letter.

Copies of the proposed new Articles of Association will be available for inspection at the offices of Phoenix
Securities Limited, 1 Laurence Pountney Hill, London EC4R QEU from the date of this letter untl the close
of the Annual General Meeting and at the place of the Annual General Meeting for a period of 15 minutes
prior to, and during, the Annual General Meeting.




EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Resolution number 10 is a resolution for the adoption of a new unapproved executive share option scheme
(“the New Executive Scheme”). Resolution number 11 is to make certain amendments to the Company’s
existing 1995 Executive Share Option Scheme (“the 1995 Executive Scheme”) and Siaft Share Option
Scheme (“the Staff Scheme™).

The objective of resolutions 10 and 11 is to ensure that incentives can be targeted in such a way as to help us
recruit, motivate and retain senior management and staff generally. The effect of the resolutions is to enable
unapproved options to be granted in excess of the £30.000 limit imposed on approved schemes by the Finance
Act and to give the Remuneration Committee greater flexibility in allocating between the vasious schemes the
existing overall limit of 10% of issued share capital over which options can be graated.

A summary of the principal features of the New Executive Scheme is set out in Appendix ! to this lerter. The
amendments to the rules of the 1995 Executive Scheme and the Staff Scheme are to casure that they reflect
the more flexibie arrangements now proposed for the New Executive Scheme.

Copies of the Rules of the New Executive Scheme will be available for inspection art the offices of Phoenix
Securities Limited, 1 Laurence Pountney Hill, London ECAR OEU from the date of this letter until the close
of the Annual General Meeting and at the place of the Annual General Meeting for a period of 15 minutes
prior to, and during, the Annual General Meeting.

CREST

Notification of intention to pass a directors resolution relating to the CREST system

This is to give you notice. in accordance with the Uncertificated Securities Reguiations 1995 ("the
Regulations”), that the Company intends to pass a resolution of its directors that title to the ordinary shares
of 5p each in the capital of the Company. in issue or to be issued, may be transferred by means of a relevant
system.

Explanatory Note

The above notice informs members, in accordance with the Regulations, that the Company intends to pass a
“directors’ resolution” (as defined in the Regulations) in relasion to its ordinary shares. A directors’ resolu-
tion will enable the Company's ordinary shares to join CREST in due course. However, shareholders should
note that the shares will not become transferable by means of the CREST system merely by virtue of the pass-
ing of the directors’ resolution (nor will they do so by virtue of the directors’ resolution becoming effective):
the permission of the Operator of the system, CREST Co Limited, must also be given before the shares can
become so transferable. The shares are expected to join CREST in November 1996.

The effect of the directors’ resolution is to disapply, in relation to the ordinary shares, those provisions of the
Company's Articles of Association that are inconsistent with the holding and transfer of those shares in
CREST and any provision of the Regulations, as and when the shares enter the CREST system.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Your directors (whose ordinary shareholdings aggregate 27.6% of the present issued ordinary share capital)
are of the opinion that the proposals outlined in this letter are in the best interests of the Company and rec-
ommend unanimously that you vote in favour of all the resolutions concerned as they intend to do in respect
of their own beneficial holdings.

Yours faithfully

HENRY MEAKIN
) Chairman



APPENDIX |

PRINCIPAL CHANGES TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Set out below is a summary of the principal differences between the current Articles of Association of the

Company and the new Articles of Association proposed to be adopted at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. Arttcle numbers refer to the proposed new Articles.

1.

ARTICLE 13 — FRACTIONAL ENTITLEMENTS ON CONSOLIDATION OR RIGHTS 1SSUES
New Article 13 extends the power of the directors to make arrangements for the allocation, acceptance or
sale of fractions of a share to cover fractional entitlements arising on a rights issue.

ARTICLE 13 — DIRECTORS” AUTHORITIES AND POWERS TO ALLOT SHARE CAPITAL

New Article 15 is designed to simplify the resolutions to be placed before shareholders relating to the
authorities and powers of directors to allot the Company's share capital. Article 15.1 contains authority to
aflot, while Article 15.2 disapplies the statutory pre-emption rights in the case of allotments pursuant to a
rights issue (as defined) or up to the aggregate nominal amount to be specified in the appropriate disap-
plication resolurion to be passed at each AGM.

ARTICLE 20 — SHARE CERTIFICATES

New Article 20 provides that if any shareholder requires several certificates for shares of the same class
the Company will issue further share certificates upon payment by the sharcholder of such reasonable sum
as the Board may determine; the existing Articles do not oblige the Company to do so.

ARTICLE 25.3 — CREST SYSTEM
Article 25.3 permits the Board to adopt procedures for recording, transferring and evidencing title to the
Company's shares without a written instrument, in anticipation of the introduction of the CREST system.

ARTICLE 27.2 — RIGHT TO REFUSE TO REGISTER TRANSFERS WHERE INFORMATION NOTICE

NOT COMPLIED WITH

Article 27.2 contains a new provision to the effect that the Board may (subject to Article 36) refuse to reg-
ister certain transfers of shares where a person has been served with a notice under Section 212 of the
Companies Act 1985 and that person has failed to supply the required information within the peried spec-
ified. The right of refusal to register a transfer is exercisable only where the shares to which the Section
212 notice applies represent at least 0.25% of the shares of that class.

ARTICLE 36 — DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS IN SHARES

Article 36 gives the Board power to withdraw the voting rights of a shareholder who fails to comply with
a notice from the Company requiring disclosure of information with respect to interests in its shares in
accordance with Section 212 of the Companies Act 1985.

In the case of failure by a shareholder holding more than 0.25% of the relevant class of shares to respond
to a Section 212 notice within 14 days. the Board may, in addition to the possible withdrawal of voring
rights and the withholding of dividends, exercise its power under Article 27.2 to refuse, in certain cir-
cumstances, registration of a transfer of any of the relevant shares or to withhold dividends in respect of
such shares pursuant to Article 175.

It should be noted thar these provisions do not detract from the Company’s ability to seek a court order
“freezing” the shares on shorter notice than that appearing in the Articles.

ARTICLES 42, 45 AND 53 — INTEREST

New Article 42 fixes the rate at which interest is to be payable on the amount of a call which is not paid
when due at 2% per annum above the base lending rate for the time being of National Westminster Bank
Plc or such other bank as the Board may elect while new Articles 45 and 53 provide for the same rate of
interest to be payable on advance payments of calls and on amounts payable in respect of shares which
have been forfeited.
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10.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

ARTICLE 76 — ADJOURNMENT OF GENERAL MEETING

New Article 76 empowers the Chairman to adjourn a general meeting without the consent of the share-
holders present if those wishing to attend cannot be conveniently accommodated at the venue chosen for
the meeting or in the event of unruly conduct. -

ARTICLE 100 — CONFLICTING PROXIES

New Article 100 deals with the situation where the same shareholder lodges more than one proxy and the
proxies conflict. The last proxy to be lodged is to be treated as superseding the others but if it is not rea-
sonably possible to determine which was lodged last, all such proxies are 0 be treated as invalid.

ARTICLE 102 — MAXIMUM NUMBER OF DIRECTORS
The existing Articles do not set a maximum number of directors. New Article 102 introduces 2 maximurmn
of ten directors.

ARTICLE 103 — DIRECTORS' FEES

New Article 103 increases the aggregate limits on the payment of Fees to non-executive directors from
£50,000 per vear to £100,000 per year. This Article does. however, continue to allow the limits to be
increased by an ordinary resclution of the shareholders.

ARTICLE 108 -- RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS BY ROTATION

The existing articles provide that no director holding office as chairman. managing director or joint man-
aging director shall be subject to retirement by rotation. New article 108 provides that all direciors shall
be subject to retirement by rotation,

ARTICLE 115 — VACATION OF OFFICE BY DIRECTCRS

New Article 115 extends the circumstances where a director shall vacate office so that a director shall
vacate office (inter alia) if in the opinion of the Board he becomes physically or mentally incapable of per-
forming the functions of a director and the Board resolves that he vacate office.

ARTICLE 134 — DIRECTORS' BORROWING POWERS
Under the existing Articles, the powers of the Board to exercise the borrowing powers of the Company is
limited to four times the adjusted total of capital and reserves of the Company.

While that limit was considered appropriate when the existing Articles were adopted. it is felt that that
limit is now unduly high and new Article 134 reduces the limit to twice the adjusted total of capital and
reserves.

In addition, the definition of the adjusted total of capital and reserves has been expanded to ciarify a num-
ber of areas.

New Article 134.5 clarifies what is meant by “monies borrowed” while new Article 134.6 deals with
monies borrowed or denominated in a currency other than sterling.

ARTICLES 157 TO 161 —- COMMON SEAL

Article 159 expressly permits the Company to have a securities seal as permitted by the Companies Aex
1985 while Article 161 permits the Company to dispense with the need for a common seal altogether as a
result of the changes in company law introduced by the Companies Act 1989 to that effect. It also reflects
that Act by providing that a document signed by a director and the secretary or by two directors shall
have the same effect as if executed under the common seal.

ARTICLE 173 — PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS

The existing Articles provide that in the case of joint holders any dividend may be paid by cheque in
favour of, and sent to, either of them. New Article 173 provides for payment to be made and to be sent to
the member who is first-named on the register of members. This new Article also permits dividends to be
paid by electronic means (such as BACS transfer).

ARTICLE 175 — WITHHOLDING OF DIVIDENDS

Article 175 allows the Board (subject 1o Article 36) to withhold the payment of any dividend where 2
Section 212 notice has not been complied with if the holding of shares in question represents at least
0.25% of the relevant class.



18. ARTICLE 177 — ORDINARY SHARES IN LIEU OF CASH DIVIDENDS

New Article 177 permits the Company to offer to shareholders the opportunity of receiving all or part of
their dividend entitlements in new ordinary shares in the Company, rather than in cash, entitlements to be
caleulated by reference to the average of the middle market price over a five day period.

19. ARTICLE 184 — SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
New Article 184.2 permits, in accordance with the changes intreduced by the Companies Act 1989, sum-
mary {inancial statements to be sent to shareholders.

20. ARTICLE 196 — UNTRACED MEMBERS
New Article 196 permits the Company to sell the shares of a member provided that for a period of 12 years
no cheque or warrant sent to that member has been cashed and no communication has been received from
that member; this Article incorporates certain new safeguards laid down by the London Stock Exchange.

21. ARTICLE 200.2
New Article 200.2 allows the Company to purchase and maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insur-
ance which reflects the claritication of the law made by the Companies Act 1989.

APPENDIX |l

RESOLUTICN 10: SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL FEATURES OF THE ASPEN COMMUNICATIONS PLC 1996 EXECUTIVE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME ("THE NEW EXECUTIVE SCHEME").

ELIGIBILITY AND GRANT OF OPTIONS

All full-time employees of the Company and any participating subsidiaries, who are not within two years of
their contractual retirement date, will be eligible to participate at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee. Options may normally be granted within 42 days after approval of the New Executive Scheme
by shareholders and thereafier in each year in 2 period of 42 days stariing on the announcement of the
Company's interim or final results. Options may not be granted more than [0 yvears after the date of the adop-
tion of the New Executive Scheme by shareholders. No consideration shall be payable for the grant of an
option. The price at which participants may acquire ordinary shares shall not be less than the greater of their
nominal value and their marker value. The right to exercise options shall be made subject to satisfying per-
formance targets imposed by the Remuneration Committee at the date of grant. Taking into account the views
of institutional shareholders, it is intended that these targets shall require sustained growth in earnings per
share measured against an inflarion index. The exact terms of any performance targets imposed shall be dis-
closed in the next published Report and Accounts.

LIMITS ON GRANTS
No options may be granted to a participant which would result in:

a) the aggregate exercise price of ordinary shares comprised in options granted to him under the New
Execurive Scheme and any other equivalent option scheme of the Company in the preceding 10 years
exceeding eight times his annual remuneration; or

b) the number of ordinary shares issued or remaining issuable by virtue of options or other rights granted in
the preceding 10 years under the New Executive Scheme or any other employee share scheme of the
Company exceeding 18% of the issued share capital.

EXERCISE OF OPTIONS

Options may normally be exercised in whole or in part during the period between the third and seventh
anniversaries of their grant provided any performance targets specified at the date of grant have been satis-
fied. Options may be satisfied by the issue of new ordinary shares or the transfer of existing ordinary shares.
Options normally lapse on cessation of employment. However, exercise is permitted for a limited period (irre-
spective of the period for which the option has been held or whether performance targets have been satishied)
following cessation of employment for specified compassionate reasons. Exercise is also permitted on an



amalgamation, take-over or winding-up of the Company, and otherwise at the discretion of the Remuneration

Committee. Options may be exchanged in specified circumstances.

ADJUSTMENTS, RIGHTS AND AMENDMENTS

The number, denomination and class of ordinary shares comprised in an option and/or the exercise price may
be adjusted if any capitalisation issue, offer by way of rights or any sub-division. reduction or consolidation
of the Company’s capital occurs. If ordinary shares are to be allotted and issued to 2 participant pursuant to
the exercise of any option the Company will apply to the The London Stock Exchange for them to be admit-
ted 1o the Official List. They will rank pari passu with all other issued ordinary shares of the Company. The
Remuneration Committee may amend the New Executive Scheme, provided that the prior approval of the
Company in general meeting is obtained for amendments to the material advantage of participants,

RESOLUTION 11: SUMMARY OF EFFECT OF AMENDMENTS TO THE ASPEN COMMUNICATIONS PLC 1995
EXECUTIVE SHARE OPTION SCHEME {"THE 1995 EXECUTIVE SCHEME") AND STAFF SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(“THE STAFF SCHEME").

The Remuneration Committee wishes to have greater flexibility when allocating the 10% limit on dilution of
the issued share capital between each of the emplayee share schemes of the Company. Accordingly. whilst
this 10% limit is to be retained, the proposed amendments to the 1995 Executive Scheme will delete all other
limitations on the dilution of the issued share capital, including the 5% limit normally applicable to executive
schemes. The proposed amendment to the Staff Scheme is to ensure that the same overall 10% limit applies
to it as to the other employee share schemes of the Company.
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Aspen Communications provides media
and communications services to over 3,500

business customers.

The group seeks to interpret its clients’
needs by delivering innovative products

to the highest étandards.

Aspen’s products are mainly in print, video
and electronic screen based media which

increasingly use digital technology.

The group sets out to provide a stimulating
and challenging working environment
where there is determination to achieve

profitable growth of the company.

The company aims to achieve leadership in
its chosen market areas and thereby reward

its shareholders and its people.
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Chairman’s Statement

®

[

Profits before tax
increesad 49% 10
£3.7m {1994 ;

£2.5m)

Earnings per share
grew 52% 0 17.5

pence {1894 ;
11.5p)

trong profits
growth for all
three divisions

Clear penefits from
past investment in
the latest and
most productive
technoiogy

In a vear of good progress, Aspen’s profits
grew strongly in all three divisions and the
company is on target to achieve its objec-
tive of doubling margins from the first half
1994 to the second half 1996.

Turnover grew 15% to £80m, while pre-tax profits at £3.7m
increased 49% over the same period last year. Earnings per share
were up 52% from 11.5p to 17.5p. The Board is recommending &
final net dividend of 3.75p making a total for the year of 6.25p, an

increase of 17% on the previous year.

The group’s decision to focus its activities on specialist sectors is
delivering the anticipated results. In addition, we are reaping the
benefits of significant investment in the latest and most produc-
tive technology. 1995 was a year of record investment which

included net capital expenditure of £6.5m.

In the past twelve months we have extended the group’s media
activities, In October 1995 we acquired the 45% minerity of our
airline media company, Spafax, and an 80% interest in a film
camera hire company, G P Films. Most recently we have pur-
chased 70% of http:/Aarww Ltd which will supply internet services
to the corporate sector as Aspen Internet. This opportunity for
serving the electronic networks is an important addition to our
overall capabilities.

The progress that is being achieved is encouraging and to our
teams of people I send congratulations and sincere thanks for
their success. In July Mark Rogers joined us as Finance Director
from Kingfisher ple and the Board is pleased to welcome him to

the Group Management.

Qur printing division delivered a strong performance with profits
up by 45% to £1.9m despite a 40% Increase in paper prices which
depressed the volume of printed material in the UK by 3%.

Much improved performances from all our printing operattons
included a particularly good result from our promotional print

and direct mail companies. As part of our largest ever capital pro-



“"The group’s
decision to
focus its
activities on
speciaiist
sectors is
deiivering the
anticipated

rasulés”.

gramme, new state-of-the-art printing presses have been installed
in our three principal production sites, and these, together with
new digital knking and imaging technology, represent some £5m
of expenditure in the year. The equipment is already delivering
significant productivity gains and, in addition, provides consider-

able capacity for future expansion.

Regrettably, I must report that our magazine printing company
suffered an arson attack at the end of February 1996 which dam-
aged the press and finishing departments. Despite outstanding
efforts from our staff and supphiers, some time-sensitive work will
be affected. However, about 50% of operations should be restored
to normal by April with the balance being on stream from August.
The plant is fully insured.

Since the year end, paper prices have started to decline which,
combined with our new machinery, provides the prospect of

renewed impetas for growth.
Media and Communications

The media and communications division increased profits by 54%
to £1.3m. Our leading global airline media company now repre-
sents 40 airlines and is growing rapidly, as advertisers respond to
the quality of the 310 million-strong audience that Aspen offers.
The increasing number of aircraft equipped with multi-channel
seat-back screens and interactive capabilities, points to an exciting

future for our business.

Our publishing and specialist media activities made sourd
progress although paper price increases, now being reversed,
impacted on the 1995 results. Since the year-end we have acquired
and integrated the design and architectural title Blugprint together
with the contract for the Tate Gallery magazine, fate.

The market for television production facilities continues to keep
pace with the growth in terrestrial, cable and satellite television
channels. With intense competition for audiences and ratings,
producers are boosting budgets. We invested further in new
premises, digital TV cameras and editing equipment. A fast-
growing 16mm camera hire company was acquired to breaden
Aspen’s range of services and recently we have bought 35mm

cameras to expand its potential.

Radio communications enjoyed an excellent year. Our emergency
services product range has been expanded and a new compact
cellular telephone was launched in the avtumn. Recent compara-
tive weakness in the market for analogue cellular phones has
dampened our expectations. We continue to source and develop

new products for this very substantial market.

Wie are

reaping the
benefits of
significant
investment
in the lates?
and most
productive

technology”™
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Business Communications advanced its development in integrated

marketing and provided some award winning solutions to its

growing client base in business to business marketing.
¥arketing Services

Our clients’ enthusiasm for the efficiency of direct marketing and
the focus of field marketing resulted in a 64% increase in profits

to £1.3m for the year.

A number of our field marketing blue-chip clients increased their
spend with us in line with the trend to outsourcing retail sales
support activity. Our leading market position, IT investment and
customer focus provides an excellent platform from which to

develop our growing client base.

Qur direct marketing agencies in London and Amsterdam made
good progress following a rather slow start to the year. Latterly a
number of major new accounts have been won and levels of
activity are building at an encouraging rate as both agencies

increase their reputations and profiles.

Increased investment in the development of our direct marketing
of insurance to retired people is growing our valuable database of
customers and prospects. The number of policies has grown sig-
nificantly and we now offer an expanded range of products which

we are able to cross-sell.
Sustaining Growth

Aspen operates in fast developing and rapidly changing sectors
where the choice of media is broadening and becoming more com-
plex. The rate of technological change seems unlikely to slacken
and digital technology simultaneously promises enormous scope
for greater efficiency and flexibility. Aspen’s management is
showing an ability to take advantage of these changing markets

and exploit the opportunities which emerge.

The principal markets in which Aspen operates continue to grow
and provide an excellent platform for the company’s expansion.
Cur prime objectives remain to build scale within our core busi-
nesses and increase trading margins. Over the last two years the
group’s profits have recovered very strongly. Going forward we
plan to deliver sustainable rates of growth and are confident that

good progress will continue this year.

A,

Henry Meakin CHAIRMAN
15th March 1996



Directors & Advisers

HENRY MEAKIN, 52, Executive Chairman. He was a
founding director in 1889, and became Group
Managing Director in 1975 and Chairman in 1979.
He was a founding director in 1982 and in 1988
became Chairman of GWR Group PLC. He is a
director of Classic FM and was its founding
Chairman from 1991 to 1993. Henry Meakin is 2
member of both the Remuneration and Audit
Committees.

NEIL WORGAN, 43, Chief Executive, A chartered
accountant, he was a senior manager with Peat
Marwick Mitchell before joining Aspen as Finance
Director in 1983. He was appointed Joint Chief
Executive in 1989 and Chief Executive in 1991,

EDWARD BALDING, 49. He trained in radio commu-
nications with the RAF and founded Cleartone in
1978. He joined Aspen in 1983 and was appointed
to the Beard in 1936.

IAN VINALL, 46, Chief Executive Specialist Print
Division. He jeined Aspen in 1989 when the com-
pany acquired Heanor Gate Printing Limited. He
was appointed to the Board in 1524,

PETER JOHN THRELFALL, 52. He has been a share-
helder and non executive director since 1975.
Previously a management consultant, he is
the former Managing Director of Wentgate
Engineering Limited and is a member of both the
Remuneration and Audit Committees.

JAMES SALMON, OBE, 54. A non executive director

he was appointed to the Board in 1994. He is
Chairman of ISA International plc, an electronic
engineer with Board level experience in major
printing and manufacturing companies. James
Saimon is Chairman of both the Remuneration
and Audit Committees.

MARK ROGERS, 39, Group Finance Director. A
chartered accountant he joined Aspen on 1 July
1995 from Kingfisher ple where he was Group
Financial Controlier from 1988 to 1991 and was
subsequently involved in strategy and business
development.
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Review of Operations

£1.9m

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REVIEW Looking

back on the year 1995, I am encouraged by

our progress. To increase cur sales by 15%
and our trading margins from 3.8% 10 5.2%
in a low growth environment is a sound achievement. Qur task is
to continue the frend to grow the margins in our businesses to 10%.
At the same time, we plan o increase the scale of our operating

companies.

The media services sector offers above average growth prospects
which, together with the trend towards ‘outsourcing of services’
and the rapid growth in direct marketing, provide us with excel-
lent prospects. The review of the year which follows illustrates, in
addition how Aspen Is positioning itself both to use electronic

media and to benelit from digital technology.

e S O SR
SERRCCRRIBL Y

The division continued to make good progress and received sub-
stantial capital expenditure amounting to £5.2 million (1994: £1.3
million). Turnover amounted to £32.2 million with operating

profits of £1.9 million.

Heanor Gate, our high quality printer, performed well and the
year saw the installation of new Man Roland four and five colour
presses together with complementary finishing equipment. The
company's mvestment in sales personnel over the last few years
was rewarded with turnover up 24% on 1994. 1996 will see a fur-
ther investment in new Linotype Hell reprographic equipment to
provide not only improved quality but also stronger digital links
on hine to our customers. To support these much expanded opera-
tions the company is currently computerising its entire estimating,
stock and production control, costing and accounting systems.
When completed in mid 1996, this project will further improve

efficiency and customer service.

Our mailing and special products company, Aspen Preprint,

achieved profits growth again and continued its investment



programme to move further into the direct mail market. In the
year approxumately 55% of turnover was generated from this new
area. This move into new markets has been assisted by substantial
continuous training for staff engaged in sales, order processing
and production. It is pleasing to report that good progress has
been made and 1995 saw an excellent financial return for our four
vear investment programmes. In the second half we invested £1.4
million in a state-of-the-art Drent 8 colour press and this year a
rew Barco digital graphics system was installed to provide on-line

connection to our cusiomer base.

Pensord Press, our business magazine printer, made excellent
progress starting to increase its trading margins resulting from our
continuing investment in the latest production equipment. 1995
saw £1.0 millior capital expenditure on a new Komeori four colour
press and digital front end reprographic equipment. This progress
was interrupted in mid February 1996 when a fire believed to be
caused by two juveniles caused extensive damage 1o the printing
and binding areas. New equipment has been installed to give lim-
ited output in April and progressively full production will be in
place by August. In the meantime, Pensord are maintaining cus-
tomer relationships by using sub contractors to produce some
magazines. Whilst it is not yet possible accurately to assess the
financial impact, it is reassuring that nearly all our customers have
indicated they will remain loyal. The company carries replacement

cost asset insurance and 12 month business interruption cover.

Our three companies operate in print markets thar are forecast to
grow healthily over the medium term. With a substantial capital
expenditure programme and related investment in training and
sales we are confident we have quality businesses in growth mar-
kets. We believe the division will continue to make progress with
its expanding customer base, the range of products offered and
the quality of its service. We anticipate another year of profits
growth which, due to Pensord’s circumstances, will be weighted to
the second half of the year.

Media and communications

The division enjoyed a year of further profits growth despite
continuing revenue investment expenditure in Spafax, Aspen
Specialist Media and Aspen Television Services. Profits amounted
to £1.29 million and turnover increased 11% o £27.7 million.

In 1995 we purchased the ountstanding 45% minority interest in
Spafax, our airline media and entertainment company. The year

saw the completion of the first stage of our strategy to be the world

“With a
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and related
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leader in the sale of advertising on airline screens, radio and
magazines. Today, Spafax operates through five offices around the
world, selling media on 40 of the world’s airlines and delivering an
annual audience of 310 million long haul passengers. In addition,
it supplied 1,000 hours of television programming in 1995 for
clients including British Airways, Singapore Airlines and Air
Canada. In Ociober, our client British Airways received the Best
Inflight Entertainment award at the World Airline Entertainment
Assaciation conference in Amsterdam. ln the current year Spafax
is helping both Cathay Pacific and Singapore Airlines to develop
multichannel interactive seat back systems. With our clients we
are working to develop programming, media sales and revenue

streams from on-board shopping and services.

Aspen Specialist Mediz invested in strengthening its range of
media products in Post Offices in anticipation of the new com-
mercial opportunities emerging in Post Office Counters. Teday,
we are selling advertising on direct response television screens,
sales promotion leaflets and poster sites in the Post Office’s nation-
wide retail network. Aspen’s experience in this area together with
the high street promotional skills of its field marketing operations
offers considerable potential in providing point of sale media

services to other retailers i the UK.

Aspen Litharne Publishing made good progress in many areas but
its results suffered from higher paper prices. Investment continued
in improving the quality of its magazine titles and in building sub-
scription income to offset an increasingly crowded environment in
newsagents. During 1995 the company has more than doubled the
new subscribers to Its magazines. In January 1996, the company
acquired Blueprint Media so adding a further two high quality
titles, Blueprint and fate.

Aspen Business Communications which now provides integrated
marketing communications services to the business to business
sector invested further in its people skills. This was rewarded by a
number of contracts from new corporate clients including Nokia,

Potterton Myson and BDO Stoy Hayward.

Aspen Television Services continued to make progress in imple-
menting its strategy of being a comprehensive supplier of camera,
lighting, editing and sound services to the broadcast television
market. This positioning was significantly strengthened in
October when we entered the film camera hire market by
acquiring GP Films. This acquisition moves the company into new
areas of the breadcast market including documentaries and drama.
Developments in the year saw the opening of Artists’ Court, our
non-linear editing, graphics and sound centre in London and the

1995 saw the

complietion
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stage of our
strategy to
build the
world leader
in the sale of
adwvertising
on airline
screens,
radic and

magazines



Focus on Growing RMarkets

The trend in the United Kingdom for clients to favour the measurable
techniques of direct marketing continues to gather pace. During the
vear Aspen’s revenues from direc marketing grew strongly.

further digitalisation of our post production edit suites. The
current year will see further investment with a significant move
into the 35mm film camera hire market to supplement our existing
range of 16mm equipment. Forecasts indicate a growing need for
originated programmes to supply the increasing number of televi-
ston channels. Aspen Television Services is positioned to take full

advantage of this growth in demand.

Cleartone enjoyed an excellent year’s trading with further expan-
sion of its mobile radio product range for the UK emergency
services and government departments. Its new compact analogue
cellular telephone has been very well received. Continuing devel-
opment work was undertzken on digital communications products
as the company positioned itself to supply the new digital systems
that will deminate the future of the rapidly growing mobile com-

munications market.

The media division anticipates further growth in profits in the
current year, again with a strong bias towards the second half of
the year.




Markering services

The marketing services division delivered profits of £1.25 million

and increased turnover by 6% to £20.1 million.

Aspen Field Marketing enjoyed excellent growth in turnover and
profits as a result of an mcreasing trend by manufacturing com-
panies to ‘outsource’ their sales representation in retailers. As a
result, an increasing proportion of the company’s turnover 1s now
on a contracted basis with chients. Considerable investment was
undertaken in the year to develop the company’s 11 capability to
enable fast and accurate information to be provided from retail
outlets directly to our clients. Trials are underway to provide this
information by means of hand held terminals. In May 1995 Katie
Audaer and Anthony Jones were promoted to joint managing
directors of the company further strengthening the management
team at a time of exceptional opportunity.




Our direct marketing group performed strongly in the second
half with significant new client gains including Alliance and
Leicester Building Soclety and Barclays Unicorn in the UK, and
Generali and Altis/PGGM in Holland. A feature of the direct
marketing group has been an expansion in the range and number
of significant clients which will give rise to consistent income
streams in future years. Considerable progress has been made in
strengthening the sector and creative skills of the group and we
now offer expertise in television, radio and outdoor advertising
as well as traditional direct marketing media. The acquisition of
http://wvww Ltd, now renamed Aspen Internet, will provide our
direct marketing agencies with telephony and software knowl-
edge to develop Internet sales opportunities for their clients. The
Internet will play a key role in the future of marketing and the
combination of Aspen Internet and Aspen's marketing and adver-
tising skills is a strong proposition in this enormous area of

growth in communications.

Direct marketing of our own insurance products to the “Over
555" market continued to achieve scale. Under the Retirement

Insurance Advisory Service brand the number of policies has

The
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reached 68,000. In 1995 we sold health and motor insurance
products using our now substantial database of respondents. A
feature of the year has been the intense competition in the market
to which we respond by providing an excellent service at a
competitive price. The compary has successfully exceeded its
targetted renewal rates and continues to develop its marketing
technigues. We anticipate a significant increase in the number of

new policyholders in 1996.

The markets for both Field and Direct Marketing have shown
strong growth as companies increasingly appreciate the cost effec-
tive and measurable nature of their expenditure ‘below the line’.
In an ever more competitive business environment efficiency in
marketing expenditure will be increasingly monitored. Our divi-
sion is well positioned to help clients deliver results and another

year of growth is anticipated.

Neil Worgan

CHIEF
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Financial Highlights

On page 1 we have illustrated the
financial highlights for the Group.

Turnover up 15%
from £69.9m to £80.1m.

Pre-tax profits up 49%
from £2.5m to £3.7m.

Earnings per share up 52%

from 11.5p to 17.5p.

Dividends up 17%
from 5.35p to 6.25p

Capital Expenditure up
from £3.2m to £7.4m.

The increases in turnover and profits
are fully explained by division in the
Operating Review. Earnings and
Dividends are reviewed here in the
section on dividend cover. Capital

expenditure 1s reviewed opposite

The financial review sets out to provide
an understanding of the financial
framework within which the company
operates and the major factors driving
the improvement in the Group’s

financial performance. > 8¢
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Financial Review

Operating Margin

Operating profit increased by 55% from
£2.7m to £4.2m. The operating margin
continued to improve, up from 3.8% to
5.2%. The improvement was generated
by controlling the rise in operating
expenses below 9% whilst growing sales
by 15% and maintaining the gross

margin.

Gross margin was held at 32% giving an
increase In margin contribution of £3.2m
whilst the operating expenses grew by
£1.7m thus creating the improvement of
£1.5m in operating profit and 1.4% i the

operating margiri.

.
Dividend Cover

Earnings per share were up by 52% from
11.5p to 17.5p. The dividend was
increased by 17% from 5.35p to 6.25p.
Dividend cover is now 2.8 times com-
pared with 2.15 times in 1994. This
represents a prudent balance between
sustainable dividend growth and reten-
tion of funds for reinvestment in the

fature growth of the business.




£35.8m

Market Capitalisation

During the year the share price rose by
42% from 168p to 239p per share. This is
shghtly below the increase in earnings

per share of 52%.

In the year 991,411 shares were issued
principally in connection with the acqui-
sition in our media and communications
division of 80% of G.P. Film Services
and the 45% minority interest in Spafax
Airline Network.

As a result there were 14,969,341 shares
in issue giving a market capitalisation of
£35.8m compared with £23.5m at the end
of 1994.

Return on Shareholders’ Funds

Profit for the financial year attributable
to ordinary shareholders improved by
58% to £2.5m. This amounts to a 19%
after tax return on average shareholders’
funds compared with 13% in 1994,
Shareholders’ funds increased during

the year by £1.1m to £13.7m.

Capital Expenditure

Gross capital expenditure was £7.4m up
from £3.2m. This major investment
programme included £5.2m in printing

to provide four new presses, digital front-
end equipment and finishing equipment.
A further £0.9m provided additional
capabilities in the television services
business. The remainder was invested in
information systems and infrastructure to

support growing scale.
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Net Borrowings

Net borrowings have increased by
£4.3m. The cash inflow from operations
was £5.3m after a £1.1m increase in
working capital. Interest, dividends and
tax amounted to £2.4m. The net outflow
on Investing activities was £7.0m of

which £0.6m related to acquisitions. In

addition, FO.2m of finance liabilities were

acquired with G.P. Fiim Services.

Net borrowings comprise cash of £1.9m
offsetting short term loans of £1.5m and
fnance habilities of £4.9m of which
£3.3m falls due for repayment in more
than one year. The hire purchase
arranged this year is part of a £5m
facility. In addition, the Group has com-
mitted short term loan facilities of £7m,
with staggered termination dates, and a
net overdraft facility of £2m.

Gearing

Gearing rose from 2% to 33%.
Shareholders’ funds are up from £12.6m
to £13.7m and net borrowings have

increased from £0.2m to £4.5m.

Measured against the year end market
capitalisation gearing is only 12.7%
which is more consistent with interest

being covered 8.8 times

Interes: Cover

Interest cover continues to improve.
Operating profits covered interest 8.8

times which compares with 7.6 times in

1994.

The interest charge increased from
£354,000 to £475,000. This arose
principally from the higher levels of
borrowing arranged to fund the invest-

ment programme.

Mark Rogers
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR



Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
to shareholders, together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31st December 1995 on pages 20 to 40.

Principal activities and business review

The Group manages a range of communications products and
service companies which operate in three divisions, Specialist
Printing, Media and Communications and Marketing Services.
Further details of the Company's operations are given in the
Chairman’s Statement on page 2 and the Chief Executive’s
Review of Operaticns on page 6.

Results and Dividends

A summary of the results is shown on page 1 and is further
explained in the Chairman's staterment and the Financial
Review on page 14.

An interim dividend of 2.50p per share was paid in October
1995 {16%4: 2.15p). The directors recommend a finat dividend
of 3.75p per share (1984: 3.2p) to be paid in June 1996 giving a
total net dividend of 6.25p per share (1994: 5.35p). After
deducting the total dividend, the profit for the year retained in
the Group was £1,564,000.

Acquisitions

On 25th October 1995 the Company acquired the cutstanding
minority interest in Spafax Airline Network Limited for an initial
cansideration of £1,325,000 satisfied by the issue of 632,752
ordinary shares - Mr Hunter received 362,319 ordinary shares,
Mr Hilleary received 270,433 ordinary shares, 169,082 were
conditionally placed and 101,351 retained. Mr Hilleary is
entitled to receive additional consideration depending upon
the profits attained by Spafax Airline Network Limited in the
years ending 31st December 1995, 1996 and 1997,

On 25th October 1995 the Company acquired 80 per cent of
GP Film Services Limited for a sum of £640,000 satisfied by an
allotment of 304,609 new ordinary shares, the vendors who
are also the directors of G.P. Film Services Limited retained the
minority sharehoiding. The vendors of G.P. Film Services
Limited have the option to sell the outstanding minority to the
Company at any time from April 2000 to March 2001 at market
vaiue up to a maximum of £640,000.

On 15th March 1996 the company acquired 70% of
httpy//www. Limited, a business solutions provider on the
Internet, for a consideration of £450,000 satisfied by the issue
of 166,482 new ordinary shares. The vendors who are also
directors of httpt//www. Limited retained the minority
shareholding,

Directors and their interests

The directors of the Company who held office at the end of
the financial year and their beneficial interests in its share
capital were:

Number of Ordinary Shares of Sp
31st December 1885  31st December 1994
{or date of appointment}

H P J Meakin 2,142,019 2,127,019
P J M Threlfail 1,437,430 1,402,430
M A Rogers 40,060 -
1D Salmen 5,600 5,000
} Vinall 189,669 189,669
N F Worgan 213,000 203,000
E A R Balding 153,157 153,157

Under the terms of the Aspen Share Option Schemes the
following options have been granted to the directors:

No. of share Option Exercise

options held price period

N F Weorgan 55,000 100p 1994 - 2001
200,00C 85p 1994 - 2001

[ Vinall 40,000 85p 1994 - 2001
E A R Balding 35,600 i68p 1993 - 2000
5,000 85p 1994 - 2001

H P Meakin 60,000 245p 1998 - 2005
M A Rogers 443,000 220p 1998 - 2005

The options held by H P J Meakin were granted on 27th
November 1995 and those held by M A Rogers were granted
on 2nd November 1995, There were no other grants of cptions
during the year save as disclosed above, nor did any director
exercise any options, however N F Worgan surrendered 5,000
options granted at 375p. The Company’s mid market share
price was 239p at 31st December 1995,

Mr M A Rogers was appointed to the Board on 1st July 1995
and in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association
offers himself for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.
No director has 2 beneficial interest in any shares of any
subsidiary undertaking.

There have been no other changes in directors’ interests since
31st December 1995.
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In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr
N F Woergan is retiring by rotation, and being eligible, offers
himself for re-election at the Annual General Meeting. Mr
Worgan does not have a service contract with the Company.
No director was or is materially interested in any contract
subsisting during or at the end of the financial vear which was
significant in relation to the Group's business.

Insurance of directors

The Group maintains insurance for the directors of Aspen
Communications PLC in respect of their duties as directors of
the Group and for the directors and officers of all subsidiary
undertakings.

Share capital
Details of the changes in the share capital of the Company are
shown In note 22 1o the financial staterents.

The directors have been notified of the foliowing interests in
the issued share capital of the Company.

Shareholder No. of Shares %
Edinburgh Fund Managers plc 1,801,190 1.8
HMerald Investment Trust ple 775,000 5.1
Framlington Group pic 614,084 4.1

The directors have been notified that the interests of Edinburgh
Fund Managers pic are non-beneficial and represent shares
held under discretionary management.

Special business

A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting
to renew the existing powers of the directors, which expire at
that time, to issue equity securities in certain circumstances
and up to a stated limit, other than pro rata to shareholders.
A further resclution will be proposed to renew the Company’s
power in certain circumstances to purchase up 1o 10% of its
own shares. The Board would commence purchasing ordinary
shares only after careful consideration and in the expectation
that it would resuit in an increase in expected earnings per
share after taking account of other investment opportunities
and the overall financial position of the Company.

Accompanying the Report and Accounts is a letter from the
Chairman to shareholders giving further explanation of the
resolutions numbered 9 and 10.

The CREST System

in accordance with the Uncertificated Securities Regulations
1995 {'the Regulations’}, the Company intends to pass a
resolution of its directors that title to the ordinary shares of 5p
each in the capital of the Company, in issue or to be issued,
may be transferred by means of a relevant system.

Further details are indluded in the letter from the Chairman
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which accompanies the Report and Accounts.

Listing of Shares

It is the Board's intention to make an application for the
Company’s shares 1o be admitted to the Official List of the
London Stock Exchange.

Fixed assets
Detatls of the movements in tangible fixed assets during the
year are given in note 12 to the financial statements.

Tax status

The directors are advised that the Company is not a close
company as defined by the Income and Corporation Taxes Act
1988,

People within the Group

Management of the Group is devolved to its operating
companies and our policy is to support our people by training,
career development and opportunities for promotion. We
believe in an open management approach and close
consultation on matters of concern to our staff. iInformation is
shared on each company's performance which, together with
participation in the Company’s share option schemes and
application of performance related bonuses, encourage staff
involvement, The Group's policy provides that disabled
persons, whether registered or not, shall be considered for
employment, training and career development having regard
to their aptitude and abilities.

Corporate Governance

The directors consider that they have complied with the
principles and operative provisions of the Cadbury
Committes’s Code of Best Practice for the year ended 31st
December 1995. The only exception is the composition of the
audit committee which comprises the Chairman and the two
non-executive directors.

Internal financial control

The Board of directors is responsible for the Group's system of
internal financial control. It must be recognised that any such
systern can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance
of the safeguarding of Group assets, the maintenance of
proper accounting records and the reliability of financial
information. The key features of the control system which has
bean established are as follows:

Control environiment

The Group Board comprises five executive and twae non-
executive directors each of whom takes an active role in
menitoring the control environment. In particular, both non-
executive directors are members of the Audit Committee. The
Board meets on a regular basis in order to discuss corporate
strategy and investment planning and to monitor performance.



Operational controt and the implementation of Group strategy
and policy is delegated by the Board to the executive directors
and the managing directors of each subsidiary company.

Risk assessment

The Board acts to identify, monitor and control risks affecting
‘the Group as a whole. in addition, responsibility for risk
identification and monitoring within each subsidiary is
delegated to focal management.

Controf procedures

Group accounting procedures identify and provide guidance in
key control areas. Within that framework, control procedures
appropriate to its own needs and drcumstances are developed
and maintained by each subsidiary. Implementation of these
procedures is monitored centrally. The Board maintains control
both over monthly reporting by each subsidiary and the annual
budget setting process.

Monitoring and information systems

Information systems are developed and maintained by each
subsidiary, appropriate to its own requirements. Detailed
management accounts are prepared and these form the basis
of a monthly meeting involving the Board and local
management. {n addition, information systems and financial
reporting issues in general are subject to detailed review by the
Audit Committee on an ongoing basis.

Financial Calendar

Annual General Meeting

Dividend record date

Final dividend payment

Interim results announced

interim dividend payment

Preliminary announcement of final 1986 results

Report and Accounts for 1986 despatched to shareholders

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of
internal financial controt for the period to 31st December 1995.

Going concern

The directors confirm that they are satisfied that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the accounts,

Auditors

Qur auditors KPMG have indicated that a limited liability
company, KPMG Audit Pic, is to undertake part of their audit
business, Accordingly, a resolution is to be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting for the appointment of KPMG Audit
Plc as auditors of the company.

By Order of the Board

M A Rogers
16th April 1996

29th May 1996
21st May 1996
18th June 1996
September 1996
Qctoher 1996
March 1997
May 1997
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31st December

1985 1984

Note £000 £7000

Turnover 1 80,066 89,910

Cost of sales 2 {54.413) (47,475)
Gross profit 25,653 22,435

Operating expenses 2 {21,473} (19,744)
Operating profit 4,180 2,691
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 255 165
Costs of closure of terminated activities (221} -
4,214 2,856

Interest (Net) 3 {475) {354)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 4 3,739 2,502

Taxaticon on profit on ordinary activities 7 (1,312) (878}
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 2,427 1,624

Minority interests 21 55 {53)
Praofit for the financial year 8 2,482 1,571

Dividends 9 {918) {748)
Profit retained for the year 1,564 823
Earnings per share 10 17.5p i1.5p

The Group had no material recognised gains and losses other than those included in the profits above and therefore
no seperate statement of total recognised gains and iosses has been prasented.

There is no material differance between the Group results as reported above and on an unmodified historicai cost basis.
Accordingly no note of historical cost profits and losses has been included.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 315t December

ASPERN

1895 1994
Note £000 £'000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 1% 844 844
Tangible assets 12 16,322 11,139
17,166 11,983
Current assets
Stocks 14 6,058 5,200
Debtors falling due within one year 15 21,991 18,536
Debtors falling due after more than one year 15 3,040 1,431
Cash at bank 16 1,936 2,558
33,025 27,725
Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year 17 {32,129) (25,128)
Net current assets 896 2,597
Total assets less current lizhilities 18,062 14,580
Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year 18 (3.372) {1,038)
Deferred income 19 57) {100}
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred tax 20 (828) {631}
Minority interests - equity 21 (124) {230}
Net assets 13,681 12,581
Capital and reserves
Cailed up share capital 22 748 699
Share premium account 23 4,646 4,007
Profit and loss account 25 8,287 7,875
Shareholders’ funds - equity 26 13,681 12,581

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors at a Board Meeting held on 16th April 1296,

H.P.J. Meakin Director
N.F. Worgan Director

THE ATTACHED NOTES FORM PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Company Balance Sheet

At 31st December

1995 1994
Note £'000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 298 254
Investments 13 33,648 31,505
33,946 31,758
Current assets
Debtors 15 13,669 8,602
Cash at bank ! 12
13,680 8,614
Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year 17 {17,422) (12,286)
Net current liabilities (3.742) (3,672)
Total assets less current labilities 30,204 28,087
Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year 18 (10} (28)
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred tax 20 142 112
Net assets 34,336 28,171
Capital and reserves
Calied up share capital 22 748 699
Share premium account 23 4,646 4,007
Vierger reserve 24 23,705 22,412
Profit and [oss account 25 1,237 1,053
Shareholders’ funds - equity 26 30,336 28171

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors at 2 Board Meeting held on 16th April 1996.

H.P.). Meakin Director
N.F. Worgan Director
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 315t December

et cash inflow from operating astivities

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

interest raceived 49 29

Bank and loan interest paid {229) (294)
Interest element of finance liabilities (285) (56}
Dividends paid (787) (678)
Dividends paid to minority interests (77) {61}
Net cash outflow from returns on investment and {1.349) {1,100}

servicing of finance

Taxation
Taxation paid {962) {289)

Investing activities

Purchase of intangible fixed assets - {112)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (7.371) {3,199)
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings and minority interests 30 (632) {216)
Sale of fixed assets 935 192
Net cash outflow from investing activities {7,068) {3,335}
Net cash {outflow)/inflow before financing activities (4,066} 2,090
Financing

Unsecured loan receipts 32 500 -
Unsecured foan repayments 32 - {2,000)
Hire purchase facilities received 32 4,052 1,112
Repayments of amounts borrowed 32 {28) {102)
Capital elements of finance liabilities 32 {1,140} {699)
tssue of shares 32 60 Vi
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing 3,444 {1,618)
{Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 31 (622} 472
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Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies consistently applied in the
preparation of the financiail statements of the group are
described below.

Basis of accounting

The finandal statements have been prepared under the
historical cost accounting rules and in accordance with
applicable Accounting Standards.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements deal with the state of
affairs and results of the Company and alf its subsidiary
undertakings.

The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of
are included from or untii the effective date of acquisition or
disposal. Where merger relief, in accordance with the provisions
of Section 131 of the Companies Act 1985 is applicable, a
merger reserve is created and utilised to write off goodwili. In
other instances goodwill is written off against retained profits.

The Company has taken advantage of Seciion 230(3) of the
Companies Act 1985 and has not presented a profit and loss
account dealing with its own results.

Turnover
Turnover represents szles to third parties net of returns and
allowances and exciudes value added tax.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of fixed assets to
their estimated residual value on a straight line basis in equal
annuai instaiments over their useful lives as follows:

Short leasehold property - life of lease
Plant and equipment - £ to 10 years
Moter vehicles - 4 years

Freehold properties are not depreciated as they are considered
to have an estimated useful fife in excess of 50 years, it is group
policy to maintain all buildings in good condition and any
depreciation involved would not be material. Costs of repairs
and maintenance which profong the useful life of the
properties, are charged against revenue in the year in which
they are incurred.

Finance leases and hire purchase agreements

Assets acquired under finance leases and hire purchase
agreements are ¢apitalised and depredated in accordance with
group policy. The corresponding finance lability is included
within outstanding finance liabilities with the relevant interest
proportion being charged to the profit and loss account.
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Intangible Fixed Assets

Acquired publishing rights and titles are capitalised and
classified within the balance sheet as intangibie assets and
recorded at cost. Their value is reviewed annually by the
directors and provision is made, where appropriate, for any
permanent diminution in value.

Stocks

Stocks and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. In respect of work in progress and finished
goods, costs include all production overheads and an
attributable proportion of indirect overhead expenses.

Deferred expenditure

Expenditure incurred in respect of the direct marketing of
insurance is carried forward and written off against income
arising from that business. The expenditure is written off based
on the number of policies and the level of renewals.

Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are transiated
into sterling and recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the
date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into sterling at the exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date and the gains or losses on
transtation are included in the profit and loss account.

For consolidation pufposes the assets and liabilities and profit
and loss accounts of overseas subsidiary undertakings are
translated at the exchange rate at the balance sheet date and
at average rates of exchange for the year respectively. Exchange
differences arising on these translations are taken to reserves.

Taxation

Taxation charges are computed at the rates applicable to the
financial year and take into account taxation deferred because
of timing differences between the treatment of certain items
for taxation and accounting purposes. Provision is made for
deferred taxation only to the extent that it is probable that an
actual liability will crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Pension costs
The group operates defined contribution and defined benefit
pension schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
group in independently administered funds. The amounts
charged against profit for the defined contribution scheme
represent the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of
the accounting period. Contributions to the defined benefit
scheme are charged to the profit and loss account so as to
spread costs of pensions over the employees” working fives with
the group.
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1. Analysis of turnover and profit

ASPER

Divisional analysis Turnover Profit Net assets
1995 1894 1995 1994 1995 1994
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Specialist Printing 32,228 256,005 1,893 1,328 8,006 8,048
Media & Communications 27,695 24,879 1,289 839 3,701 3,278
Marketing Services 20,142 19,026 1,248 76t 3,703 2,998
Management company - - (250) (237)
Turnover 80,066 69,910
Operating profit 4,180 2,691
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 255 165
Costs of closure of terminated activities {221) -
Net interast payable {475) {(354)
Profit before taxation 3,739 2,502
Divisional net assets 16,410 14,324
Less: Unallocated net debt (2.723) {1,743)
Net assets 13,681 12,581
Geographical analysis Turnover Profit Net assets
1995 1994 1995 1994 1995 1984
£:000 £006 - - £000 £000 £'000 £000
UK 74,505 65,256 3,927 2,799 15,975 13,657
Europe 4,294 3,755 178 139 558 792
USA and Canada 1,267 839 75 (247} {123} {125)
80,066 69,910 4,180 2,691 16,410 14,324

The above table shows turnover and operating profit analysed by the destination to which products and services are

supplied.

Geographical source of turnover Total by source Inter-divisional Turnover
1895 1934 1985 1994 1995 1924
£000 £'000 £000 £800 £000 £7000
UK 79,687 £9,662 2,392 2,416 77,295 67,246
Europe 1,681 1,783 - - 1.691 1,783
USA and Canada 1,680 881 - - 1,080 881
82,458 72,326 2,392 2,416 80,066 €9,910
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2. Cost of sales and operating expenses

1995 1994
£000 £'000
Cost of sales 54,413 47,475
Operating expenses 21,473 14,744

in the 1994 financial statements, operating expenses included a charge of £390,000 reiating to deprediation on the
tangible fixed assets of subsidiary undertakings involved in television services activities. The charge for 1995, amounting
to £514,000, has been included in cost of sales and the comparative figures above have been restated to reflect this
change in disclosure.

3. Interest payable less receivable

1995 1984
£'000 £'000
Payable:
on bank loans, overdraft and other loans repayable within five years 229 287
on finance liabilities 295 26
524 383
Receivable {49} {29}
475 354
4. Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging or (crediting) the following:
1995 1994
£600 £000
Depreciation 2,436 2,224
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets . (255} (165}
Auditors remuneration:
Audit 79 76
Cther services 62 65
Hire of plant and machinery 33 38
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. Staff numbers and costs
The average number of persons employed by the Group, including directors, during the year was as follows:

1995 1994
No. No.
Management and administration 298 262
Production and sales staff 1,274 1,155
1,572 1417

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
1985 1994
£°000 £000
Wages and salaries 23,819 21,249
Social security costs 2,189 1,991
Pensions and other costs 435 484

26,443 23,704

As explained in the accounting policies set out on page 24 the Group operates both a defined contribution and 2
defined benefit pension scheme.

The schemes’ funds are administrated by trustees and are independent of the Group's finances. As at 1st July 1992 the
directors were advised by the scheme’s actuaries that the defined benefit scheme was adeguately funded.
Contributions are paid to the schemes in accordance with the recommendations of independent actuaries. Current
funding rates for the Group are 7% for the defined benefit scheme and 5% for the defined contribution scheme.

6. Directors’ remuneration
The amount of directors’ remuneration payable during the year was as follows:

1995 1994

£000 £'000

Fees 23 10
Salary 445 381
Cther emoluments 432 26
Pension contributions 35 56
Performance related incentive payments 119 19
665 492

The executive directors are paid basic salaries and can also earn an incentive payment based on achievernent of profit
targets. :
The emoluments of the Chairman and the highest paid director were as follows:

1995 1994
£000 £°000
Chairman
Salary 105 70
Car and other benefits 10 7
Performance related incentive ‘ 45 10
Pension contributions 15 36
Salary arrears in raspect of earlier years 10 -
Amounts contributed by GWR Group PLC and Classic FM PLC (70} (46}
115 77
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6. Directors’ remuneration {continued)

1985 1994
£'000 £°600

Highest paid director
Salary 105 a5
Car and other benefits 12 5
Performance related incentive 53 15
Pension contributions 10 6
Salary arrears in respect of earlier years 16 10
196 121

Directors’ emoluments, excluding pension contributions and including the Chairman and the highest paid director were
within the following ranges:

1995 1994
No. No.
£Nil - £5,000 - 1
£10,001 - £15,000 2 1
£25,001 - £30,000 1 -
£40,001 - £45,000 1 1
£65,001 - £70,000 - 1
£70,001 - £75,000 1 -
£80,001 - £85,000 - 1
£95,001 - £100,000 1 1
£100,001 - £105,000 1 -
£110,601 - £115,000 - 1
£185,001 - £180,060 1 -
8 7
7. Taxation
The Group provision for taxation, based on profits for the year, comprises:
1895 1994
£000 £7000
Corporation tax at 33% 1,046 796
Cverseas taxation 116 42
Deferred taxation 150 49
1312 878
8. Profit for the financial year
1995 1994
£000 £'000
Dealt with in the finandial statements of the company 1,162 237
Retained by subsidiaries 1,380 1,334
2,482 1,571
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ASPER

9, Dividends
1985 1994
£000 £000
interim ordinary dividend paid during the year (2.5p per share} 350 301
Proposed final crdinary dividend at 31st December 1995 (3.75p per share) 568 447
918 748

10. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated on the profit on ordinary activities after taxation and minority interests on 14,163,724
5p ordinary shares, being the weighted average number of shares in issue throughout 1995 (1994: 13,621,034).
Fully diluted earnings per share are not materially different from earnings per share as disclosed.

11. intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets comprise publishing rights and titles.

£'000
At st January 1995 and 31st December 1995 844
12. Tangible fixed assets
Properties  Plant and Motor

Freehold leasehold equipment vehicles Total
The Group £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 1st January 1995 1.541 2,668 18,387 1,663 24,257
Additions 3 536 6,329 503 7.371
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking - 73 1.077 67 1,217
Disposals (344) {53) (737) {359) {1,493)
Currency - 8 24 - 32
At 31st December 1955 1,200 3,230 25,080 1.874 31.384
Depreciation
At 1st January 1995 - 268 11,402 848 13,118
Charge for the year - 280 1.817 339 2,436
Acqguisition of subsidiary undertaking - 3 369 25 397
Released on disposal - {28) (633) (248) {809}
Currency - 6 14 - 20
At 31st December 1995 - 1,129 12,969 9264 15,062
Net book value 1995 1,260 2101 12,111 210 16,322
Net book value 1994 1,541 1,798 6,985 815 11,139

The net book vaiue of plant and equipment at 31st December 1995 includes £5,859,000 (1994:£2,161,000) in respect of
assets held under finance leases and hire purchase agreements. The depreciation thereon was £569,000 (1994:£319,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12. Tangible fixed assets {continued)

Properties  Plant and Motor
Freehold Leasehold equipment vehicles Total
The Company £000 £000 £000 £000 £°000
Cost
At 1st January 1995 117 68 368 177 730
Additions - - 9 88 97
Disposals - - - (38} {38)
Intercompany transfer - - - 21 21
At 315t December 1995 117 68 377 248 810
Depreciation
At 1st January 1985 - 48 31 117 476
Charge for the year - 8 21 22 51
Released on disposal - - - (1) (19)
Intercompany transfer - - . 4 4
At 31st December 1995 - 56 332 124 512
Net book value 1995 17 12 45 124 298
Net book value 1994 117 20 57 60 254
Future capital expenditure
Amounts not provided for in the financial statements
1995 1994
£600 £'0060
Authorised and committed 700 2,907
Authorised but not committed - 766
7060 3,673
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Notes to the Financial Statements

13. Investments

Company
1995 19894
£°000 £000
Cost of subsidiary undertakings 33,648 31,505

The Company's principal trading subsidiary undertakings are as follows. The country of registration or incorporation is
England and Wales unless otherwise stated.

Name of company Country of Proportion
registration  of sharehoiding
{or incorporation) %

and operation

Aspen Business Communications PLC 100
Spafax Airline Network Limited 100
London Post Limited 100
Crystal Film & Video Limited : 86
GP Film Services Limited 80
Aspen Specialist Media PLC 100
Cleartone Telecoms PLC 100
Pensord Press Limited 100
Aspen Preprint Limited 100
Heaneor Gate Primting Limited 100
Aspen Field Marketing Limited 100
Aspen Direct Limited 100
Aspen Insurance Services PLC 100
Aspen Veenhuizen Direct BV Netherlands 89
14, Stocks ,

1995 1994

£000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 1,658 1,277
Work in progress 2,364 2,139
Finished goods 2,035 1,784

6,058 5,200
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15. Debtors
Group Company
1995 1994 1995 1994
£0600 £00G £000 £0C0
Due within cne year:
Trade debtors 17,291 13,638 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 13,172 7,538
Other debtors 2,630 3,327 178 374
Prepayments and accrued income 2,070 1,571 319 290
21,991 18,538 13,669 8,602
Due after more than one year:
Other debtors 3,040 1,431 - -
Total debtors 25,031 19,967 13,669 8,602

16. Cash at bank
Cash at bank includes £932,000 relating to an insurance broking account maintained by one of the Company’s
subsidiary undertakings.

17. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company

1995 1994 1995 1994

£000 £'000 £000 £000

Bank overdrafts - - 1,530 2,674
Unsecured bank loans 1,500 1,000 1.500 1,000
Trade creditors 18,884 15,785 - -

Amourits owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 12,654 7,371
Corporation tax 1.320 1,167 {110} 3
Other taxes and social security 2,234 2,038 15 {2)

Accruals 6,022 3,894 1.212 77
Finance liabiities 1,601 797 53 22
Proposed dividend 568 447 568 447
32,129 25,128 17,422 12,286
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18. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company
1995 1994 1995 1984
£000 £000 £'000 £000
Other loans 41 69 - -
Finance liabilities 3,331 969 10 28
3,372 1,038 10 28
Analysis of loan repayments:
Other loans
Between one and two years 41 69 - -
Between two and five years - - - -
41 69 - -
Finance liabilities
Between one and two years 1,251 738 10 22
Between two and five years 2,080 234 6
3,331 969 10 28
19. Deferred income
Movements during the year on regional development grants were:
£000
AL 1st January 1995 100
Released to profit and loss account, {43)
At 31st December 1995 57
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20. Deferred taxation
Movements during the year were:

Group Company

£'000 £000
At st January 1995 631 (112)
Charged to profit and loss account 150 -
Advance corporation tax recoverable (30) {30)
Arising on acquisition of subsidiary undertaking 77 -
At 31st December 1995 823 (142)

The amoeunts provided for deferred taxation calculated under the Hability method at 33% (1994:33%) are as follows:

Group Company
1995 1994 1995 1994
£'000 £'000 £000 £600
Capital allowances and other timing differences 970 743 - -
Advance corporation tax (142) {112} {142} (112}
828 621 {i42) {112)

The above represents the provision for deferred taxation to the extent that it is probable that an actual liability will
crystallise. The following amount of deferred taxation has not been provided as the directors do not consider that the
liability will arise in the foreseeable future:

Group Company
1995 1994 1895 1594
£000 £000 £000 £000
Capital allowances and other timing differences 337 86 - -
Roil over relief on disposal of properties 163 145 163 145
500 231 163 145
21, Minority interest

Movements during the year were:
£'000
At st January 1995 230
Minority share in profits for the financial year {55)
Dividends paid {77
Minority share of net assets of subsidiary undertaking acquired during the year 88
Minority interest purchased during the year (62)
At 31st December 1995 124

Minority interests relate sciely to interests in the equity of subsidiary undertakings.
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22. Called up share capital

A S P E R

Authaorised 1995 1994
£'000 £000
20,000,000 ordinary shares of 5p each 1,000 1,000
Issued
Aliotted, called up and fully paid 14,969,341 (1954: 13,977,930}
ordinary shares of 5p each 748 £99
Movements in share capital during the year were: No. shares
£'000 000
At 1st lanuary 1995 699 13,978
Shares issued on acquisition of subsidiary undertaking 15 304
Shares issued on acquisition of minority interest 3 633
Share options exercised 3 54
At 31st December 1995 748 14,969

Under the terms of the Executive and Staff Share Option Schemes, options to subscribe for the Company’s shares have
been granted to employees, including directors, as shown below. The options are exercisable not earlier than three
years nor fater than ten years from the date of grant. The total options issued under the schemes and outstanding at

31st December 1995 were as follows:

Year of grant No. of shares

outstanding
1987 11,250
1988 4,250
1988 17,250
199¢ 237,300
1991 346,650
1892 48,750
1994 35,000
1995 132,000

23. Share premium account
Movements in share premium during the year were:

At 1st January 1995
Arising on shares issued in the year (net of expenses)

Option price

358p

436p - 514p
375p-483p
168p

85 - 100p
l4p

145p - 170p
220p - 245p

Exercise
period
1990 - 1997
1991 - 1998
1992 - 1999
1993 - 2000
1994 - 2001
1995 - 2002
1997 - 2004
1968 - 2005

£000

4,007
639

At 31st December 1995

4,646
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24, Merger reserve

Statements

Group Company

£000 £'000

At 1st January 1995 - 22,412
Premium on shares issued 1,293 1,293
Goedwill arising on acquisitions (Note 28) (1,293) -
At 31st December 1995 - 23,705

Merger relief has been applied during the year on the acquisition of the remaining minority interest in Spafax Airline

Network Limited,

25, Profit and loss account

Group Company

£000 £000

At 1st January 1995 7,875 1,053
Retained profit for the year i,564 184
Goodwill written off {1.125) -
Currency adjustment {(27) -
At 31st December 1995 8,287 1,237

The cumulative amount of goodwill resuiting frorn acquisitions in the current and earlier financial years which has been
written off is £28,004,000 {1994:£25,586,000). Of this amount £23,705,000 has been written off against merger

reserve.

26. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Group Company
1995 1994 1995 1894
£000 £000 £000 £000
Profit for the finandial year 2,482 1,571 1,102 237
Dividends {918) {748} {918} (748)
1,564 823 184 (511)
Currency adjustment (7 2 - -
Goodwill written off during the year {1.125) {115} - -
Premium on shares issued taken to merger reserve 1,293 - 1,283 -
Goodwill arising written off against merger reserve (1,293) - - -
Shares issued 688 621 638 521
1,100 1,331 2,165 110
Shareholders’ funds at 1st January 12,581 11,250 28,171 28,061
Shareholders’ funds at 31st December 13,681 12,581 30,336 28,171
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27. Operating lease commitments
At 31st December 1995 the Group had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating Jeases as follows:

Land and
buildings Other
£000 £'000
Qperating leases which expire:
Within one year 142 379
In the second to fifth years inclusive 399 263
Over five years 934 9

The majority of leases of land and buildings are subject to periodic rent reviews every four or five years.

28. Purchase of subsidiary undertaking and minority interest
Details of the net assets of GP Film Services Limited, 80% of which was acquired during the year, are as follows:

£000
Tangibie fixed assets 820
Stock 33
Debtors 276
Cash 1
Creditors (557)
Hire purchase facilities (254)
Net assets 319
Minority interest (88)
Net assets acquired 231
Consideration, including costs
Cash 39
Shares issued - 640
Total consideration 679
Goodwill arising on acquisition 443
Purchase of minority interest:
Cash consideration 403
Shares issued 1,325
tess: Goodwill arising written off against merger reserve {1,283)
Less: Minority interest acquired (62)
Goodwill arising on purchase of minority interest 373
Other costs incurred during the year 304
Total goodwill written off 1,125

GP Film Services Limited contributed profit before taxation of £40,000 in the post acquisition period ended 31st December
1995 and generated profits before taxation of £191,000 in the fourteen month period ended 31st December 1395,
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29. Net cash inflow from operating activities
The reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities of the Group may be summarised as

follows:

1995 1994

£000 £000
Operating profit before interest 4,180 2,691
Depreciation 2,436 2,224
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets {96) 71}
Costs of closure of terminated activities (221) -
Release of regional development grants - {43) (50)
Currency adjustment (39} 27
{Increase) in stocks (825) (602)
{Incraase) in debtors {4,945) (1,791)
Increase in creditors 4,866 4,386
Net cash inflow from operating activities 5313 6,814 )

30. Anaiysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the purchase of subsidiary undertaking
and minority interest

£000
Cash consideration 39
Cash acquired 1
Net outflow of cash arising from acquisition 38
Cash consideration relating to purchase of minority interest 403
Qther costs paid 147
Costs arising on issue of shares to purchase subsidiary and minority,
netted against share premium account 44
Net outflow of cash 632
31. Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents

£000
Cash balance
As at 1st January 1994 2,086
Net cash inflow 472
Balance at 1st January 1995 2,558
Net cash outflow (622)
Balance at 31st December 1995 1,936
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32. Analysis of changes in financing

Share
capital Loans and
including finance
premium  liabilities
£000 £000
As at ist January 1994 4,085 4,484
tssue of shares for cash {net of expenses) 71
lssue of shares on acquisition of subsidiary undertaking 550
Unsecured loan repayment {2,000}
Repayment of amounts borrowed {102)
Hire purchase facilities received on acquisition 40
Hire purchase facilities received 1,112
Capital eiements‘of finance Habilities (639}
Balance at 31st Becember 1994 4,708 2,835
Issue of shares for cash {net of expenses} 60
Issue of shares on acquisition of subsidiary undertaking
and minority interest 628
Unsecured loan receipt 500
Repayment of amounts borrowed (28)
Hire purchase facilities received on acquisition 254
Hire purchase facilities received 4,052
Capital elements of finance labilities {1,149)
Balance at 31st December 1995 5,394 6,473
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33. Contingent liabilities

{a) The Company has guaranteed a letter of credit and loan
fadility available to a subsidiary undertaking, the amount
outstanding under which at 31st December 1995 was
£1,387,000 {1994: £3,263,172).

(b) Additional consideration may be due to the vendor of
Aspen Veenhuizen Direct BV, a company acquired in 1992.
The maximum payrment that may be made is £440,000.
The vendor who left the company at the beginning of
1893, is claiming payment of the maximum sum. The
directors do not believe that the maximum sum is payable
and intend to defend the claim vigorously.

(<

~—

Additional consideration may be due to the vendors of
Aspen Litharne Publishing Limited, a company acquired in
1994. Any such additional payments are based upon the
trading results of the company in each of the years ending
31st July 1995 and 31st July 1996 respectively and cannot
exceed £1.3 million in aggregate.

(d} Additional consideration may also be due to the vendors
of the minority shareholding in Spafax Airline Network
Limited which was acquired during the year. The maximum
additional consideration which may become payable is
£1,800,000 based on profits earned by the company in the
year ended 31st December 1995 and the year ending 31st
December 1996 and assuming that an option is exercised
by the vendors to extend the eam-out peried to include
the year ending 31st December 1997,

34, Post balance sheet events

On 17th February 1996 the premises and plant of Pensord
Press Limited were substantially damaged by fire. The
company is fully covered by insurance for material damage
and for business interruption for a period of twelve months.
However, the impact of the insurance claim on the profits
and assets of the company cannot yet be established.

Cn 15th March 1996 the company acquired 70% of the issued
share capital of http://www. Limited, 2 supplier of internet
services, for a sum of £450,000 satisfied by the issue of
166,482 ordinary shares of 5p each,
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

and Report of the Auditors

Statement of direciors’ responsiblities

Company law reguires the Board of directors to prepare

financial statements for each financial year which give a true

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the

Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In

preparing those financial statements, the Board are required

to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

« state whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
expiained in the financial statements;

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will
continue in business.

The Board are responsible for keeping proper accounting

records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the Company and to enable it to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the

Companies Act 1985. The Board has a generai responsibility for

taking such steps as are reasonably open to it to safeguard the

assets of the Group and t¢ prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

Report of the auditors to the members of Aspen
Communications PLC
We have audited the financial statements ¢n pages 20 to 40.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described above the Company's directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements. It is our
responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those statemeh‘rs and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
inciudes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances, consistently
applied and adequate[y disciosed.

We planned and performed our audit s¢ as to cbtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the finandal
statements,

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and the Group at
31st December 1995 and of the profit of the Group for the year
then ended, and have been prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985.

KPMG

Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditors
Welsh Street Chambers
Chepstow

Gwent

NP6 5LN

16th April 1996
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Financial Record

1991 1992 1993 1294 1995

£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Trading results
Turnover 55,628 60,261 64,215 69,910 80,066
QOperating profit before exceptional items 2,583 2,876 1,630 2,691 4,180
Exceptional items (440) (510} (1,123) 165 34
Operating profit after exceptional items 2,143 2,366 507 2,856 4,214
Net interest payable {440} {539) {350} (354} {475}
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,703 1,827 157 2,502 3,739
Taxation {600) {640) {511) (878) {1.312)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 1,103 1,187 (354} 1,624 2,427
Minority interests {62} (76) (2} {53} 55
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 1,041 1111 (356) 1,571 2,482
Dividends (635) (635) (866) (748) {918)
Profit/(loss) retained for the year 406 476 (1,022) 823 1,564
Capital employed
Fixed assets 11,534 11,276 10,373 11,983 17,166
Net current assets 936 2,624 3,712 2,597 896
Other liabilities (2,077) (3,398) {2,835) (1,999) {4.381)
Shareholders’ funds 10,383 10,502 11,250 12,581 13,681
Statistics
Earnings per share {p) 8.0 8.6 (2.6} 11.5 17.5
Dividends per share {p} 4.8 4.9 4.9 5.35 6.25

The financial record for 191 and 1992 has been restated to comply with the requirements of FRS 3.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 1996 Annual General Meeting
will be held at the offices of NatWest Wood Mackenzie & Co.
Limited, 135 Bishopsgate, London EC2M 3XT on Wednesday
29th May 1896 at 10.30 am to transact the following business:-

Crdinary Business

1. To receive and adopt the directors’ report and audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st December
1995,

2. To declare a final dividend.

3. To re-elect as a direcior of the Company Mr N F Worgan
who is retiring by rotation.

4. To reelect as a director of the Company Mr M A Rogers
who is seeking re-election having been appointed by the
Directors during the year.

5. Te consider and, if thought fit, 10 pass the following
resolution which will be proposed as an ordinary
resolution:-

That KPMG Audit Pic be and are hereby appointed auditors of
the Company to hold office from the condlusion of this
meeting until the conclusion of the next general meeting at
which accounts are laid before the company at a remuneration
to be fixed by the directors.’

Special Business

To consider as special business and, if thought fit, to pass the
following resolutions each of which will be proposed as a
special resolution:-

6. That the Company be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised to make market purchases
{within the meaning of Section 163(3) of the Companies
Act 1985) of its own ordinary shaves on a recognised
investment exchange of up to an aggregate of 1,496,900
ordinary shares of 5p each at a price per ordinary share
which is {i} not more than 105 per cent of the average of
the middle market quotations in respect of the Company's
ordinary shares for the ten business days immediately
preceding the day of purchase and (i) not less than 5p
{exclusive in each case of expenses and advance
corperation tax (if any} payable by the Company) and
otherwise on such terms and in such manner as the
directors may from time to time determine provided that
this resolution shall unless previously varied, revoked or
renewed expire on 29th August 1287 except in relation to a

purchase of shares the contract for which shall have been
made before that time and this authority shall replace the
authority conferred by the spedial resolution to the like
effect passed on 1st June 1995 the latter being hereby
revoked.

. That the directors be and are hereby generally and

unconditionally authorised to exercise all the powers of the
Company to allot refevant securities {within the meaning of
Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985) up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £250,000 during the pericd
commencing on the date of the passing of this resolution
and expiring at the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company in 1997, save that the Company
may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which
would or might require relevant securities to be allotted
after such expiry and the directors may allot relevent
securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the
authority conferred hereby had not expired.

. That subject to the passing of the previous resolution, the

directors be and are hereby generally authorised and
empowered pursuant to Section 95 of the Companies Act
1985 (including any modification or re-enactment therecf
for the time being in force} during the period expiring at
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company in 1997 to allot equity securities {as defined in
Section 94 of the said Act) pursuant to the authority
conferred on them from time to time as ¥ sub-section (1) of
Section 8% of the said Act did not apply thereto, and to
make any offer or agreement during such period which
would or might require such securities to be allotted after
the expiry of such period and to implement the same
provided that this power shall be limited to the allotment
of equity securitias:-

{a) pursuant to a rights issue made in accordance with
Secticns 89 and 90 of the said Act save only that the
Directors shall have the right:-

(i) to make such exclusions or other arrangements as they
deem necessary or expadient to deal with any problems
which may arise in relation to such rights issue under the
laws of any territory or the requirements of any regulatory
body or stock exchange authority in any territory;

{il) to offer equity securities to persons holding equity
securities other than ordinary shares on the basis of their
rights to receive such offer; and

{iii) to aggregate and sell for the benefit of the Company

equity securities representing fractional entitlements which
may arise pursuant to the rights issue;
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(b} otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (a) above,
up to an aggregate neminal amount of £37,500,

Notes

1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to

9. That the regulations contained in the document submitted appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and, on a poll, to vote
to the meeting and for the purpose of identification signad instead of him or her. A proxy need not be a member of
by the Chairman of the meeting be and are hereby the Company and the appointment of a proxy will not
approved and adopted as the Articles of Association of the preclude a member from attending and voting at the
Company in substitution for and to the exclusion of all meeting. A form of proxy is enclosed for this purpose.
existing Articles of the Company.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy, together with the

10. That the Aspen Communications PLC 1996 Executive Share power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it

Option Scheme, the main features of which are is signed {or a duly certified copy of such power or

summarised in the accompanying letter from the authority) must be lodged with the Company’s Registrars

Chairman, in the form of the rules produced in draft to the not later than 48 hours before the time for holding the

meeting and signed by the Chairman for the purposes of meeting.

identification, be and the same are hereby approved and

the directors be and they are hereby authorised to do all 3. The register of directors’ shareholdings and a copy of all

acts and things as may be necessary to carry the same into service contracts with directors of the Company will be

effect. available for inspection at the registered office of the

Company during normal business hours until the date of

11. That: the meeting and also at the place of the meeting for at

(i) Rules 8.1(b}, 6.1{c) and 6.1(d} of the Aspen
Communications PLC 1995 Executive Share Option Scheme
be and they are hereby deleted; and

{ii} Rule 4(b) of the Aspen Communications PLC Staff Share
Qption Scheme be and it is hereby deleted and that the
following be substituted in its place:-

least 15 minutes prior to and during the meeting.

Registered Office: Aspen House, Thomas Street, Cirencester,
Gloucestershire GL7 2AX

“The maximum number of shares which may be placed under
option for subscription under this Scheme, when added to the
number of shares placed under option for subscription, or
issued otherwise than in pursuance of options in the preceding
ten years under any other employees’ share scheme adopted
by the Company or any other company when it is under the
Company's contrel, shall not exceed ten per cent (10%) of the
Company's issued ordinary share capital for the time being.”

and that the directors be and they are hereby authorised to
make all incidental amendments to the said rules and to do
all acts and things as may be necessary to carry the same
into effect.

By Order of the Board
M A Rogers, Secretary
16th April 1996
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 1994 Annual General Meeting witl be held at
the offices of NatWest Wood Mackenzie & Co. Limited, 135 Bishopsgate,
London EC2M 3XT on Friday 27th May at 10.30 am to transact the following
business:

1. To receive and adopt the directors’ report and audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 1593.

2. To declare a final dividend.

3. To reelect as a director of the Company MrE. A. R. Balding who is
tetiring by rotation.

4. 7o reelect as a director of the Company M [, Vinall who is seeking
re-efection having been appeinted by the Directors during the year.

S.  To reelect as a director of the Company Mr J. Salmon who is seeking
re-election having been appointed by the Directors during the year.

6. To re-appoint KPMG Peat Marwick as auditors of the Company and to
authorise the directors 1o fix their remuneration.

7. To consider as special business and, if thought fit, to pass the
feilowing resolutions each of which will be proposed as a special
resolution:-

{A) That the Compary be and is hereby generally and uncenditicnally
authorised to make market purchases (within the meaning of Section 163(3)
of the Companies Act 1985) of its own ordinary shares on a recognised
investment exchange of up to an aggregate of 1,358,700 ordinary shares of
Sp each at a price per ordinary share which is (i} not more than 105 per cent
of the average of the middle market quotations in respect of the Company's
ordinary shares for the ten business days immediately preceding the day of
purchase and (if) not less than 5p (exclusive in each case of expenses and
advance corporation tax (if any) payable by the Company) and otherwise on
such terms and in such manner as the directors may from tite to time
determine provided that this resolution shall unless previously varied,
revoked or renewed expire on 26th August 1995 except in refation to a
purchase of shares the contract for which shall have been made before that
time and this authority shall replace the authority conferred by the special
resolution to the like effect passed on 27th May 1993, the latter being
hereby revoked,

(B} That the directors be and are hereby generally authorised and
empowered pursuant to Section 95 of the Companies Act 1985 (including
any modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force} during
the period expiring at the conclusion of the Annual Genesal Meeting of the
Company in 1995 to allot equity securities {as defined in Section 94 of the
said Act) pursuant to the authority conferred on them from time to time as if
sub-section (1) of Section 82 of the said Act did not apply thereto, and to
make any offer or agreement during suck period which would or might
require such securities to be allotted after the expiry of such period and to
implement the same provided that this power sha!l be limited to the
allotment of equity securities:
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(&) pursuant to a rights issue made in accordance with Sections 89 and 90
of the said Act save only that the directors shall have the right:-

{i} 1o make such exclusions or other arrangements as they deem
necessary or expedient to deal with any problems which may arise in relation
to such rights issue under the laws of any territory or the requirements of
any regulatory body or Stock Exchange in any territory;

()  to offer equity securities to persons holding equity securities other than
ordinary shares on the basis of their rights to receive such offer; and

(iti) to aggregate and sell for the benefit of the Company equity securities
representing fractionat entitlements which may arise pursuant to the rights
issue;

(b} otherwise than pursuant to sub paragraph (a) above up 1o an aggregate
nominal amount equal to 5 per cent of the nominal amount at the relevant
time of the Company's issued share capital.

By Order of the Board
A.J. McRae, Secretary
23rd March 1994

Notes

1. Amember entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a Proxy or
proxies to attend and, on a polk, to vote instead of him or her. A proxy need
not be a member of the Company and the appointrment of a proxy will not
preclude a member from attending and voting at the meeting. A form of proxy
is enclosed for this purpose.

2. The instrurnent appointing a proxy, together with the power of attomey
or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified or
office copy of such power or authority must be lodged with the Company's
Registrars not later than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

3. The register of directors” shareholdings and a copy of all service
contracts with directors of the Company will be available for inspection at the
registered office of the Company during normal business hours until

the date of the meeting and also at the place of the meeting for at least

15 minutes prior to and during the meeting.

Registered Office: Aspen House, Thomas Street, Cirencester,
Gloucestershire GLT 2AX



Financial Record

1989 1990 1991 1992 1993
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
rading results
urnover 58,715 62,761 55,628 50,261 64,215
perating profit before exceptional itemns 6,170 4,865 2,583 2,876 1,630
ceptional items - 378 440 510 600
perating profit 6,170 4,487 2,143 2,366 1,030
et interest payable 165 383 440 539 350
estructuring and closure costs o77 1,003 - - 523
rofit on ordinary activities before taxation 5,028 3,101 1,703 1,827 157
axation 1,699 1,021 600 840 511
rofit/(Loss) on ordinary activities
after taxation 3,329 2,080 1,103 1,187 (354)
inotity inierests 60 32 62 7% 2
rofit/(Loss) on ordinary activities
after taxation and minority interests 3,269 2,048 1,041 1,141 {356)
ividends 987 1,048 635 635 666
etained Profit/(Loss) 2,282 1,000 408 478 (1,022)
apital employed
ixed assets 11,601 11,837 11,6534 11,276 10,373
et current assets 3,681 1,060 936 2,624 3,712
ther liabilities (2,614) (4,704) {2,077} (3,398) {2,835)
hareholders’ funds 12,668 11,183 10,393 10,502 11,250
tatistics
Earnings/(Loss) per share {p) 27.4 16.0 8.0 8.6 (2.6)
Dividends per share (p) 7.8 8.1 4,9 4.9 4.9

he financial record has been restated to comply with the requirements of FRS 3 'Reporting Financial

Performance’.
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Report of the Auditors

fo the members of Aspen Communications PLC
We have audited the financial statements on pages 18 to 29

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described on page 16 the company's directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements. It is our responsibility to form
an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and 1o
report our opinion to you,

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by
the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence refevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It aiso includes an assessment of the significant estimates

and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
Statements.

Opinion

In qur opinien, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and the group at 315t December 1993 and the
loss of the group for the year then ended, and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,

KPMG Peat Marwick
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditors
Welsh Street Chambers
Chepstow

Gwent,

NP6 SLN

23rd March 1994
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Financial Calendar

Annual General Meeting

Dividend record date

Final dividend payment

Interim results announced

Interim dividend payment

Preliminary annocuncement of final 1994 results

1994 report and financial statements despatched
to shareholders

27th May 1994
20th May 1994
17th June 1994
September 1994
October 1994
March 1895

May 1995



6. Contingent liabilities
a} The Company has guaranteed a letter of credit and foan facility available

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

29. Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
purchase of subsidiary undertaking

0 a subsidiary undertaking. The amount outstanding at 31st December 1883 1393
as £362,689 (1992: £0,000). £000
Cash consideration 24
b) Additienal consideration may be due to the vendor of Veenhuizen Reclame Bank overdraft acquired (13}
V, a company acquired in 1292. The maximurn payment that may be made is
440,000. Net outflow of cash arising from acquisition 107
e vendor, who left the company at the beginning of 1893, is ¢laiming QOther acquisition costs 422
payment of the maximum sum. The directors do not believe that the maximum
um is payable and intend to defend the claim vigorously. Net outfiow of cash 529
30. Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents
27. Purchase of subsidiary undertaking .
Details of the net assets of Broker Forms & Print Limited, 20% of which was Cash balance £000
acquired during the year are as follows: As at 1st January 1992 1.003
E500 Net cash inflow 407
angible fixed assets 62
19 Balance at 31st December 1992 1,410
123 Net cash inflow 675
{13)
(293) Balance at 315t December 1993 2,086
Net liabilities (102}
Minority interest 16 31. Analysis of changes in financing
Share capital Loans and
Net habilities acquired (86) including premium finance lisbilities
Consideration, including costs 94 £000 £000
As at Ast January 1992 2,985 4,710
Goodwill arising on acquisition 180 Repayment of amounts borrowed - {142)
Hire Purchase facifities received - 427
Other costs incurred durtng the year 422 Capital etement of finance liabilities - 483)
Total goodwill written oft 602 Balance as at 31st December 1992 2,985 4,512
Issue of shares for cash (net of expenses) 1,100 -
The company rade losses before taxation of £7,000 in the period to Unsecured loan repayment - (500)
31st December 1993. Repayment of amounts borrowed - (57)
Hire Purchase facilities received - 932
Capital efement of finance liabilities - 403}
28. Net cash inflow from operating activities
The reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating Balance as at 31st December 1993 4,085 4,484
activities of the group may be summarised as follows:
1993 1992
£000 £000
Qperating profit, before interest 1,000 2,276
Depreciation 2,364 2,362
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets {52) {18)
Retease of regional devefoprnent grants (55} (58}
Currency adjustment 55 208
{Increase)}/Decrease in stocks (2,152) 598
(Increase} in debtors {2,055) (1,157)
Increase in creditors 4,052 428
Net cash infiow from operating activities 3,157 4,832
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

21. Deferred taxation

Movements during the year were: Group  Company

£000 £000
At 1st January 1993 548 (24}
Charged to profit and loss account 61 -
Advance corporation tax recoverable (21 (21)
At 31st December 1993 588 (115)

The amounts provided for deferred taxation calcutated under the liability

method at 33% (1992:33%) are as follows:

Group Compary
1993 1992 1993 1992
£000 £000 £000 £000
Capital allowances and other
timing differences 703 648 - ()
Losses - 6) - (©)
Advance corporation tax (115) 94) (115) (24)
588 548 (115} {94)
The above represents a full provision for deferred taxation except that no
provisior: has been made for the potential taxation liability of £145,000
(1992:£145,000} arising in the Company on roll over relief elaimed on
disposal of certain freehold propetties as the directors consider that no
liability will arise in the foreseeable future.
22, Minority interest
£060
Movements during the year were:
At 1st January 1993 108
Minority share in profits for the financial year 2
Dividends paid 284)
Minority share of net assets of subsidiary undertaking
acquired during the vear (18)
Investrnent by minotity 228
At 315t December 1983 238
23. Called up share capital
1983 1992
Authorised £006 £000
20,000,000 ordinary shares of Sp each 1,000 1,000
Issued
Allotied, called up and fully paid
13,587,000 (1992: 12,940,527) ordinary shares
of 5p each 679 648

On 14th January 1993 the Company issued 646,473 new ordinary shares of

5p each pursuant to a private placing with certain institutions at i73p

per

share, to raise approximately £1.1 million net of expenses, The premium of

£1.067 million, net of expenses, has been credited to Share Premium Account.
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23. Called up share capital continued

Under the terms of the Executive and Staff Share Option Schemes options to
subscribe for the Company's shares have been granted to employees (including
directors) as shown below. The options are excercisable not earlier than three

years nor later than ten years from the date of grant.

Date of Grant No. of Aspen Shares Option Price
1887 38,500 316p - 358p
1988 25,250 436p - B1.4p
1988 32,080 375p - 488p
1990 42,000 100p - 168p
1991 608,150 85p - 100p
1992 - n/a

1993 85,100 114p

24, Profit and Loss Account

Group  Company

£000 E000
At 1st January 1993 7,517 1,461
(Loss)/Profit retained for the year (1,022) 103
Goodwill writter: off (Note 27) (602) -
Curmrency adjustment 46 -
Goodwiil written back (Note 4) 1,226 -
At 31st December 1993 7,165 1,564

The cumulative amount of goodwill resulting from acquisitions in the current

and earlier financial years which has been written off is £25,471,000

{1992: £26,085,000). Of this amount £22,412,000 has been written off

against merger reserve,

25. Qperating lease commitments

At 31st December 1993 the group had annual commitments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

Land and
Buildings
£000

Operating teases which expire:
Within one vear 202
In the second to fifth years inclusive 526
Over five years 506

Cther
£000

313
314

The majority of leases of land and buildings are subject to petiodic rent reviews

every four or five years,



15. Investments continued
The Company has the following trading subsidiary undertakings incorporated in
Great Britain and registered in England and Wales unless otherwise shown.

% held by Company

Aspen Business Communications PLC 100
Spafax Airling Network Limited B85
Spafax Passenger Electronie Entertainment Developments Limited 100
Spafax Airline Network Ing. (USA) 80
Spafax Canada Inc. (Canada) 80
London Post Limited 100
Crysta! Film & Video Limited 93
Aspen Specialist Media PLC 100
Cleartone Telecoms PLC 100
Pensord Press Limited 160
Aspen Preprint Limited 100
ACT (Computerproof) Limited 100
Heanor Gate Printing Limited 100
Aspen Field Marketing Limited 100
Marketing Direction Limited 100
Aspen Direct Limited 100
Aspen Insurance Brokers Limited 100
Datascope Marketing Limited 100
Aspen Veenhuizen Direct BV (Netheriands) 92
Broker Forms & Print Limited 20
US Leisure Limited 5%
Tri County Leisure (Florida} [nc. (USA) 76

The shareholdings in Spafax Passenger Electronic Entertainment Developments
Limited, Spafax Airline Network Inc. and Spafax Canada Iac. are held via the
Company's shareholding in Spafax Aitline Network Limited.

16. Stocks
Group

1993 1992
£000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 852 771
Work in progress 1,617 569
Finished gocds 1,838 7986
4,367 2,136

17. Debtors

Group Company
1993 1992 1993 1992
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade debtors 13,954 12,875 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary

undertakings - - 6974 6691
Qther debtors 1,793 1,081 246 131
Prepayments and accrued income 1,530 735 158 21
- 17,277 14691 7,378 6,843

Included in the above amounts is £622,000 due for repayment after more than
one year (1992: £229,000).

L ]

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

18. Creditors
Group Company
1993 1892 1993 1992
£000 £000 E£000 £000
Amounts fafling due within ene year:
Secured term loans 95 134 - -
Bank overdrafts - - 2,170 1,781
Unsecured bank loans 2,000 1,500 2,000 1,500
‘Trade creditors 9,169 8,282 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings  ~ - 3,780 5,822
Corporation tax 666 1,350 472 812
Other taxes and social security 1,578 1,579 40 54
Accruals 5525 2,057 545 467
Finance ligbilities 530 335 2 2
Proposed dividend 395 376 395 376
19,958 15613 9,404 10625
19. Creditors
Group Company
1993 1992 1993 1992
£000 £000 £000 £000
Amounts faliing due after more
than one year:
Secured term loans 76 94 - -
Unsecured bank loans 1,000 2,000 1,000 2,000
Finance liabilities 783 449 ] 8
1,869 2,543 1,006 2,008
Analysis of joan repayments:
Secured term loans
Between one and two years 76 94 - -
Between two and five years - - - -
76 94 - -
Finance liabilities
Between one and two years 408 199 6 8
Between two and five years 375 250 - -
783 449 6 8
The unsecured bank loan is repayable in full by 30th September 1935,
Secured tenn loans are secured by specific fixed charges on certain of the
group’s property, plant and equipment.
20. Deferred income
Movements during the year on regicnal development grants were:
Glp_up
£000
At 1st lanuary 1982 199
Received during the year [
Released to profit and loss account {55)
At 31st December 1993 150
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

12. (Loss)/Earnings per share

{Loss}/Eamings per share are calculated on the profit or loss on ordinary
activities after taxation and minority interests and on 13,563,975 Sp ordinary
shares, being the weighted average number of shares in issue in 1993
(1292: 12,940,527),

An alternative figure for eamings per share is disclosed based on the results
of continuing operations excluding exceptional items. This altemative figure is
intended to demonstrate recurring elements of the resuits of the group aiter
eliminating exceptional items that arose in the year.

Fully diluted earnings per share are not materially different from eamings per
share as disclosed.

13. Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets comprise the following:

1993 1992
£000 £000
Publishing rights and titles 136 -
136 -

On 1st October 1993, one of the company's subsidiaries acquired the title to a
magazine for a cash sum met from the company's own rescurces.

14, Tangible fixed assets

Properties Piant and Motor
Freehcld Leasehold equipment  vehicles Total

The Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1st January 1993 1,534 2,296 16,179 1,561 21,570
Acquisition of subsidiary

undertaking - - ey 10 10¢
Additions =) 357 2,028 268 2,660
Disposals - {172) (1.,226) (289) (1,687)
Currency - (3 (25) (2 (30}
At 31st December 1993 1,540 2478 17,056 1,548 22,622
Depreciation
At 1st January 1992 - 548 10,147 800 11,495
Acquisition of subsidiary

undertaking - - 43 4 47
Charge for the year - 265 1,788 311 2,384
Released on disposal - (172) (1,083) (245) (1,500)
Currency - (U (20) - {21)
At 31st December 1993 - 640 10,875 870 12,385
Net book value 1993 1,540 1,838 6,181 678 10,237
Net book value 1292 1,534 1,748 86,032 761 10,075

The net book value of plant and equipment at 31st December 1893 includes
£1,395,000 (1992: £861,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases
and hire purchase agreements. The depreciation thereon was £2985,000
{1992: £215,000).
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14. Tangible fixed assets continued
Properties Plant and Motor

Freehold Leasehold equipment  vehicles Totat
The Company £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1st January 1993 117 26 332 146 621
Additions - 30 15 - 45
At 31st December 1993 17 56 347 ig6 666
Depreciation
At ist january 1993 - 22 288 104 414
Charge for the year - 15 16 25 57
At 31st December 1993 - 37 304 130 471
Net book value 1993 117 19 43 1e 195
Net book value 1692 117 4 44 42 207
Future capital expenditure
Amounts not provided for in the group accounts 1993 1992
E0DO  £000
Authorised and committed 165 50
Authorised but not committed 195 330
360 380
15. Investments
Group Company
1993 1592 1993 1992
£000 £600 £000 £000
Associated undersaking - 793 - 459
Cost of subsidiary undertakings - - 30,738 31,465
Other investment - 408 - 408

t

1,201 30,738 32,332

In April 1993, the company disposed of its associated undertaking investment
for a sum of £1.902 million net of costs, realising a gain of £1.098 million (see
note 3).

Group
1993 1992
Associated undertaking comprises: £000 £Q0C
Investment in shares at cost - 459
Share of retained profits - 334
- 793

In 1992 the other investrnent comprised a controlling interest in a US
incorporated company. Since 1st January 1993, further shares have been
acquired and the company has commenced trading. In consequence, the
investment is now included within cost of subsidiary undertakings.



Notes to the Financial Statements continued

6. Profit on ordinary activities before taxation b 8, Emoluments of directors eontinued
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging or (crediting} Directors emoluments were within the following ranges:
the following: No. Ko,
1993 1992 Up to £5,000 1 1
£000 £000 £55,001 - £60,000 - 1
Directors’ remuneration 416 335 £60,001 - £65,000 i -
Depreciation 2,364 2,362 £65,001 - £70,000 1
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets (52) (18) £75,001 - £80,000 % 5
Auditors’ remuneration: £80,001 - £85,000 _ 1
Audit 65 g0 £85,001 - £90,000 1 1
Cther senvices 35 25 £95,001 - £100,000 1 -
Hire of ptant and machinery 127 126
) 5
7. Staff numbers and costs
The average number of persons employed by the group, including directors, i
during the year was as follows: 9. Taxation
1993 1992 The group provision for taxation, based on profits for the year, comprises:
No. No. 1993 1992
Management and administration 207 202 _ £000 £000
Production and sales staff 649 634 Corporation tax at 33% : 396 972
Overseas taxation a4 144
H )
856 836 Deferred taxation at 33% 61 (506}
Share of taxation of associated undertaking 10 30
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
1993 1992 511 640
£000 £000
‘Wages and salaries 17,072 16,233 The high taxation charge arises due to the inability of the group to utilise
Social security costs 1678 1,706 overseas trading losses and surplus capital losses arising in the year.
Pensions and other costs 451 415
19,201 18,354 10. {Loss)/Profit for the financial year
1993 1992
As explained in the accounting policies set out on page 23 the group operates o . £000 £000
both a defined contribution and a defined benefit pension scheme. Dealt with In the financial statements of the Company 769 261
Retained by subsidiaries {1,125) 813
The schemes’ funds are administered by trustees and are independent of the Retained by associated undertaking - 87
group’s finances. As at 1st July 1993 the directors were advised that the defined
benefit scheme was adeguately funded. Contributions are paid to the schemes in (356) 1111
accordance with the recommendations of independent actuaries. Current funding
rates are 14% for the defined benefit scheme and 7% for the defined contribution
scheme 11. Dividends
3 1993 1992
E000 £000
Interim ordinary dividend paid during the year
8. Emoluments of directors (2.0p per share) a71 259
The emoluments of the directors, excluding pension contributions, were as Proposed final ordinary dividend at 345t December 1993
follows: (2.9p per share) 295 376
1993 1992
£ £
Chairman 76,153 75,615 666 635
Highest paid director 98,277 88,776
The emeluments of the highest paid director included £40,000 salary waived
in respect of 1891,
Pension contributions made by the Company in respect of the directors
amounted to £29,179. L
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Analysis of Tumover, Profits and Net Assets
Divisional Analysis Tumover Profit Net Assats

1893 1992 1993 1892 1993 1952
£000  £000  £000  £000 E0O0  £Q00

Specialist Printing 23,531 23,391 573 1,442 7,587 6,870
Marketing Services 19,140 17,733 388 720 2,786 3,263
Media & Communications 20,616 17,351 848 512 3,153 1,538
Management Company - - (170} 94) - -

L ]

2. Cost of sales and operating expenses

Ongoing  Terminated 1993 Ongoing Terminated 1982
activities activity activities activity

£000 000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost of sales 44,804 410 45,214 40,300 734 41,034
Operating Expenses 17,144 857 18,001 15595 1,356 16,951

The total figures for ongoing activities in 1993 include the following amounts

Terminated activity 928 1,786 (339) (304) - 724 relating to acquisitions:
Tumover 64,215 60,261 Cost of sales £207,000 and operating expenses £523,000.
Operating expenses comprise the following:

Operating profit 1,000 2278 1993 1992
Income from associate 20 S0 £000 £000
Non-operating items (523) - Redundancy costs 342 268
Net interest payable (350) (539) Charges for bad and doubtful debts 288 242
Profit before taxation -157 1,827 630 510
Divisional net assets 13,526 12,395 Sales and administrative expenses 17,371 16,441

Less:  Unallocated net debt
Add:  Group share of net assets
of associated undertaking - 334

{2,276) {2,227)

Net Assets 11,250 10,502

Non operating items in the abave analysis inciudes the gain arising on disposal
of the associated undestaking (Note 3] and the loss arising ¢n the terminated
activity (Note 4).

Geographical Analysis Turnover Profit Net Assets

1993 1692 1993 1992 1993 1992

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
UK 55,965 53,001 1,336 2,514 12,763 10,322
Europe 6,215 4,794 176 (55) 592 1,180
USA and Canada 1,107 680 (1v3) 121 171 169
Terminated activity 928 1,786 (339) (304) - 724

64,215 60,261 1,000 2,276 13,526 12,335

The above table shows tumover and operating profit analysed by the destination
to which products and services are supplied.

Operating expenses 18,001 16,951

3. Gain on disposal of associated undertaking

1993 1982
£000 £000
Profit on disposal of associated undertaking 1,098 -

In April 1893, the company disposed of its shareholding in a company with
interests in commercial radio. This shareholding had previously been accounted
for as an associated undertaking (see Note 15).

4. Loss arising on terminated activity

0On 1st October 1993 the group ceased trading at its French subsidiary
undertaking, Aspen Direct Paris. The loss on temmination includes £1.226 million
of goodwill previously written off to reserves on the acquisition of the company in
1989 (see note 24). This amount has no cashflow or net asset impact and has
been added back to retained eamings brought forward.

5. interest payable less receivable

1993 1992
Payable: £000 £000
Geographical Source of Tumover o on bank loans, overdrafi and other loans
Total by Source interdivisional Tumaover .
1993 1982 1983 1992 1993 1983 repayable within five years 298 480
£000 £000 £000  £000 £000  £000 on finance liabilities 94 109
UK 60,799 56,444 1,762 1,894 59,037 54,550 392 589
Europe 4,074 5,040 3 9 4,071 5,031 Receivable (42) (50)
USA and Canada 1,135 869 28 189 1,107 580
350 539

66,008 62,353 1,793 2,092 64,215 60,261
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The principal accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of
the financial statements of the group are described below.

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
accounting rules and in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards.

The accounts comply with the requirements of Financial Reporting Standard
Ne. 3, 'Reporting Financial Performance’. FRS 3 changes, inter alia, the
presentation of financial performance in the profit and loss account. As &
result, tumover and operating profit are now analysed between continuing
and discontinued operations, iterns previously treated as extraordinary are
classified as exceptional and a statement of total recognised gains and
losses has been included together with 2 reconcillation of movement in
shareholders’ funds.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements deal with the state of affairs and
results of the Company and all its subsidiary undertakings including the
group share of the results of its assoclated undertaking.

The results of subsidiary and associated undertakings acquired or disposed
of are included from or until the effective date of acquisition or disposal.
Where merger relief, in accordance with the provisions of Section 131 of the
Companies Act 1985 is applicable, a merger seserve is created and utilised
to write off goodwill. In other instances goodwill is written off against
retained profits.

The Company has taken advantage of Section 230(3) of the Companies Act
1985 and has not presented a profit ang loss account dealing with its own
results.

Tumover
Turnover represents sales to third parties net of retums and allowances and
extiudes vaiue added tax.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of fixed assets on a straight
line basis in equal annual instalments over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Short leasehold property — life of lease
Plant and equipment - 410 10 years
Motor vehicles - dyears

Freehold properties are not depreciated as they are considered to have an
estimated useful life in excess of 50 years, it is group policy to maintain all
buildings in good condition and any depreciation involved would not be
material. Costs of repairs and maintenance which prolong the useful life of
the properties are charged against revenue in the year in which they are
incurred,

Finance leases and hire purchase agreements
Assets acquired under finance leases and hire purchase agreements are
capitalised and depreciated in accordance witk group policy. The

4

Accounting Policies

p corresponding finance liability is included within outstanding finance
liabilities with the relevant interest proportion being charged to profit and
loss account.

Intangible Fixed Assets

Acquired publishing rights and titles are capitalised and classified within the
balance sheet as intangible assets and recarded at cost. Their value is
reviewed annually by the directors and provision is made, where appropriate,
for any permanent diminution in value.

Stocks

Stocks and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In respect of work in progress and finished goods, costs
include alt production everheads and an attributable proportion of indirect
overhead expenses.

Foreign exchange transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling
and recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date and the gains or losses on translation are included in the profit and
loss account.

For consolidation purposes the assets and liabilities and profit and less
accounts of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated at the exchange
rate at the balance sheet date and at average rates of exchange for the year
respectively. Exchange differences arising on these translations are taken to
reserves.

Taxation

Taxation charges are computed at the rates applicable to the financial year
and take into account taxation deferred because of timing differences
between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting
purposes. Provision is made for deferred taxation only 1o the extent that it is
probabte that an actual liability will crystallise.

Pension costs
The group operates defined contribution and defined benefit pension
schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held separately from these of the group in
independently administered funds. The amounts charged against profit for
the defined contribution scheme represent the contributions payable to the
scheme in respect of the accounting period. Contributions to the defined
benefit scheme are charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread
costs of pensions over the employees’ working lives with the group.

AASPEN Report & Accounts 1993
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Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
For the vear ended 315t December

(Loss})/Profit for the financial year

(356) 1,141

Currency translation differences on foreign
currency net investments 46 264
Total recognised gains and losses for the year {310) 1,375

There is no difference between the profit on ordinary activities before taxation and the retained profit/{loss) for
the year stated above, and their historical cost equivalents.

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds
For the year ended 31st December

1993 1992
Note £000 £000
{Loss}/Profit for the financial year (356) 1,111
Dividends (666) (635)
(1,022) 476
Other net recognised gains and losses 46 264
Goodwill written off on acquisition 27 (602) (631)
Goodwill written back on closure 4 1,226 -
Shares issued 23 1,100 -
748 109
Shareholders’ funds at 1st January 10,502 10,393
Shareholders' funds at 31st December 11,250 10,502

£

JASPEN Report & Accounts 1893 The attached notes form part of these financial statements.



Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31st December

1993 1992
£000 £000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 28 3,157 4,639
Returns on investment and servicing of finance
Interest received 42 50
Bank and loan interest paid (289) {480)
Interest element of finance liabilities (94) (93)
Dividend received from associated undertaking 19 23
Dividends paid {647) (544}
Dividends paid to minority interests (84) (59)
Net cash outflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance (1,053} (1,103)
Taxation
Taxation paid (1,155) {326)
Investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (136) -
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (2,660) (1,619)
Purchase of investments - (408)
Purchase of subsidiary undertaking, including costs 29 ({529) 851)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 239 73
Sale of investments 1,902 -
Costs of closure of terminated activity (395) -
Net cash gutflow from investing activities (1,579) (2,605)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow before financing activities (630) 605
Financing
Unsecured loan 31 {500) -
Hire purchase facilities received 31 932 427
Regional development grants received 20 6 -
Repayment of amounts borrowed 31 (57) (242}
Capital elements of finance liabilities 31 (403) (483)
Issue of shares 31 1,100 -
Investment by minority 22 228 -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 1,306 (198)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 30 676 407

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Company Balance Sheet
At 31st December

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 14 195 207

Investments 15 30,738 32,332
30,933 32,539

Current assets

Debtors 17 7,378 8,843

Cash at bank 45 15

7,423 6,858

Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year 18 9,404 10,625

Net current liabilities (1,981) (3,767)

Total assets less current liabilities 28,952 28,772

Creditors

Amounts falling due after more than one year 19 1,006 2,008

Provision for liabilities and charges

Deferred taxation ' 21 (115) (94}

Net assets 28,061, 26,858

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 23 679 846

Share premium account 23 3,406 2,339

Merger reserve 22,412 22,412

Profit and loss account 24 1,564 1,461

Shareholders’ funds 28,061 26,858

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors at a Board Meeting held on
23rd March 1994,

H.P.J. Meakin Director

N.F. Worgan Director

#ASPEN Report & Accounts 1993 The attached notes form part of these financial statements.



Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 31st December

1993 1992
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 13 136 -
Tangible assets 14 10,237 10,075
Investments 15 - 1,201
10,373 11,276
Current assets
Stocks i6 4,307 2,136
Debtors i7 17,277 14,691
Cash at bank 2,086 1,410
23,670 18,237
Creditors
Amounts falling due within one year 18 19,958 15,613
Net current assets 3,712 2,624
Total assets less current liabilities 14,085 13,900
Creditors
Amounts falling due after more than one year 19 1,859 2,543
Deferred income 20 150 199
Provision for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation 21 588 548
Minority interests 22 238 108
Net assets 11,250 10,502
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 23 679 646
Share premium account 23 3,406 2,339
Profit and foss account 24 7,165 7.517
Shareholders’ funds 11,250 10,502

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors at a Board Meeting held on

23rd March 1994.
H.P.J. Meakin Director

N.F. Worgan Director

The attached notes form part of these financial statements

/ASPEN Report & Accounts 1993




#ASPEN Report & Accounts 1993

.

Consolidated Profit & Loss Account
For the year ended 31st December

Before
Exceptional Exceptional
ltems Items 1953 1892
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Turnover on Continuing Operations
Ongoing Activities 61,864 61,864 58,475
Acquisitions 1,423 1,423 -
63,287 63,287 58,475
Terminated Activity 028 928 1,786
Total Turnover 1 64,215 64,215 60,261
Cost of Sales 2 {45,214) (45,214) (41,034
Gross Profit 19,001 19,001 19,227
Operating Expenses 2 (17,371} (630) (18,001) (18,951)
Operating Profit on Continuing Operations 1,630 (630) 1,000 2,276
Ongoing Activities 1,976 (630) 1,346 2,580
Acquisitions (7 - (7) -
1,269 (630) 1,339 2,580
Terminated Activity (339) - (339) (304)
Total Operating Profit 1,630 {630} 1,000 2,276
Share of Profits of Associated Undertaking - 30 30 0
1,630 {600} 1,030 2,366
Gain on Disposal of Associated Undertaking 3 1,098 1,098 -
Loss arising on Terminated Activity 4
Cost of closure {395) (395) -~
Goodwil written off (1,228) (1,226} -
(523) {523) -
Interest (Net) 5 (347) (3} (350) {539)
Profit/(Loss) on Ordinary Activities before
Taxation 13 1,283 (1,128) 157 1,827
Taxation on Profit/(Loss) on Ordinary Activities g (709) 198 (511) (640}
Profit/{Loss} on Ordinary Activities after Taxation 574 (928} {354) 1,187
Minority Interests 22 (2) - (2} (76)
Profit/(Loss) for the Financial Year 10 572 (228} (3586) 1,141
Dividends 11 {666) (635}
{Loss)/Profit Retained for the Year {1,022) 476
(Loss)/Eamings Per Share 12 (2.6p} 8.6p
Adjustment for Exceptional ltems 6.8p 2.6p
Adjusted Eamings per Share 4.2p 11.2p

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.



The directors have been notified of the following interests in the issued
share capital of the Company.

Shareholder No, of shares %
Edinburgh Fund Managers plc 1,846,190 14.3
Friends Provident 855,176 6.3
National Westminster Bank Plc 730,848 5.4
Scottish Amicable Investment Managers 727,839 5.4
Robert Reming Holdings Limited 592,000 4.4
Chase Nominees Limited 540,000 39

The directors have been notified that the interests of Edinburgh Fund
Managers pic and Chase Nominees Limited are non-beneficial and represent
shares held under discretionary management.

Special business

A resolution will be proposed at the Annua! General Meeting to renew the
existing powers of the directors, which expire at that time, to issue equity
securities in certain circumstances and up to a stated limit, other than pro
rata to shareholders.

A further resolution wilt be proposed to authorise the Company te purchase
up to 1,358,700 of its own ordinary shares, representing approximately 10%
of the Company’s existing issued ordinary shares, through market purchases
on a recognised stock exchange. The maximum price to be paid for an
ordinary share purchased pursuant to the authority would be 105 per cent of
the average of the middle market quetations for ordinary shares for the ten
business days immediately preceding the day of purchase and the minimum
price would be Sp being the par value of the shares. Any purchase would
take place within the limits of available reserves.

The board would commence purchasing ordinary shares enly after careful
consideration and in the expectation that it would result in an increase in
expected eamings per share after taking account of other investment
opportunities and the overall financial position of the Company. While the
autharity now sought in the Notice of Annual General Meeting would expire
on 26th August 1995 the intention of the board is to make renewal of the
authority part of the regular business at subsequent Annual General
Meetings.

Fixed assets
Details of the movements in tangible fixed assets during the year are given
in note 14 to the financial statements,

Corporate Governance

The directors have reviewed the requirements of the Code of Best Practice
recommended by the Cadbury Committee on the financial aspects of
Corporate Govemance. Since the company started in 1969 the board has
set out 10 govemn the company to the highest professional standards and in
accordance with the main principles recommended by the Committee.

Tc meet the remaining details of the Code, by 30th June 1994 a schedule of
matters to be considered by the board, together with the procedures for
directors 1o seek independent advice will be agreed, and an audit committee
will be appointed.

AZASPEN COMMUNICATIONS PLC Report & Accounts 1993

Tax status
The directors are advised that the Company is not a ¢lose company as
defined by the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988,

People within the group

Management of the group is devolved 1o its operating companies and our
policy is to support our people by training, carger developrment and
opportunities for promotion. We believe in an open management approach
and close consultation on matters of concem to our staff. Information is
shared on each company's performance which, together with participation in
the company's share aption schemes and application of perfermance related
bonuses, encourage staff involvement. The group's policy provides that
disabled persons, whether registered or nct, shall be considered for
employment, training and career development having regard to their aptitude
and abilities.

Auditors
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG Peat Marwick as auditors of the
Company is 10 be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

A I. McRae
Secretary
23rd March 1994
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debti, a £1.098 milfion gain on the disnosal of the
grou&s’s investment in commercial radio and 2
£4.6R1 million charge on the closure of Aspen
Diredt Paris. Within the latter item is £1.226 million
in respect of goodwill previously written off in 1989,
This charge has no cashflow or rnet asset impact
and is the result of the accounting requirements of
UITF|Abstract No. 3.

Interest

The het interest charge decreased from £539,000
to £850,000 refiecting reduced interest rates and
the Denefit of reduced average borrowings during the

year

Interest cover on operating profits before
exggptional items declined from cover of 5.3 fimes
in 1992 t0 4.7 times in 1993.

Taxiation

The(tax charge for the year of £811,000C reflects the
inahjility to utilise overseas tax losses incurred in
Frarice. The group has sufficient capital iosses
avajlable to cover the gain on disposal of the

invastment in commercial radio, referred to above.

Earnings per Share

Thelioss per share for 1293 was 2.6 pence
coanared 10 eamings per share of 8.6 pence in
1992, Eamings per share adjusted 10 exclude
excgpzionai items amounted {0 4.2 pence against a
pri@ir year comparative of 11.2 pence.

Reiriew of Cashilow and Balance Sheet

Cashflow
Net cash inflows from operating activities during the
year totalied £3.2 million (1892: £4.6 miiiion).

lnvestment in capital assets during 1983 increased
to £2.8 million {1922 £1.6 million). Net disposal

proceeds of £1.9 miliion from the sale of our

AESPEN COMMUNICATIONS PLC Report & Accounts 1993

investment in commercial radio restricted net cash

outflows from investing activities to £1.6 million

(1992: £2.6 million}. The depreciation charge for the

year amounted to £2.4 million {1992 £2.4 million).

At the year end cash borrowings toialled £914,000
representing cash at bank of £2.1 million and
short term loans of £3 million. Cash and cash
equivalent batances improved by £678,000 during
the year.

At the year end, bank and finance facilities totalled
£10 million, of which £8 million represents
committed fines with maturity dates of between one

and two years.

Balance Sheet

Total net assets increased during the year by
£748.000 to £11.3 million due primarily to the
increase in our capital base foilowing the private
placing of shares in January 1993, which raised

approximately £1.1 miliion, net of expenses.

Outstanding debtor days at the year end amounted
t0 68 days sales, a deterioration from the prior year
comparative of 66 days sales. Working capital
increased by £157,000 during the year.

In August 1223 the company purchased the
nublishing rights to the London lifestyle magazine,
Boardroom, for £136,000, Including costs. This
acquisition i& shown within our baiance sheet under

intangible assets.

Year end debt totalled £2.4 million giving rise 0
gearing of 21.3%, an improvement on the 29.6%

1992 comparative figure.

Geating

Close attention to working capitat and
cash controi during the recession has
aliowed the group to malntain

satisfactory levels of financial gearing,

Operating Profits by division from
continuing activities £000

4,472

92 93

B Specialist printing . {
! & Media & Communications :
I 8 Marketing Services




Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annua! report to
shareholders, together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31st December 1993 on pages 18 to 29.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year which dive a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the group and of the profit or foss of the group for that period.
In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

*  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
*  Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;

+ Prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unfess it is
inappropriate 1o presume that the group will continue in business,

The directors are respansible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and the group and to enable them to ensure that the financiat
statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They have gdeneral
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
iregularities.

Principal activities and business review

The Company is a holding and management company whose subsidiaries
provide communications products and services and operate in three
divisions: Specialist Printing, Media and Communications, Marketing
Services. More details of these activities, and the development of the
company and its subsidiaries are given in the Chairman’s statement and
in the Chief Executive’s review on pages 4 and 7.

Results and dividends
A summary of the results is shown on page » and is further explained in the
Chairman's statement.

An interim dividend of 2.0p per share was paid in October 1993
(1992:2.0p). The directors recommend a final dividend of 2.9p per share
(1992:2.9p) to be paid in June 1994 giving a total net dividend of 4.9p per
share (1992:4.9p). After deducting the total dividend, the group loss for the
year was £1,022,000.

Acquisition

On 1st August 1993 one of the Company's subsidiaries acquired the assets,
liabilities and business of the Foreword Book Partnership, a book
merchandising and distributior operation for 2 nominal ¢cash sum. The
operation has since been merged within the operations of Aspen Field
Marketing Limited.
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On 1st October 1993, the Company acquired 90 per cent of the issued
share capital of Broker Forms & Print Limited, a print broker based in Eccles,
Manchester, for a totat sum of £94,000 in cash,

Directors and their interests
The directers of the Company who held office at the end of the financia! year
and their beneficial interests in its share capital were:

No. ef Qrdinary Shares of 5p

315t December 1993 31st December 1932
H.P.J. Meakin 2,127,019 2,127,019
N.F. Worgan 200,000 200,000
P.1.M, Threlfall 1,402,430 1,407,430
N. Alwyn 98.323 98,323
E.A.R. Balding 153,157 153,157

A.J. McRae - -

Under the terms of the Aspen Share Option Schemes the foltowing options
have been granted to the directors. Details regarding the periods during
which the options may be exercised are given within Note 23 to the financial
statements.

No, of shares Option price
N.F. Worgan 260,000 85p - 375p
N. Alwyn 20,000 31ép
E.A.R, Balding 40,000 168p
A.J. McRae 35,000 145p - 168p

Mr |. Vinall was appointed as a director on 14th January 1994. Mr N. Alwyn
resigned as a director of the Company on 20th January 1994 and in February
1924 sold 90,000 shares in the Company.

Mr ). Salmon was appointed to the board on 22nd March 1994 as a non
executive director,

Mr L. Vinall has & 20 per cent imterest in one of the Company's domant
subsidiaries, Zeros Printers Limited, and is beneficially interested in
189,669 shares of the Company. No other director has a beneficial interest
in any shares of any subsidiary undertaking.

There have been no other changes in directors' interests since
31st December 1993.

Share capital

On 14th January 1993, the Company allotted 646,473 new ordinary shares
of Bp each pursuant to a private placing at £73p per share to raise
approximately £1.2 million, net of expenses. These shares were placed with
Mercury Asset Management Limited, Edinburgh Fund Managers ple, Thomton
Investment Limited and NatWest Securities Limited.

Details of the changes in the share capital are shown in note 23 to the
financial statements.




inited Distiliers and Nomura Bank. The current
yeai' has staried well with sates above our

expectations,
A

Dir(iect Marketing
The;L group's direct marketing agencies based in
Lonfdon, Amsterdam and Paris showed mixed
fort{unes. The London agency performed well with
incfeased profits. In Amsterdam profits were
red:uced against a difficult economic climate in
Euz’;ope. The Paris office continued to incur heavy
ioslises and after due consideration the decision
was taken to close the office and discontinue ail
activities, We are pleased with continued success
in ew client gains. In London the agency has
onked on the launch of Guardian Direct and the
imf rnational promotion of the new Saab 900. In
Amsterdam, Aspen-Veenhuizen won direct
marketing for FBTC Insurances and Sedgwick.
Rekently, experienced new management has been
apbointed to our database marketing and
co{ﬂsultancy operation.

% ‘
Dis:'ect insurance

Aspern: Insurance Brokers trading under the brand
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Retirement ingurance Advisory Senvice continued
to make good progress in its promotion of home
and contents insurancge to the over 55 market. The
group has made & considerable investment in the
testing and promotion of this setvice over the last
two years and the company continues 1o perform
to plan. In tanuary 1994 & significant step was
teken to set up our own administration: and
marketing operation in Poole, Dorset using latest
computer technology to provide the most efficient
seyvice in direct response coupen and telephone
enquiries. The company has recently iaunched its

own motor insurance product.

The early months trading of the Marketing Sewvices
division are in line with expectations and are better
than the corresponding months last year. The
outlook for the division is positive and there is

good potential for future growth in profits,

A representative fist of clients of
Aspen-Veenhuizen ~ now one of
the leaders in direct marketing in
Holland. =
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. Financial Review

New standards and guidelines issued by the Accounting Standards Board have

= had a significant impact on the presentation of the Group's Annual Report &

Accounts for 1993. Financial Reporting Standard Number 3 ('FRS 3') now

requires the results from continuing and discontinued operations to be shown

Tutnover by division from
continuing activities £000

The differing fortunes of our three
divisions over the past four vears
in terms of tumnover and operating
profits are shown in the graphs
{right).

Resuits in respect of terminated
activities are excluded.

Capital expenditure
£600

Cumulative £000

st oo

63,287

82,761

90

| B Specialist printing
H Media & Communications
B Marketing Services

Consistent capital
investment provides the
group with strong
potential from improved
market conditions.

separately on the face of the profit and loss account.

The standard now effactively sbolishes
extraordinary items with the result that ali unusual
items are now required to be classified as
exceptional and charged or credited against

profits before taxation.

I addition to FRS 3, the Accounting Standards
Board also published UITF Abstract Number 3.
This statement requires that goodwill, previously
written off, is to be charged through the profit ané
{oss account in the event that the company on
which the doodwill arose is subject to disposal

or closure.

Profit and Loss Account

Turnover and Operating Profits

Turnover increased by 6.6% to £64.2 million.
Turnover from ongoing activities. which axciudes
the turnover of Aspen Direct, Paris, which was
closed during the year. increased by 8.2%, whilst
operating profits from ongoing activities and before
exceptional items amounted to £1.9 million {1992:
£3.1 million}.

Total profits before tax and exceptional items were
£1.28 million (1992: £2.34 million). Operating
profits from ongoing activities represented z retumn
on sales of 3.1%, compared 10 5.3% in 1992.

Exceptional ltems
The total charge for exceptional tems was £1.16
million comprising £630,000 on ongoing activities

o cover costs of redundancy and bad and doubtful



Marketing Services

Results in 1993 were disappointing, exacerbated by losses in our Paris agency.
Later in the year new business gains were good whilst action was taken to

reduce costs in all companies and to close the French company.

Field Marketing

Aspen Field Marketing experienced a difficul? year
whilst marketing budgets were under pressure.
Against this background the company reduced its
costs and concentrated its drive to build new
business volumes. The activity has led toa
number of new contracts being won and several
irmportant clients have increased commitments for
1924. In a move to strengthen the company's
market position the trade of the Foreword Book
partnership was acquired in October and merged
with Aspen's own book operation to create the

largest supplier of books 10 the supermarket frade.

Market Research
Marketing Directicn enjoyed a better year with a

number of new clients being gained inciuding

A new administration and telephone

response computer centre was opened in
January 1994 to serve growih in Aspen’s
direct insurance policyholders.

BIMED I EARDBAST
WRIBEFAN BIERE

Aspen Direct catried out the Saab 900
series direct marketing launch in 235
countries on behalf of Saab (Sweden).

N



lients including Rank Xerox and Mercury

ommunications.

eievision Facilities

ur strategy {0 invest in post production facilities
1991 to serve the expected demand from
dependent producers and the effects of
roducer’s Cheice in the BBC was rewarded with
creasing profits in 1293, This result came, not
bty Trom a small improvement in demand, but

ore importantly the growing reputation of our
acilities, London Post and Bristol Post which are
how amongst the highest rated facilities in the
‘nited Kingdom. Crystat Film and Video already
bstablished as the country's leading independent
bupplier of camera crews 10 the television industry
knioved a year of growing profitability by delivering
putstanding service 10 its clients which include the

BBC. Granada and LWT.

Radio Communications
e new mobile radic products developed over the

bast two years gained increasing acceptance and

gain Cleartone grew its profits. Significant

bmergency sevices. Lleartone now sugplies 40 of

Cleartone’s range of products for the
emergency market are now used by 40 of
the 43 poiice forces in the UK.

progress was mace which increased the company's

arket position with the police. fire and ambulance
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the 43 police authorities in England and Wales and
over half of the 55 fire brigades. In the highly
competitive cellular market unit sales increased

and a new phone is o be launched in the Autumn.

Leisure

In 1993 the group joined a consortium of investors
in a new venture to develop the highly successfui
Quasar lzser game concept in ¢central Florida. The
first two game operations were opened in Criando
in June and a further site is planned to cpen in
Tampa in May this vear. investment in developing
the sites was incurred in 1993 and the company

pians to move into profit by the autumn.

The Media and Communications division has
started the year well with good performances from
Business Communications, Radio Communications
and Television Facilities. Within Specialist Media,
Spafax has seen an improvement in the leve! of
business 0 date whilst the Post Cffice projects are
currently iower then planmed. Overall the division is
expected to continue the profit recovery seen over

the iast two years.




Media and Communications

Further progress was achieved in the division during 1993. Improvements

were seen from all our development initiatives over the past two years which

were partially offset by lower returns from QTV and Spafax.

Specialist Media

Specialist Media saw profits recuced in both Post
Office Media and Spafax as a result of weak
advertising demand. QTV's performance was
disappeinting and accordingly from Apil it is being
relaunched as Direct Response Television.
Counterpoint performed satisfactorily gaining
campaigns from amongst others Department for
Education, Boots the Chemist and Birds Eye.
Active Life continued its development as a highly
regarded customer magazine for the Post Office
and a successiul advertising mediurn. Qur plans to
expand in magazine publishing progressed with the
purchase of Boardroom Magazine, the first stage
in developing. through acquisition and launch,

Aspen-owned titles.

Spafax Airline Network continued to expand its
services to the world's airline industry.
Multi-channet seat back television inciuding
interactivity can now provide income from films,

games, shopping. duty free and telephone services

at each seat. Following the acquisition of 1M in
New York, Spafax now provides advertising and
sponsorship to 36 of the world's aitlines reaching
150 million passengers and greatiy strengthening
the company’s leading position in this field, its
joint company with British Airways made significant
progress in its first year, Similarly Air Canadza has
recently contracted to cutsource its inflight
communications management to Spafax. New
agreements o supply programmes have been

secured with Singapore Airlines and Emirates.

Business Communications

After a very difficult first haif Aspen Business
Cemmunications made good progress in developing
its client base. Employee communications work
was undertaken for a growing list of major
companies cuiminating in another industry award
for Glaxe's annual communications video. The
marketing communications activity launched in
1992 continued 10 make excellent progress with

successful projects for an increasing number of

Airiine multi-channel seat back
entertainment and interactive

>celient progress from the marketing
ommunications activity provide strategic
nd creative support to a Mercury

services are a major opportunity

=arnunications product iaunch. for Spafax’s skills,




ding in ihe first half of the year, encouraging
bnds were seen in the second half, In response
customer demand two new multl colour presses
bre purchased in December. Investment approval
s recently been given for new finishing facilities
be operational from the summer. Our print sales
terations in Birmingham and Manchester had a
tisfactory year with profits in line with

nectations.

agazine Printing
Pensord Press sales volumes remained at a
ilar level to 19922 but trading margins were

brisiderably lower. Business magazine
bsinations again declined and the increaging use
direct input by publishers resulted in the need to
duce costs, iln particular within the composing

ea wherg new electronic equipment has been
Hded. Productivity remains under ciose scrutiny

d significant steps have been taken to

prove output.

the Specialist Printing Division we are
ticipating a better year. After a slower siarnt

eanor Gate is performing better following its
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A television review promotional
prochure from Heanor Gate
which consistently wings awards
for quality.

premises relocation and its markets hold more
promise. Aspen Preprint’s trading is in ling with its
improving trends. It is pleasing to report that in its
twenty fifth year Pensord Press is now performing
betier and is ahead of its plans. Overali we view
the division's future prospects with increasing

optimism.

Compileted development of
the new printing premises for
Meanor Gate.

SAINSBURY'S



Specialist Printing

The division suffered from intense competition during 1993.

Action was taken to reduce costs, investment was increased and a new

Divisional Chief Executive was appointed.

Promotional
Heanor Gate continued its investment in sales
activity and again added new customers to help

make good the reduced demand from its existing

client base. Turnover for the year was level but
profits reduced with increased pressure dn
marging. The quality of its work was recognised
during the vear with the receipt of five awards.
Ahead of improving markets the company has
recently commenced the development of additional

N capacity in an adjacent factory.

Forms and Mailing Products

Progress was made at Aspen Preprint with the
continuation of our strategy to move the company
inte more complex products from its traditional

business forms market. During the year important

new clients were won and 25% of tWurnover came

from new products compared with 15% in 1992,

Although profits were lower as a result of weak

=nsord, the leading business magazine
=nier. has over S0 magazine contracts
—th its publishers,




uring the year the care of our customers was an
rea of determined focus across the group which
ontributed to market share growth and an increase
turnover to £64.2 mifiion (1992: £60.3 million).

ver the last four years the group has invested

8.5 million in new capital expenditure, This
vestrent has left the group well able to benefit
rom improved market conditions. We are now in the
osition of having companies with modem and
ticient plant and equipment at a time when volume
nd profits should increase with growth in the

concmy.

ontinuing investment has been made in developing
he group in a number of significant areas and on
ew projects. Sales and marketing effort was
ncreased particularly in our Specialist Printing and
edia and Communications divisions. Product
evelopment expenditure was high within radio
ommunications as new products were launched.
ew projects continued with the accelerated
evelopment of our direct insurance operation and
f our printed mailing products. Within our media
ompanies, new products were both launched and

cquired.

% present the group’s management is concentrating
on improving our profit margins. Further out cur
experience in the technologies of printing, television
and etectronic media and databases provides us

with considerable opportunity.

hief Executive’s Review

n highly competitive markets in 1993 Aspen’s group profits before
xceptional items reduced to £1.28 million (1992: £2.34 million).
n consequence further cost reductions were made and markedly

proved operating results followed in the second half of the year.
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Neil Worgan
Chief Executive

it is pleasing to report that during the final quarter of
1993 and in the first few months of the current year
a number of our markets have shown signs of
improvement. More stable demand has been seen

in areas of each of our divisions.

Turnover by Division
(£ Miliion}

235,

20.7

191

09

Operating Profits by Division
i Million}

os 1

B Specialist Printing

: B Media & Communications
‘ B Marketing Services

' Terminated Activity




Directors and Advisers

Directors

1 Henry Meakin, 50, Executive Chairman.
He was a founding director In 1969, and
became Group Managing Director in 1975
and Chairman in 1879, He is a founding
director and Chairman of GWR Group.

He is a director of Classic FM PLC, and was
its founding Chairman 1991-1993,

2 Neil Worgan, 41, Chief Executive.

A chartered accountant, he was a senior
manager with Peat Marwick Mitchell before
joining Asgen as Finance Director in 1983,
He was appointed joint Chief Executive in
1888 and Chief Executive in 1991,

Advisers
Secretary and Auditors
regist ]
ered aific KPMG Peat Manwick
A J McRae Welsh Street Chambers
Aspen House Chepstow
Thomas Street Gwent NPS BLN
Cirencester

Gloucestershire GL7 24X

Registered in England
No. 663545

® 3 Edward Balding, 47. He trained in radio

ﬁ communications, Before founding Cleartone
in 1978 he was with Storno Radiotelephone
for eight years. He joined Aspen in 1983 and
i was appointed to the board in 1986,

4 Andrew McRae, 35, Finance Director.

A chartered accountans, he Joined Aspen as a
divisional Finance Director in 1689 and was
appointed Group Financiai Controller in 1991,
He was appointed to the board in 19€3.

Bankers Stockbrokers

National Westminster
Bank Pic

21 Lombard Street
London EC3P 3AR

NatWest Wood Mackenzie
& Co Limited

135 Bishopsgate

London EC2M 3XT

Société Générale
37 Corn Strest
Brisiol BS99 TET

Bank of Scotleng
38 Tnreadneedie Streat
London EC2P 2EH

Singer & Friedlander
Limited

21 New Street
Bishopsgate

London EC2M 4MR

|

5 lan Vinall, 44, Chief Executive Speciatist
Printing Division. Formerly with Cxley Group,
he joined Aspen in 2689 when the company
acquired Heanor Gate Printing Limited. He was
appointed to the board in 1994.

& Peter John Threlfall, 51. He has been 2
shargholder and non executive director since

. 19735, A manggement consultant, he is the

former Managing Director of Wentgate
Engineering,

7 James Saimon, OBE, 53. He was appointed
& non executive director in March 1994, He was
Managing Direcior of Crosfield Electronics from
1983-1992 and Deputy Chief Executive of
The De La Rue Company from 1927-1989.

Solicitors Registrars
Nicholsen Graham & Jones Barclays Registrars
2331 Moorgate 34 Beckenham Roar
Londen EC2R GAR Beckenham

Hent BR3 4Ty




London Post rose to fourth position in the

Producers’ Foll as carried out by Televisual
Magazine. in business communications the
company’s move 10 add marketing consultancy
services has yielded positive results. In addition o
winning another industry award for a Glaxo
produgction, new clients include Esso. Superdiug,
Volvo and Rank Xerox. Our radio communications
company Cleartone expanded production and added
to its range of PMR products for the police, fire and
ambulance services. This is a market area with
significant potential. The company's latest celiular
product is planned to launch later in the autumn.

In the Marketing Services division Aspen Field
Marketing has much improved its potential and has
won significantly increased budgets from severat
large chients for 1994. in book marketing we are
now the largest supplier of books to supermarkets
in the UK.

in the United Kingdom, Aspen Direct’s major
achievement was the direct marketing launch of the
Saab 900 series in 24 intemational markets.
Alongside the introduction of new information
systems, imponiant client gains include Guardian
insurance, Marks & Spencer, ldeal Standard and
Compuserve. In Holland, Aspen-Veenhuizen moved
premises whilst raducing its cost base to reflect
weak economic conditions.

Aspen's direct insurance broking activity gathered
momentum during 1993 with the launch of home
and contents products for 'third age’ peeple under
the RIAS branc. A telephone marketing and
adminisiration centre was opened in January 1994
and a motor insurance product is soon to be
launched.

Board

In January we were pleased to weicome jan Vinall to
the board and to the new position of Chief Executive

of our printing division. lan has been with the group
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since 1989 as Managing Director of Heanor Gate
Printing. Nick Alwyn retired from the board and we
thank him for his valuable contribution to the group
since 1986 and send him our best wishes.

As recently announced we are delighted that James
Salmon OBE (aged $3) is joining the board as 2

non executive director. He is an electronics engineer
who latterly spent 15 years with The De La Rue
Company plc where he was Deputy Chief Executive
from 1987-1989. He was also Managing Director of
Crosfield Electronics Lid, a subsidiary of De La Rue,
from 1983-1992.

Staff

The group's progress wouid not be possibie without
very hard work from everyone. Once again the
dedication has been impressive and | thank all our
teams of people most sincerely Tor their efforts.

Outlook

During 1993 costs have been cut in order to
improve our potential. In the past four years of
recession we have set out to reposition our
operations towards areas of higher, more secure
retums. Recent activity in our markets has been a

source of encourzgement but reliable trends are not
yet evident. Whilst competitive pressures continue
we have had 2 considerably better start to this year
and trading is in line with our plans, if recent
conditions in our markets continue | believe we shall
show much improved returns to our shareholders
this year and in future.

Henry Meakin Chairman
23rd March 1294



Chairman’s Statement

s

In my statement to you last year I said that we expected to continue progress

despite a difficult environment for our activities in the first quarter. In fact

economic conditions in the UK remained challenging and continued to

deteriorate in France and to a lesser extent in Holland.

Within this climate we grew our turnover by 6.6% to
£64.2 miflion and profits before tax and exceptional
items declined by 25.1% to £1.28 miltion {1992
£2.34m).

Earnings per share adjusted to exclude exceptional
items were 4.2p as against a restated prior year
comparative of 11.2p and gearing at the year end
improved from 29.6% to 21.3%. The proposed final
dividend is 2.9p (1992 2.9p) which together with the
2p already paid is 4.9p the same as last year.

The Media and Communications division's resuilts
improved with a better performance from television
facilities and radio communications. In Marketing
Services progress was made In direct marketing in
the United Kingdom and in direct insurance broking.
The lower results from the division were attributable
0 lower profits from field marketing and losses in
our Paris agency which was closed. Competitive
pressure in our printing markets intensified which
impacted on promotional printing and the costs of
business magazines were significantly reduced on
further weakness.

Following a review of the use of our capital we
realised the profit on our investment in commercial
radio. Against a background of consolidation and
selected cost reductions we continued to develop
new markets. Investment in capital assets was
boosted by 73% to £2.8million.

Developments

In Specialist Printing Heanor Gate grew its market
share and again won national awards for the quality

of its work. Its latest expansion phase recently
commenced by opening its third site in Derbyshire.
Trends in Aspen Preprint are encouraging and
investment in two new multi-colour presses provide
added potential. Both these companies have started
to win work from continental European countries. At
Pensord Press new digital graphics technology has
been added to speed the links with its growing list
of publishing clients.

In Media and Communications activities in the Post
Office continue to grow. Active Life, the magazine for
over B5's is progressing well and this year it is
expected to reach some three milion ‘third age’
readers. QTV is being relaunched with a new
programme format called Direct Response
Television. Major clients are increasing their spend
with the Counterpoint national information and
promotional leaflet service. Tests are now being
carried out for the taunch of a similar semvice in
London Underground offices, Qur plans to own
magazine tittes moved forward with the purchase of
Boardroom, the London lifestyle magazine with a
prestigious readership.

In an active year Spafax developed longer term
contracts with all its major airtine clients; British
Airways, Singapore Airlines, Air Canada and
Emirates. The company's prospects in multi channel
TV and interactivity on seat back screens were
enhanced by the acquisition in North America of IMI
which has 32 airline media contracts.

Aspen's television facilities companies added new
camera and post production technology services.
In addition to winning a number of industry awards



Forms and Mailing Products Magarzine Printing

A leading UK producer of forms and mailing One of the most specialised sheet fed
products from web presses, Products include printers of business and professional
invoices, statements and cheques. Recent magazines in the UK, producing and
investments produce muiticoloured mailing mailing over 90 weekly or monthiy

periodicale and an increasing amount
of commercial printing products.

products for major intemational users.

Aspen Business

Television Facilities

A highly rated provider of post production Communications
editing services to programme producers. Employee and marketing
The targest independent television camera communications consuitancy

services are provided 1o many
of Britain’s largest companies.

and crewing company in the United Kingdom:.

Radio communications products are specified
and distributed in the UK. The largest
specialised product range is for the police and
emergency services. Portable celiular products
are marketed.

Direct Marketing Direct insurance

Leading sgencies in London and Amsterdam Home and contents and motor insurance
premote the szle of products by direct policies under the RIAS brand are promoted
marketing in financial services, motor, to the ‘over 55 market by direct marketing
information technotogy., o and telephone administration services.

entertainment and
retail sectors.

f Aged over 307 |
i .
You qualify for extra savings !
H on car insurance i

Plos... an even better
car insurance pelicy
Rung Froe s (500 302201,

mace 16T,




Specialist Printing

The printing companies produce
high quality products in specialised
markets which include promotional
printing, forms and mailing
products and business magazine

printing and mailing.

Promotional Printing

One of the largest quality sheet fed printing
companies in Britain. Products include
brochures and catalogues, annual reports,
part works and Govermnment printed material
including the Envirenment Bill and the
Patients Charter.

Media and Communications

The division operates television and
print media for both the global
airline industry and the UK Post
Office. It serves the TV production
industry and creates business
communications products for major
companies. A specialised range of
radio telephone products is
distributed in the UK.

Media .

The world leader in providing airlines
with inflight multichanne! screen
entertainment and advertising. A leader
in UK Pest Offices with television, DRTV,
a national leaflets service, Counterpoint,
and an ‘over 55's’ magazine, Active Life.

/ . 'f,_‘\‘
{.counterpoint

Y o S S ;
o : over the couneslectiet
- gmey 2087 e ounee fecietieg “9/

]

Marketing Services

A number of key services are
provided to the marketing
departments of large manufacturing
and service companies. The services
include direct marketing strategic
planning and implementation

and sales representation in

retail outlets.

Field Marketing

One of Britain's largest field marketing
agencies representing major consumer
goods manufacturers at point of sale.
The leader in distribution of bocks to
supermarkets in the UK.




Communiclations provides media
and cbmmunications services to over 3,000 business
customers. Its particular skill lies in understanding its
clients’ needs and in delivering to them creative products to
the highest standards. Aspen’s products are mainly in print,
video and electronric screen based media and are well
positioned to take advantage of the increasing application
of digital technology. The group sets out to provide a
stimulating and challenging working environment where
there is a determination to achieve profitable growth of the
company. The company aims to achieve leadership in its

chosen market areas and thereby reward its shareholders

and its people.

Turnover

Profits before tax & exceptional items
Earnings per share (adjusted)
Dividends per share

Capital Expenditure £2.80m
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

32

Netice is hereby given thas the 1995 Annual General Meeting will be held 2t the
offices of NatWest Wood Mackenzie & Co. Limited, 135 Bishopsgate, London
EC2h 3XT on Thursday 15t June at 10.30 arm to transact the following business:

i. To receive and adopt the directors’ report and audited financial statements for
the year ended 3lst December 1994,

2. Te declare 2 final dividend.

3. Tore-elect as a director of the Company Mr M. P | Meakin who is retiring by
rotation. '

4. Tore-elect as a director of the Company Mr £ |. M. Threlfall who is retiring by
rowrion.

5. To re-appoint KPMG as zuditors of the Company ard to authorise the
direcrors to fix their remuneration.

& o consider as special business and, If though fit, to pass the following
resolutions each of which will be proposed as a special resolution:-

(A} Thet the Company be and is hereby generaily and unconditionally
authorised ro mzke market purchases (within the meaning of Section
163(3) of the Companies Act 1985) of is own ordinary shares on a
recognised investment exchange of up to an aggregate of 1.397.700
ordinary shares of 5p each at a price per ordinary share which is () not
more than 105 per cent of the average of the middie market quotations in
respect of the Company’s ordinary shares for the ten business days
immediately preceding the day of purchase and (i) not less than 3p
(exclusive in each case of expenses and advance corporation =x {if any)
payable by the Company) and otherwise on such terms and in such
manner 2s the direcwors may from time to time determine provided that
this resofution shail unless previously varied, revoked or renewed expire
wn 25th August 1996 except in refation 1o a purchase of shares the
contract for which shali heve been made before that time and this
authority shall replace the authority conferred by the special resclution te
the like effect passed on Friday 27th May 1994, the latter being hereby
revoked.

{B} That the directors be and are hereby generally 2uthorised and
empowered pursuant 1o Section 95 of the Companies Act 1983 (including
any modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)
during the period expiring at the conclusion of the Annuat General
Meeting of the Company in 1996 to alior equity securities (as defined in
section 94 of the said Act} pursuant to the authority conferred on them
from time to tme 2s i sub-section () of Section 89 of the said Act did
nat apply thereto, and to make any offer or agreement during such period
which would or might require such securities to be affotted after the
expiry of such period and to implement the same provided that this
power shall be limited o the allotment of equity securigies-

{2} pursuant o 2 rights issue made in accordance with Sections 8% and 90 of
the said Act save only that the directors shall have the right-

() to make such exclusions or other arrangements as they deem
necessaiy or expedient to deal with any problems which may arise in
relation 1o such rights issue under the f2ws of any territory or the
requirements of any regulatory body or Stock Exchange in any
erritery;

{iy 7o offer equity securities to persons holding equity securities other
than ordinary shares on the basis of their rights to receive such
offer: and

() to aggregate and seli for the benefit of the Company equity securities
represending fractional entidements which may arise pursuant to the

rights issue;

(b) otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph () above, up to 2n aggregate
nominal amount equal to $ per cent of the nominal amount ax the
refevant time of the Company’s issued share <apital.

By Order of the Board
A} MeRae, Secretary
2326 March 1995

Notes

i. A member entited to attend and vote is entided to appoint 2 proxy or proxies
to zitend and, on a poll, 1o vote instead of him or her A proxy need not be g
member of the Company and the appointment of & proxy will net preciude 2
member from awtending and voting at the meeting. A form of proxy is enclosed for
this purpose,

2. The instrurent appoinng a proxy, together with the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed (or 2 duly certified copy of such power or
authorizy) must be lodged with the Companys Registrars rot later than 48 hours
before the time for holding the meeting,

3. The register of directors” shareholdings and a copy of all service contracts with
directars of the Company will be available for inspection at the registered office of
the Company during normal business hours until the date of the meeting and also
at the place of the meetng for ax least |5 minuzes prior to and during the meeting.

Registered Office:
Aspen House, Thomas Streer, Cirencester, Gloucestershire GL7 2AX



Financial Record

1990 1991 1992 1993 1954

£000 £000 £0600 £000 £000
Trading results
Turnover 62,761 55,628 60,261 64,215 69,910
Operaring profit before exceptional

items 4,865 2.583 2876 1,630 2,881

Exceptional items (378) {440) (510) {1,123} {25)
Operating profit after exceptional items 4,487 2,143 2,366 507 2,856
Net interesc payable {383} (440} (539 (350) (354)
Restructuring and ciosure costs (1,003} - B - -
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3,101 {703 1,827 157 21,502
Taxation {1,021) {600) (640} (511} (878)
Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 2,080 1,103 1,187 (354) 1,624
Minority interests (32) (62) (76) (2} {53)
Profit/(loss}for the financial year 2,048 1,041 L1 (356) 1,571
Dividends ( 1,048) {635) {635) {666) {743)
Profit/(loss} recined for the year 1,000 406 476 {(1,022) 823
Capital employed
Fixed assets 11,837 11,534 [$,276 10,373 11,983
Net current assets 1,060 936 2,624 3,712 2,597
Other liabilities {1,704) (2.077) (3.398) (2.835) (£,999)
Shareholders’ funds 11,193 10,393 10,502 11,250 12,581
Statistics
Earnings per share {p} 168 80 86 (2.6} i1.5
Dividends per share (p} 8.1 4.9 49 4.9 5.35

The financia record for 1990 to 1992 has been restated to comply with the requirements of FRS 3.

inancial Calendar

Annual General Meeting

Dividend record date

Final dividend payment

interim resules 2nnounced

Interim dividend payment

Preliminary announcement of final 1995 results

15t June 1995
19th May 1995
1th June 1995

September 1995
QOcrober 1995
March 996

{995 report and accounts despatched to shareholders May 1996
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

and the Report of the Auditors

Statement of directors’ reponsibilities

Company law requives the directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year whith give a true and f2ir view of the state of affairs of
the Company and the group and of the profit or loss of the group for
that period, In preparing those financia) statements, the directors are
required to:

*  select suitable aceounting policies and then apply them consistently;
+  make judgements and estitmates that are reasonable and prudent;

*  state whether applicable accounting standards have been foliowed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and exphained in the
financial statements;

*  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it
is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsibie for keeping proper accounting recerds
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position
of the Company and to enable them 1o ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 1985, They have genaral
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the 2ssets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.

Report of the auditors to the members of Aspen
Communications PLC
WWe have audited the finzncial statements on pages 18 to 29 |

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described above the Company’s directors are respensible for the
preparation of the financial statements. It is our responsibility o form an
independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to
report our opihion to you,

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by
the Auditing Practices Board. Ar audit includes examinadion, on z test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. it also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonzble assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstaternent, whether caused by fraud
or cther irregularity or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements.

Qpinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give 2 true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at 3Ist December 1694
and the profit of the Group for the year then ended, and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

KPMG

Charzered Accountants
Registered Audizors
VWelsh Street Chambers
Chepstow

Gwent

NP& 5LN

23rd March 1995



28. Purchase of subsidiary undertaking

Details of the net assets of Litherne Publishing Limited, ! (0% of which was acquired
during the year are as follows:

£000
Tangible fixed 2ssets 10
Intangible fixed assets 46
Stock 291
Debrors 777
Cash 1
Creditors (1.123)
Net assets acquired 82
Publishing rights acquired 550
Tom! assets acquired 452
Consideration, including costs
Cash (102)
Shares issued (550)
Total consideration T (65.23
Goodwill arising on acquisition e .
Other costs incurred during the )fea-r- - T Hlé.
Toral goodwill written off R BT ‘

Aspen Litharne Publishing contributed profit before taxation of £50,000 in the post
acquisicion pericd ended 3ist December 1994 and incurred losses before taxation
of £229,000 in the ten month period ended 3ist December 1994,

29. Net cash inflow from operating activities
The reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities of
the Group may be summarised as follows:

o34 1993
£600  £000
Operating profic before interest 2,691  1,03C
Deprediation 2,224 23¢4
Profiz on sale of tangible fixed assets {an (52)
Release of regional development grants G0y {55)
Share of associaced undertaking - {30}
Currency adjustment 27 55

(Increase} in stocks
{Increase} in debtors

(802) (2,152)
€1,7%13 (2,05%)
{ncrease in crediters 4,386 4,052

Net cash inflow from operating activities

6,8i4 3157

Notes to the Financial Statements

30. Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
the purchase of subsidiary undertaking

1994
£000
Cash consideration - 162
Casly acquired I
Net outfiow of cash arising from chuisi:io-n 101
Other acquisition costs 115
Net cutflow of cash o 216
31. Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents
Cash balance £000
As 2¢ st January [993 1419
Net cash inflow 676
Balance at Ist Jenuary 1994 2,086
Net cash inflow 472
Balance a¢ 3ist December 1994 2,558
32. Analysis of changes in financing
Share capital Loans and
inctuding finance
premium liabilities
£000 £0C0
As at ist January 1993 2985 4512
Issue of shares for cash {net of expenses) (Rl -
Unsecured loan repayment - {500)
Repayment of atmounts horrowed - 57)
Hire purchase facilities received - 932
Capital element of finance liabilides - {403)
Balance at 315z December 1993 4,085 4,484
issue of shares for cash (net of expenses) 71 -
Issue of shares on acquisition of subsidiary undertaking 550 -
Unsecured koan repayment - (32,0003
Repayment of amounts borrowed - (192)
Hire purchase facilities received en acquisition - 40
Hire purchase facilities received - Lik2
Capitat elements of finance liabilities - (699}
Balance at 31st December 1994 4,706 2,835

33. Post balance sheet event

On {2th January 1995, one of the Company's subsidiary undertakings. Spafax Alrline
Network Limited acquired the entire issued share cepital of RCH (UK) Limited. an
2irline inflight media sales company for 2 sum of £40.000, sadsfied in cash.

Cn 22nd March 1995, Spafax Airfine Network Limited acquired the towl minority
interest in Spafax Adrline Network inc 2nd Spafax Canzda inc for a sum of

1S $200,000, satisfied in cash, The minority shareholding was previously held by
F Michael Perkins, a director of Spafax Airfine Netwerk Limited.
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2L, Deferred taxation (continued)

The above represents the provision for deferred taxazion to the extent that it is
probzble tha an actual liabllity will erystailise. The following amounz of deferred
tation has not been provided as.the directors do not consider that the Hability
will arise in the foreseeable future:
Group Company
t994 1993 1994 1993
£000  £000  £000  £000

Capiral allowances and other timing diffarences g6 " . -
Rolt over relief on disposal of properties 145 145 i45 145
" S e 145 18

22, Minority interest

Movements during the year were: £000
At st january 1994 238
Minoriey sharg in profits for the financial year 33
Dividends paid (61)

230

Minority inserest relates solely to the equity interest of subsidiary undertakings.

23. Called up share capital

1994 1933

Authorised £000  £000

20,000,000 ordinery shares of 5p each 1000 1000

tssued B
Allotted, called up and fully paid 13,977,930

{1993 13,587,000} erdinary shares of 5p each 699 &79

Movements in issued share capitai during the year were: No.

Shares

£000 000

At Ist January 1994 679 13.587

Shares issued on acquisition of subsidiary undertaking 16 323

Share options exercised 4 68

At 3ist December 1994 699 13,978

Under the terms of the Execttive and $t2ff Share Option Schemes, options to
subseribe for the Company’s shares have been granted to employess, including
directors as shown below. The options are exercisable noz earfier than three years
nor later than ten years from the date of grant.

The total options issued under the schemes and outstanding 2t 315t December
1994 were as foliows:

Year of grant No. of shares Option price Exercise period
outstanding
1987 84,250 316p - 358p §990 - 1997
1988 13,650 436p -514p 1991 - 1998
1989 77158 375p - 488p 1992 - 1999
199G 441,100 100p - 168p 1993 - 2000
§991 490,030 85p - 100p 1994 - 2001
{992 74,330 H g 1955 - 2002
1994 62,000 143p - 170p 1997 « 2004

24. Share premium account

Movements in share premium during the year were: £00%
A bse anuary 1994 3408
Arising on shares issued in the year 401
At3istDeceraber 1994 4,007

25, Profit and foss account

Group Company

£000 £000

At Ist January 1994 7.165 1,564
Retained profit/(loss) for the year 823 51y
GoodwHi written off (Note 28) {115) -
Currency adjustment 2 -
At 31st December 1994 7,875 1053

The cumulative amount of goodwill resulting from acquisitions in the current and
earlier financial years which has been written off is £25,586,000 (1953:
£25.471,000). OF this amount £22,412,000 has been written off against merger
resarve.

26. Operating lease comimitments

At 31st December 1994 the group had annual commitrnents undear non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

Land and
buikdings Other
£600 £000
Operating ieases which expire:
Within one year 58 %3
In the second o fifth years inclusive 476 594
Over five years ' 749 -

The majority of leases of land and buildings are subject to pericdic rent reviews
every four ar five years.

27. Contingent liabilities

(3) The Company has guaranteed a letter of credit and loan facilicy available to a
subsidiary undertaking. The amount cutstanding at 3ist December 1994 was
£3,263,172 {1993: £362,689}.

{b} Additional consideration may be due te the vendor of Aspen Veenhuizen
Direct BV, 2 company acquired in 1992, The maxirmum payment thas may be
made is £440,000.

The vendor, who left the company at the beginning of 1993, is claiming
paymnent of the maximum sum, The directors do not believe that the maximum
surn is payable and intend to defend the daim vigorously,

(¢} Addidonal consideration may also be due to the vendors of Aspen Litharne
Publishing Limited, 2 company acquired during the year. Any such addiional
payments are based upon the trading resubts of the company in each of the
years ending 31st July 1995 and 3ist July 1996 respectively and ¢cannot exceed
£1.2 million in aggregate.

{d} The Company has entered in%o a number of contracts in the normal course of
business to purchase foreign currency during 1995, The wotal liability under
these contracts amounts to £769,000.



Notes to

the Financial Statements

15. Stocks 19. Creditors
Group Group Company
994 1993 1994 993 1994 1993
£0600  £000 £000 £000  £000  £000
Raw materials and consumables 1,277 852 Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Wark in progress 2,139 1,617 Unsecured bank foans - 1,080 - 1000
Finished goods 1,784 1838 Cther leans &9 76 - -
5,200 4307 Finance Iiabili*‘ci‘e:w S 269 783 28 6
1,038 1889 28 1,006
15. Debtors i o o -
Group Company Analysis of lozan repayments:
1994 1993 1994 1993 Orher loans
£000  £000  £000  £00D Between one and twe years 69 7% - -
Berween wwo and five yzars - - - -
Due within one year: & 76 . -
Trade debtors 13,638 13954 - - e — .
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertzkings - - 7938 8974 Finance liabilities
Crther debtors 3,327 147 374 246 Bezween one and two years 735 408 22 ]
Prepayments and accrued income 1,871 1330 29¢ 158 Between two and five years 234 375 é -
18,536 16655 8,602 7378 69 783 28 [
Due after more than one year: 20. Deferred incorme
Other debtors £431 622 - -
fow dobtore 19.967 17277 8.602  7.378 Movements during the year on regional development grants were!
Group
17. Cash at bank £060
Cash at benk incfudes £1,242,000 refating to an insurance broking account ::Ilzi:n::r:r;;f:nd toss account ](:g)
maintzined by one of the Company's subsidiary undertakings. —
At 31st December 1994 100
£8, Creditors
Group Company 2E, Deferred taxation
1994 1995 1994 1993 Movements during the year were:
£000  £000  £000  £000
Amounts falling due within one yean: Group Company
£000 £6040
Secured term loans - 95 . -
Bank overdrafts - - 2,674 2,170 At Ist january 1994 588 (115)
Unsecured bank leans £,000 2000 1000 2000 Charged 1o profit and loss account Al -
Trade creditors 15,785 9,169 - - Advance corporation tax recoverable 3 3
Arnounts owed to subsidiary undercakings - - 731 3780 Bt 31t December i994 a1 a1z
Corporation tax 1,187 666 3 472
Osher taxes and social security 2038 1578 @ _40 “The amounts provided for deferred wxation caliculated under the liabilisy method 22
Aceruals 3894 5525 771 345 33% {1993: 33%) are as follows:
Finance liabilities 787 330 22 2 Group Company
Proposed dividend 447 395 447 395 1994 1993 1994 1993
25,028 19958 12,286 92404 £000  £000  £000  £000

Capital allowanees and other timing differences
Advance corporation tax

743 703 - .
(12} (115 (112} (i15)

631 588 (112) (15)
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1. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated on the profit on ordinary activities after taxation
and minority interests on 13,621,034 5p ordinary shares, being the weighted
average number of shares in issue throughout 1994 (1993: 13.563,975).

An zlternative figure for earnings per share is disclosed based on the results of
comtinuing operations excluding exceptional items, This alternative figure is
intended to demonstrate recurring elements of the results of the Group after
eliminating certain exceptional items that arose in the year.

Fulty diluted earnings per share are not materially different from earnings per share
as disciosed.

12. Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets comprise publishing rights and titles and the movement was as follows:

£000
At Fst Jznuary (994 136
Arising on acquisition (Note 28) 550
Held by subsidiary undertaking (Note 28} 46
Added in year 12
At 31st December 1994 844

On Sth August 1994, the Company acquired 100% of the issued share capital of
Licharne Publishing, 2 publisher of women's craft and hobby magazines. The
acquisition was satisfied by the issue of 323,530 new ordinary shares of 5p each at a
price of 170p. The company hzs since changed its name to Aspen Litharne
Publishing and has been merged within the operations of Aspen Specialist Media.

3, Tangible fixed assets

Properties Plantand Motor
Freehold Leasehold  equipment vehicles  Toml

The Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost

At Ist January 1994 1,540 2478 17,056 1,548 22,622
Acquisition of subsidiary

undertaking - - 186 24 210
Additions 1 209 2444 545 3199
Disposals - (% {1.272) 454y (1,735)
Currency - (12 {27 - (39

At 3lst December 1994 1,541 2,666 18,387 1,663 24,257

Depreciation

A 15t January 1994 - &40 10,875 870 12,385
Acquisition of subsidiary

undertaking - - S0 10 190
Charge for the year - 236 1,650 338 2,124
Released on disposal - (6} {1,200 @7 (157
Currenzy - (2) (13) 1 (14
At 31st December 1994 - 868 11,402 848 13,118
Net book value 1994 1,541 1,798 6,985 815 11,139
Net book value 1993 £,.540 [,838 6,18] 678 10,237

The net book value of plant 2nd equipment at 31st December 1994 includes
£2,161,000 (1993: £1,395.000} in respect of assets held under finance leases and hire
purchzse agreements. The depreciation thereon was £319,000 (1993: £295,000).

Properties Plant and  Motor
Freehald Leasehold equipment vehicles  Tozwl

The Company £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At Ist January 1994 117 56 347 146 666
Additions - 12 3 79 122
Disposals - - {1} (48) {58)
At 3Ist December 1994 |17 68 368 177 730
Depreciation
Ar 13t Jaruary 1994 - 37 304 130 471
Charge for the year - I 17 35 63
Released on disposal - - (1 (48) (58)
At 31st December 1994 - 43 311 17 476
Net book vafue 1994 17 20 57 60 254
Net book value 1993 17 12 42 16 195
Future capital expenditure
Amounts not provided for in the financial statements 1994 1993

£OG0 £000
Authorised and committed 2,907 165
Authorised but not committed 766 195

3,673 360
14, Investments

Company

1994 1993

£000 £000
Cost of subsidiary uadertakings 31,505 30,738

The Company’s principal trading subsidiary undertakings are zs follows. The country
of registration or incorporation is England and Wales unfess otherwise indicated.

Name of company

Aspen Business Communications PLC
Spafax Airline Network Limited
London Post Limited

Crystal Film & Yideo Limited
Aspen Specialist Media PLC
Cleartone Telecoms PLC
Pensord Press Limited

Aspen Preprint Limized

Heanor Gate Printing Limited
Aspen Field Marketing Limited
Aspen Direct Limited

Aspen Insurance Brokers Limited
Aspen Veenhuizen Direct BY

Country of

registration {or
incorporation) and

operation

Netherlands

Proportion of
shareholding

%




6. Staff numbers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the Group, including direceors, during
the year was as follows:

1994 1993
No. No.
Management and administration 262 207
Production and safes staff 1,423 1109
1,685 1,316

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
1994 1993
£000  £000
Whages and salaries 21,249 19,234
Social security costs 1,991 1,850
Pensians and other costs 464 451

23,704 21,535

As explained in the accounting policies set out on page 23 the Group operates both
a defined contribution and 2 defined benefit pension scheme.

The schemes' funds are adminiscered by trustees and are independent of the
Group's finances. As at [st July 1992 the directors were advised that the defined
benefic scheme was adequately funded. Contributions are paid to the schemes in
accordance with the recommendations of independent actuaries. Current funding
rates for the Group are 7% for the defined benefic scheme and 5% for the defined
contribution scheme.

7. Directors remuneration

The amount of directors’ remuneration payable during the year was as follows:

1994 1993
£000  £000
Fees 10 -
Salary 38l 350
Other emoluments 28 2l
Pension contributions 56 24
Performance related incentive payments 19 15
492 420

The executive directors are paid basic salaries znd can also earn an incentive -

payment based on achievement of profit targets. These payments are restricted to
35% of basic salary.

The emoluments of the Chairman and the highest paid director were as follows:

1994 1993
£000 €000

Chabrman
Salary 70 70
Car and other benefits 7 3
Performance related incentive payments 1o -
Pension contributions 36 9
Amounz contributed by GWR Group PLC and Classic FM PLC {46} (20)
7 65

Notes to the Financial Statements

1994 1993
000 £000

Highest paid director
Salary 8s 85
Car and other benefits 5 3
Salary arrears in respect of earlier years 10 10
Performance related incentive payments 15 -
Pension contributions é &
121 104

Directors emoluments, excluding pension contributions and including the Chairnan
and the highest paid director were within the following ranges:

1994 1993
No. Ne.

£Nil - £5,000 1 [
£10,001 - £15,000 ’ | -
£60,001 - £65,000 - 1
£65.00§ - £70.000 1 ¢
£75.001 - £80,000 1 i
£80,001 - £85,000 1 .
£85,001 - £50,000 - 1
£95,001 - £100,000 2 |
7 6

8. Taxation

The Group provision for taxation, based on profizs for the year, comprises:

1994 1993
£000  £000
Corporation tax at 33% 796 398
Overseas caxation 42 44
Deferred taxation 40 61
Share of tation of associated undertaking - 10
878 sl
9. Profit/(loss) for the financial year
1994 1993
£000  £000
Dealt with in the financial statements of the Company 237 769
Retained by subsidiaries 1,334 {1,125)

1,571 (356)

10, Dividends

1994 1993

£000  £000

Interim ordinary dividend paid during the year (2.15p per share) 301 271

Proposed final ordinary dividend at 3ist December 1994 (3.2p 447 395
per share) )

748 656
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t. Analysis of Turnover, Profits and Net assets

Divisional Analysis Turnover Profit Net assets
1994 1993 1994 1993 1994 1993
£000  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Specialist Printing 26,005 23,531 1,328 573 8048 7587

Marketing Services 19,026 19.140 761 388 2,998 2786

Media and Communications 24,879 20,616 83¢ 348 3,278  3.153

Management company - - {237 (7% - -

Terminated activity - 928 - (339) - -

Turnover £9,91¢ 642!5 N

Cperating profit 2,691 1,000

Income from associzte - 30

Non-operating icems 165 (523}

Net interast payable (354) {330)

Profic before taxation 2,802 (57

Divisional net assets [4,324 £3,526

Less: Unailocazed net debr {1,743} (2.27¢)

Metassets 12,581 11250

Geographical

Analysis Turnover Profit Net assets
994 1993 1994 1993 1994 1993
£000  £000 €000 £000 £000 £000

UK 65,256 355965 2,799 1,336 13,657 12763

Europe 3,755 6215 138 176 792 592

USA and Canada 899 LiG7 (240 (17H 123y 1Tt

Terminated aczivity - 928 - (339) - -

69.910 6425 2,694 1000 14328 13526

The above table shows wrnover and operating profit anzlysed by the destination
which products and services are supplied.

Geographical Source

of Turnover Totzl by Source Interdivisional Turnover
1994 1993 i994 1993 1994 1993
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

UK 69,662 60799 2,416 1762 67,246 59.037
Burcpe £,783 4074 - 3 1,783 407!
USA and Camzda 881 1,133 - 28 88l iice7

71,326 660058 2416 1793 69,910 54215

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Cost of sales and operating expenses

QOngoing Terminated

Cngoing Terminated

activities  activity 1994 activities  2ethvity 1993

£000  £00G  £000 €000  £000  £0GO

Cost of sales 47,085 . 47,085 44804 410 45204
Operating expenses 20,134 C 20,134 17,144 857 18001

The roral figures for ongoing activities in 19%4 include the following emaunts
relating to acquisitions:

Cost of seles £819.000 and net operating expenses £352,000.

Operating expenses on ongoing activites comprise the following :

994 1993

£000  £000
Redundancy costs 190 342
Sales and administrative expenses 19,944 17,655
Qperating expenses h 20,134 18004
3. Terminated activity
Terminated activity comprised the foliowing:

§994 1993

£000 £000
Gain on disposal of associated undertaking - Lo
Loss arising on terminased activicy - (l.exh)
h )
4. Interest payable less receivable

1994 1993
Payable: £000  £8Q0
on bank foans. overdraft and cther loans repayable
within five years 287 298
on fipance fiabilides 98 94

383 392

Receivabie (2% 42

5. Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Profic on ordinacy activities before taxation is stated after charging or {crediting)
the following:

1994 1993
£000  £00C
Depraciation 2,224 2384
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assers (7 (52)
Auditors’ remuneration:
Audit 7E 65
Orther services 65 35
Hire of plant and machinery 38 127

Fees paid to the auditors and included in the costs of acquisition refating o
Litharne Publishing Limited amounted to £35.008.



Accounting Policies

The principal accounting pelicies consistently applied in the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group are described below.

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
accounting rufes and in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements deal with the state of affairs and
results of the Company and all its subsidiary undertakings.

The resuits of subsidiary underzakings acquired or disposed of are
included from or until the effective date of acquisition or disposal.
Where merger relief, in accordance with the provisions of Seetion 131 of
the Companies Act 1985 is applicable, 2 merger reserve is created and
utilised to write off goodwill. In ather instances goodwill is written off
against retained proflts.

The Company has taken advantage of Section 230(3) of the Companies
Act 1985 and has not presented a profit and loss account dealing with its
own results,

Turnover
Turnover represents sales to third parties net of returns and allowances
and excludes value added tax.

Depreciation

Depreciation Is provided to write off the cost of fixed assets on 2
straight fine basis in equal annual instalments over their estimated wseful
ives as follows:

Short jeasehold property - life of lease
Plant and equipment - 4 to 10 years
Mozor vehicles - 4 years

Freehold properties are not depreciated as they are considered to have
aty estimated useful life in excess of 5C years. Itis Group policy 1o
maintain all buildings in good condition and any depreciation involved
would not be material. Costs of repairs and maintenance which prolong
the useful life of the properties, are charged against revenue in the year
in which they are incurred.

Finance leases and hire purchase agreements

Assets acquired under finance leases and hire purchase agreements are
capitalised and depreciated in accordance with Group policy. The
corresponding finance lizbitity is included within outstanding finance
liabilities with the relevant interest proportion being charged to profit
and loss aceount.

Intangible fixed assets

Acquired publishing rights and titles are capitalised and classified within
the balznce sheet as intangible assets and recorded at cost. Their value is
reviewed annually by the directors and provision is made, where
appropriate, for any permanent diminuzion in value.

Stocks

Stocks and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. in respect of work in progress and finished goods, costs
include all production everheads and an atributable proporton of
indirect overhead expenses.

Deferred expenditure
Expenditure incurred in respect of the direct marketing of insurance is

carried forward and written off against income arising from that business.

The expenditure is written off over a maximum period of five years
based on the number of policies and the level of renewels.

Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated inte
sterfing and recorded at the rates of exchange ruling 2t the date of the
transaction.

Monezary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translazed into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
dare and the gains or losses on translation zre inciuded in the profit and
loss account.

For consolidation purposes the assers and liabilities and profit and Joss
acesunts of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated at the
exchange rate at the balance sheet date and at average rares of exchange
for the year respectively. Exchange differences arising on these
transtations are taken 1o reserves.

Taxation

Taxation charges are computed 3t the raves applicable to the financial
year and take into account taxation deferred because of timing
differences between the treazment of cerrain irems for taxation znd
accounting purposes. Provision is made for deferred taxation only to the
extent that it is probable that an actual liability will crystallise in the
foreseeable future.

Pension costs
The Group operates defined contribution and defined benefic pension
schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The amounts charged against profit
for the defined contribution scheme represent the contributions payable
o the scheme in respect of the accounting period. Contributions to the
defined benefit scheme are charged to the profit and loss 2ccount so as
to spread costs of pensions over the employees’ working fives with the
group.
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Statement of Total Recognised

For the year ended 3ist December

»
@
ki
m
F4
Profit/(loss) for the financial year
E Currency transiation differences on foreign
s currency net investments 2 46
; Total recognised gains and losses for the year 1,573 {310y
> .
a There is no difference beoween the profit on erdinary activities before taxation and the retined profic for the year stated above,
, and their historical cost equivalents,
z
»
™

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

For the year ended 3lst December

1994 993

MNote £000 £000

Profit/{loss) for the financiat year 1,571 (356)
Dividends (748) (666)
823 (1,022)

Other net recognised gains and losses 2 46
Goodwill written off on acquisition 28 (115} {602)
Geodwil! written back on terminated activity - 1,226
Shares issued 621 1,100
‘ 1,331 748

Shareholders’ funds at st January 1994 : 11,250 10,502
Shareholders’ funds at 31st December 1994 12,581 11,250

22 | THE ATTACHED NCTES FORM PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st December

1994 1993
Note £000 000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 29 6,814 3157
Returns on investment and servicing of finance
Interess received 29 42
Bank and fean interest paid {294} (289)
Interest element of finance liabilities {96} (94)
Dividend received from associzted undertaking - 19
Dividends paid {678) (647)
Dividends paid to mincrity interests (61} (84)
Net cash outflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance (1,100} {1.053)
Taxation
Taxation paid {28%) {1.155)
Investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (£32} (138)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (3,199} {2.660)
Purchase of subsidiary undertaking, inciuding costs 30 {218) (329)
Sale of tangible fixed 2ssets 192 239
Sale of investments - 1,902
Costs of closure of terminated activity - (395)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (3,335) (1.57%}
Net cash inflow/{outflow) before financing activities 2,490 (630}
Financing
Unsecured lozn repayment 32 {2,000) {500)
Hire purchase facilities received 32 12 932
Regional development grants received - é
Repayment of amaunts borrowed 32 {102) {5%)
Capiral elements of finance liabilities 32 (699} {403)
lssue of shares 32 7L 1,100
Investment by minority - 228
Net cash (outflow)/inflaw from financing (1,618) 1,306

472 676

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

31

NOTES FORM PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS|
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Company Balance

At 3lst December

1994 1993

Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets i3 254 195
Investments i4 31,505 30,738

31,759 30,933
Current assets
Debtors 16 8,602 7.378
Cash az bank iz 45
8,614 7423

Creditors
Armounts falling due within one year 18 12,286 9,404
Net current fiabilities (3,671} (1,981)
Total assets less current liabifities 28,087 28,952
Creditors
Amounts falling due after more than one year i9 28 1,008
Provision for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation 21 {2 {i15)
Net assets 28,171 28061
Capital and reserves
Called up share capita! 23 599 679
Share premium account 24 4,007 3,408
Merger reserve 22,412 22412
Profit and loss account 25 1,053 1,564
Shareholders’ funds - equity 28,171 2806}

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors 2z a Board Meeting heid on 23rd March 995,
H.P}. Meakin Director

N.F. Worgan Director
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Consolidated

At 3ist December

Balance Sheet

1994 1993
Note £000 000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 12 844 136
Tangible assets 13 £1,139 10,237
11,983 16,373
Current assets
Szocks IS 5,200 4,307
Debrors 16 19,967 17,277
Cash at bank 17 2,558 2,086
27,725 23,670
Creditors
Amounts falling due within one year 18 25,128 19,958
Net current assets 2,597 3712
Crue within one year 1,166 3,080
Debtors dus after mere than one year 1,431 622
2,597 3.7i2
Total assets less current liabilities 14,580 14,085
Creditors
Amounts falling due after more than one year 19 §,038 1,859
Deferred income 20 100 150
Provision for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation 21 631 588
Minority interests - equity n 230 238
Met assets 12,581 11,250
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 23 699 679
Share premium account 24 4,007 3,406
Profit and loss account 25 7,875 7,163
Shareholders’ funds - equity 12,581 11,250

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors at 2 Board Meeting held on 23rd March 1995.

H.P}. Meakin Director

N.E. Worgan Director

THE ATTACHED NOTES FORM PART

COF THESE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS] |9

1O dlY N3 AdS Y

SR YEYCY SN T

[T |



Consolidated Profit & Loss Account

18

For the year ended 3ist December

Before
exceptional  Exceptional
items itetmns 1994 1993
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Turnover on continuing operations
Ongoing zctivities 68.681 68,681 63,287
Acquisitions 1,229 1,229 -
69,916 69,910 63,287
Terminated activity - - 928
Total turnover 1 63,910 69,910 64215
Cost of sales 2 (47,085) {47,085) {45,214)
Gross profit 22825 22,825 19,001
Operating expenses 2 {19,544) (190} (20,134) (18,0C1)
Operating profit on continuing operations 2,881 (190) 2,691 1,000
; Ongoing activites 2,823 (£82) 2,641 1,339
; Acquisitions 58 8 50 -
i 2,88 (190} 2,691 1,33¢
Terminated activity - - - {339)
| Total operating profit 2,881 (190) 2,691 1,000
Share of profits of associated undertking - - - 30
2,881 {190} 2,691 1,030
Ongoing activities
Profit 2rising on the disposal of fixed assets 163 165 -
Terminated activity 3 - - (523)
2,88t {25) 2,856 307
interest {Net) 4 (354) - (354) (350)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 5 2,527 (25} 2,502 157
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 8 (888) 8 (878} {311)
Profit(loss} on ordinary
activities after taxation 1,643 {t7) 1,624 (354)
Minority interests 22 (53) - (53) 2)
Profivfloss) for the financial year 9 1,588 {17 1,571 (356}
Dividends 4 (748) (666)
Profit/(loss) retzined for the year 823 {1.022)
Earnings/(ioss) per share H t.7p {0.2p) 11.5p (2.6p)

THE ATTACHEDR NOTES FORM PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



in accordance with the Company's Articles of Assodiation, MrH. R
Meakin and Mr P |. M. Threlfall retire by rotation and, being elig
themssives for re-election, Neitser Mr Meakin nor Mr Threlfall has 2
ne Company.

service contract with *
Share capital

Desails of the changes in the snare capital of the Company are shown in
note 23 to the finangial statements.

The directors have been notfed of the foliowing interests in the issuec
share capital of the Company.

Sharehcider No, of shares %
Ecirburgh Fund Managers oic 946,190 139%
Friends Provident 855,176 &.1%
National Westminster Banik Pic 730846 32%
Harald investment Trust 625.00C 45%
Robert Fleming Heldings Limited 592.0%% 42%
Chase Marhatten Bani plc 540,000 35%

Tre directors have bean notified that the interesss of Ecinourgh Fund
Mznagers oic and Crese Mannattan 3ark ple are noe-beneficiai 2nd
represent shares held under discretionary management.

Special business

A resolution wit pe proposed at the Annual General Mesting o renew
the existing powers of the directors. which expire at that time, 0 issue
ecuity securities in certain circumsiances ard up 10 2 Reted Imit, oter
than pro ratz o shareholders.

A further resofution will be proposed to authorise the Company to
ouschase U2 to 1387700 of its own orcinary shares, representing
approximatety 0% of the Company's existing issued ordinary shares,
threugh market purchases on a recognisec siock exchange. The
maximum price 1o De paid for an ordinary share purchased pursuznt 10
the authority wouid be 135 per cent of the average of the middie market
quotations Tor ordinary shares for the ten business days immecdiately
orececing the day of purchase and the minimum price would be 5p being
the par veiue of the shares. Any purchase would take place within the
lieris of available reserves.

The Board would commence puchasing ordinary shares only after carefid
consideration and in the expactanon that it would result in an increase in
expected eamings per share after taking account of cther investment
epportuniies and the overali fnancie] positon of the Company: While the
zuthority now scught in the Notice of Anncal General Meeting would
exoire on 25th Augus: 1996 the intention of the Board is to make renewal
of the authority part of the regular business at sussequent Annual General
Meetings.

Fixed assets
Detal's of the movemenis in tangble fixed assets curing the year are giver
in note 13 to the fnancizi statements.

Corporate Governance and Going Concern

The directors consider they have compiied with the prindipies and
operstive provisions of the Cadoury Commitiee’s Coce of Best Practice
for the year ended 315t December 1994, The only exception i the
composition of the audit committee which comprises the Chairman ard
the two non-executive direciors.

The directors, having made enguiries. consider that the Company and the
grous has adequate resources to continue in operational existence jor the
foreseeabie friure and therelore continue to 2cont the going concern
bagis in preparing the financial staiemenis.

Tax status
The direciors are advised that the Company i nes & Close company as
defined by the income and Corporaton Jaxes Act {988

People within the group

Managemert of the group is devoived to its operating companies and our
pelicy s to support our paople by training, career developmen: and
opporiunities for promotion. We believe in 2n open management
approach 2nd dose consultation on matters of concern to our stafl
information s shared on each compeny’s performance which, together
with participation in the Company’s share option schemes and appication
of performance related bonuses, ercourage staff nvolvement The Group's
policy provides hat disabled persons, whether registered or not, shall be
consdered for employment, training and career development having
regard 1o ther aptihude and abifities.

Auditors
On 6th rebruery 1995 our auditors changed the name under which they
oractise 1o KPMG, and eccordingly have signed their report in their new

nEme.

A resolution for the re-appoimimen of KPMG & auditors of the Company
s to be proposed at the forthcoming Arnuai General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

A, | MtRae
Secreary

25r¢ March 1995
Addendum

=P, Maaidn znd NF Worgan acguired 15000 and 10000 shares
respectively after 23rd March 1995,



Directors’ Report

The directors have pleascre in presenting their annual report 1o
shareholders, together with the audited financial statemenis for the year
enced 315t December 1994 on pages 18 to 29.

Principal activities and business review

The Company is a holding and management company whose subsidiaries
provide a range of communications products and services and operate in
three divisions: Speciafist Printing, Media and Communications, Marketing
Services. More details of these activities. and the development of the
Company and its subsiciaries are given in the Chalrman's staterment and in
the Chisf Executive’s review on page 11.

Results and dividends
A summary of the results is shown ¢n page | and is further explained in
the Chairman’s staterment.

An interim dividend of 2.15p per share was paid in Qciober 1994

(1993: 20p). The directors recommend a final dividend of 3.2p per share
(1593: 2.9p) 1o be paid in june 1995 ghving a total net dividend of 5.35p
per share {1993: 4.9p). After deducting the total dividend, the profit for
the year retained in the group was £823,000,

Acquisitions

On Bth August 1594, the Company acquired the entire issued share
capital of Litharne Publishing Umited, 2 magazine publisher, for 2 sum of
£550,000, satisfied by the issue of 323330 new ordinary shares 5t {70
pence each. As set out in Note 27 1o the finandial statements, the
vendors of Litharne miy receive additional consideration based upon the
wading performance of the compeny in each of the years ending 3ist July
1995 and 31st July 1996 respectively up to 2 maximum aggregate sum of
£1.3 millien. The operation has since been merged within Aspen
Speciglist Media,

Subsequent to the year end, on | Zth Jarsary 1995, one of the Company's
subsiciary underialings, Spafax Airine Network Limited, acquired the
entire issued share caoitel of RCE (UK) Limited, an airline inflight media
sales company for a sum of £40000, satisfied in cash. The operation has
since been rmerged within Spafax Arline Network Limited,

On 22nd March 1995, Spafax Airline Neawork Limited acquired the total
minority interest in Spafax Airline Network Inc and Spafax Canada inc for
a sum of US 200,000 satisfied in cash. The minority shareholding was
previously held by F Michael Perldins, a director of Spafax Airfine Network
Limited.

Directors and their interests
The directors of the Company who held ofice at the end of the financial
year and their beneficial interests in its share caftal were:

No. of Ordinary Shares of 5»
3lst Decemnber 1994 3ist December 1993
{or date of appointment)

H.B. Meakin 2,127,019 2127019
N.F. Worgan 203,060 200000
FjM. Threlfall 1402430 1,402,430
| Vinalt 189,669 189,665
EAR Balding 153,157 153157
A McRae - -
1D Salmen. OBE 3000 -

Urder the terms of the Aspen Share Option Schemes the following
obticns have been granted 10 the directors:

Ne, of share Option price Exercisa period

options held
N.F Worgan 5.600 375p 1992 - {999
55000 i00p 1994 - 2001
200000 85p 1994 - 2001
| Vinall 40,000 85p 1994 - 200!
EAR. Baiding 35000 168p 1993 - 2000
5,000 85p 1994 - 200
AJ. McRae 15000 t68p 1993 - 2000
20,000 t45p 1997 « 2004

There were no additional grants of options during the year save as
disclosed above, nor did any director exerdise any options. The
Company’s mid raarket share price was 168 pence 27 3ist December 1994,

Mr i, Vinall and Mr LD, Salmon were 2ppointed o the Board on [4th
Jenuary 1994 and 22nd March 1994 respectively,

No director has a beneficia! interest in any shares of any subsidiary
undertaking,

There have been ne other changes in director’s interests since
3lst Decemnber 1994

Buring the year the Company purchased Directors’ end Ofiicers Liability
insurance. This indemnifies directors and officers against legal lisbility for
damages in respect of claims made against them arising from any wronghd
act committed by them as directors or officers of the Company and in
their positions in 2l subsidiary undertakings. it also covars the direcors
and officers of all subsidiary undertekings,



Financial Overview

Profit and Loss Account

Turnover in¢reased dusing the year by 8.5% to £69.9 mition.

‘The total gross profic of £22.8 milion represented a gross margin on sales of 32.6%, a substanifal
improvement on the 29.6% achieved in 1993,

Operating profit amounted to £2.7 million {1993: £1 million) after charging exceptional
redundancy costs of £190.000 (1993: £342,000) and represented a return on sales of 3.8%
compared 1o 1.6% in 1953,

Opereting profit marging increased n each division and grew by 33% from 3.3% in the first haff o
4.4% in the second half of the year

The totzl interest charge of £354,000 net (1993: £350.000) was covered 8.1 times by operating
profits after exceptional iterms.

During the vear the group made disposals of orinting 2quipment giving rise to an exceptional profit
on disposal of £165,000.

The tax charge for the year is provided at an effective rate of 35%.

Earnings per share ameounted to 11.5 pence (1993 loss per share of 2.6 pence).

Adiusted 1o exciude the impact of non-recurring exceptional items, eamings per share amounted
to 117 pence (1993: 4.2 pence}. an increase of |79%.

Cash Flow

Net cash inflows from operating activities during the year totalled £6.8 million (1993: £3.2 million),
investment in capite! assets, including the acquisition in August of Litharne

Publishing, amounted to £3.9 million (1993: £2.8 million). The depreciation charge for the year
armounted to £2.2 milion {1993: £2.4 million).

& the year end, net cash balances totalled £1.6 million, comprising cash at bank of £2.6 milfion and
short term loans of £1 million. Cash and cash equivalent baiances improved by £472,000 during
the year.

At the year end, bank and finance faciliies amounted to £10 million, of which £9 million represents
committed lines with maturity dates oF between one and twe years.

Balance Sheet

Total net assets increased during the year by £1.3 miliion to give year end sharehoiders’ funds of
£i26 million {1993 £11.3 million}.

Cutstanding debtor days 2t the year end amounted tc 61 days, an irnprovement on the 68 days in
1993, Working capital reduced by £1.5% million (1993 increase £157,000) during the year

in August 1994, the company purchesed the entire issued share capital of Litharne Publishing, a
publisher of magazines. The directors have valued the publishing rights at cost being £708,000 and
this investment is carried under intangible assets at 31st December 1994,

Net cash baiances of £1.6 milfion less £1.8 millicn outstznding under finance agresments gave net
debt of £200,000 (1993: £24 mition) at the year end giving gearing of 1.7% (1993: 21.3%). The
geering ratio was favoursbly affected by the delay in delivery of capital equipment until the first
quarter of 1995 amounting o approximately £3.1 million.

Qperating Profit Margins

Capital Expenditure

Gearing

et Cash inflow




Direct and field marketing
agencies, direct marketing of

insurance products

Turnover

1993 £19,140,000
994 £19,026,000
Profit

1993 £388,000
1994 £761,000

Capital Investment
increased to £535,000 in 1994 from
£413,000 in 1993

“Direct marketing activity continues to
grow strongly across all UK media,
with exceptional expansion being seen

in both television and radic”

Marketing Services

The results of consistent investment and managerment action in aur marketing based activities

cefivered much improved figures for the division.

In 1994, Aspen Field Marketing grew rapidly, largely from increasing activity on behalf of
existing major clients. The increasing trend amoeng large manuiacturing companies to
‘outsource’ their sales representation in retailers provides substantial potentizl. The company’s
managermnent board has been strengthened and additional resources were zpplied to staff
development and training. Bxisting client activity and new blue chip customers provide a very

positive outlook

QOur direct marketing group made steady progress whilst its resuts were constrained by
investment o enhance the database product area. Aspen Direct’s existing major clients were
active and some important new clients were added, including Unisource, 2 joint venture by
Swiss, Swedish, Dutch and Spanish Telecomns which will operate in |2 European countries. In
Holland, Aspen Veenhuizen Direct consolidated its market position and positioned fiself for
accelerated growth during 1995, This has already resuited in improved prospects for this vear
and the future. Direct marketing activity continues to grow strongly across all UK media with

exceptional expansion being seen In both television and radio.

Excellent results were seen in our retirement market direct insurance company, Aspen
Insurance Brokers, The quality of service provided 1o potential, new and existing pelicyholders
is now amongst the best in the industry following the opening of our own telephone and
administration cenire in January 1994, The company continues to expand rapidly as it benefits
from the UK public’s increasing desire 1o buy products directly marketed on television, radio,
newspapers and in the mall. During 1994, nearly all the policies issued were for home and
cortents insurance and the level of annual renewals is high, Recentiy, both car and health
insurance have been launched where sales are performing ahead of our targets. Significant

profits are planned from direct insurance broking this year and its prospects remain promising.

The division is at present performing very well 2gainst last year and the outiock in both the

short and medium term is optimistic.
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The Givision enjoyed steady progress during the year a5 a number ¢ new services and puhiishgng and radic

products started to deliver their profit potential.

Qur airline media management company, Spaiax. performed strongly and produced good
results on much increased turnover, Following the acquisition and integration of IMf and RC,
the company row serves 40 airfine customers anc has achieved a significant share of the

airtime sales for long haul airfines. New contracts to supply airline media services have been

signed, most notably 2 fong term contract with Air Canada. The management board has been  Turnover

strengthened and further progress is anticipated. In Post Offices, the UK's fargest retail 1923 £20,416,000

network, expansion resumed in the second haif, as alt the media products that we manage (994 £24,875,000

increased revenues, a trend which is continuing this year. There remains considerable Profic

cpporiunity to develop the Post Ofiice’s substantial high street customer audience. A new 1993 £348,000
: 1924 £83%2.000

media service has recently been launched with the London Underground.
Capital Investment

increassd to

The group's plan to expand into consumer publishing progressed well with the acquisition of p
=1
Litharne Publishing, a publisher of seven women's magazines and organiser of related £12m in 1993

PAmoin 1994 frem
exchibitions. Litharne has been integrated with our contract publishing activities, which have

added Midland Bank and Singapore Alrlines to their client portfolio,

Resuks in our leading television services activity were very strong, as the business benefited
from the expansion of the satellite, cable and terrestrial broadcast markets. In response 1o

healthy demand from the broadcast programme makers, new digital technology investment “Tn

ng rGis

1

dote, both our medic

exceeded £1 million for the yean L .
carmmunications activivies ¢rg
After repositioning our business communications company and adopting an integrated . . . -
P g PRy PLng g incregsing revenuss and Srofits. For
marketing approach its results improved significantly. The management board was expanded

. . . the division as 5 whole, the medivm
and strengthened and recently we promoted Tim Rivett to managing director Recent major TR S o

23

client wins provide a positive cutlook for the future. terTT PrOSHECIS GoDear Vary Dositve

The Cleartone mobile radic security products that have been developed since 19%1 enjoyed
increasing demand. The majority of UK police forces and a growing number of fire services
are now using our products. In the cellular phone sector, Cleartone are currently supplyfing
targe volumes of product to a buoyeant but competitive market The outlook in this area

remaing positive as digital technelogy systems grow in importance.

To date, both our media and radic communications activities are increasing revenues and

profits. For the division as 2 whole the medium term prospects appear very positive.



Review of Operations

Specialist printing
of magazines, direct mail and

promotional products.

Turnover

1993 £23,531,000
1994 £726,005,000
Profit

{993 £573,000
1994 £1,328,000

Capital Investment
increased to £1.1m in 1994 from
£10m in 1993

“The division is enjoying strong
demand and the outlock for our
chosen markets is exceffent. With the
record £5 millior: investment
programme in progress, we are

confident that growth will continue”™

Specialier Printing

The division made good progress following the instzllation of new equipment and the
introduction of more efficient production arrangements in 1993. Substantial progress was
made in our mailing and special products company, and business rnagazings enjoyed an

improved performance.

Heanor Gate under performed whilst it increased its preduction area and opered an
additional factory: In a significant development. sophisticated new finishing eguipment has been
instalted 1o serve a large contract with 2 Danish chient, valued at £3m over two years. In
addition, the company has approved 2 further £2.3 million investment in new digital
technology and high speed presses which will significantly expand production facilitias in the
second haif of 1995, Guy Vinall, formerly sales director was appointed as Heanor Gate's
managing director in January 1995, These changes together with new shift arrangements and
the major investmenis encoursge 2 positive outiook and have resulted in 2 good start to the

year

Qur mailing anc special products company, Aspen Preprint, achieved excellent profits growth
vindicating the strategic decision to concentrate on mailing and spedial products instead of
business Torms, The benefits of major investment in this new market since 199! are conciusive.
During the year, the sales management of the company was further strengthened and the
sales teams have been successful in broadening the customer base 1o deliver record revenue
levels. Further investment of £1.2 miliion is planned this year to ntroduce digial technology

finks with customers and 1o install a larger press to serve the malling products market

Pensord, the leading business magazine printer started to benefit from the maior expansion in
its sales force. k now prints 95 titles, more than double the number in 1991, Current trading
is positive and market forecasts for business magazines are very encouraging Frant-end digital
technology and a new multi-colour press are soon to be instalied, an investiment of

£1.3 million, enhancing Pensord’s potential which hes already made 2 good start this year

Considerable progress has been made in the printing division under its new divisional director,
fan Vinali. It is enjoying strong demand znd the outiook for our chosen markets is excellent,
With the record £5 miliion invesiment orogramme in progress, we are confident that growth

will continue.



Chief Executive’s Review

1594 saw the first steps towards Aspen's objective of raising net margins as profits before
exceptional items doubled to £2.53 million. The group also demonsirated its cash generation
powers with net cash infiow from operations increasing to £6.81 miflion from £3.16 milifon,
while gearing fell to 2% from 21% in 1993.

Since 1991, the group has taken measures enabling the quality of its earings to improve
consistently in the [990s. Over this period, £9.4 million has been invested in new cepital
eguipment. with further revenue investments in new products and services, new markets and
expanded sales activity.

The Print division has directed substantial capital to our business forms company 1o move the
business into higher margin mafling and special products. In business magazine printing, we
made a substantial investment in digital technology and introduced more flexible working
practices. The sales team has been expanded and today the company produces 95 business
magazine titles compared with 45 i 1991, Investment will remain at record levels in the
division as we embark on a £5 million programme to take full advantage of the excepticnal
growth that is projected in our markets,

In Media and Communications, we have succeeded in broadening our range of media
producis and services and expanding our customer base. In 1991 our specialist mecia
company published one magazine; today we publish three contract titles and eight consumer
titles. Spafax, our airfine entertainment and media company, now sells advertsing and
sponsorship on behalf of aver 40 airlines from four international offices, making it 2 world
leader in this activity. Further opportunity is in prospect with the installation of multi channel
seat back television systems, Since 1991 our mobile cornmunications company has developed
its own range of over 40 producis o provide secure communications within Police
Authorities, Fire Brigades and other major users of redio communications equipment.

Our Marketing Services division has greatly strengthened its earnings quality, Field marketng
has successfully increased its contracted business with blue chip customers and is investing in
information systems to provide cur clients with better information from the point of szle. We
have invested heavily in the direct marketing operation which sells our own insurance
products to the ‘refirement’ market since launching the company in 1992 In 1994, we
opened a telephone marketing centre which is enlarging the policy holder base, achieving
good renewal rates and providing a valuable income stream.

P would like to record my personal thanks to all our stafi for their hard work and their
achievements. | fee! that Aspen is now positioned to produce dependable earnings for the
foreseeable future as we continue 1o build on the guality of our business.

Neil Worgan
Chier Bxecutive

93 94 HARKETING SERI

"'93 94 HEDUA & CONNURICEEIGHS

9394 SPECIALISY PRINIING

3 94 MEGIA & COMHUNICATIONS

93 94 SPECAIET PRINTING

Profit




Directors and Advisers

Secremary and registered office Henry Meakin, 51, Executive Chairman, He was 2 founding director in 1969, and became
e Group Managing Director in 1975 and Chairman in 1579, He was a founding director in
1982 and in 1988 became Chairman of GWR Group PLC. He is 2 director of Classic FM
PLC and was its founding Chairman fom 1991 to 1993, Henry Meakin is 2 member of both

the Remuneration and Audit Commitiess,

Neil Worgan, 42, Chief Executive. A chartered accountant, he was 2 senior manager with
Peat Marwick Mitchell before joining Aspen as Finance Director in 1983, He was appointed
Joint Chief Executive in 1989 and Chief Executive in 1991,

Edward Balding, 48. He trained in radio communications. Before founding Cleartone in
1978 he was with Storno Radiotelephone Limited for eight years. He joined Aspen in 1983
and was appointed to the Board in 1986.

Andrew McRae, 36, Finance Director A chartered accountart, he joined Aspen as a
divisicnzl Finance Directer in 1989 and was appointed Group Firancial Cantrolier in 1991, He
was appointed to the Board in 1993

fan Vinall, 45, Chief Executive Specialist Print Division. Formerly with Oxley Group, he joined

Bysiac:vel

Aspen in 1989 when the company acquired Heanor Gate Printing Limited. He was
appointed 1o the Board in january 19%4.

Peter john Threlfall, 52 He has been a shareholder and non executive director singe 1975,
A manzgement consuftant, he is the former Managing Director of Wentgate Engineering

Limiied and is 2 member of both the Remuneration and Audit Committess,

James Saimon, OBE, 54, A non executive director he was apoointed to the Board in March
1994, He was Managing Director of Crosfield Electronics from 1983 to 1992 and Deputy
Chief Executive of The De La Rue Company ple from 1987 10 1989, In 1594 he was
appointed Cheirman of iSA International plc. James Salmen is Chairman of both the

Remuneration and Audit Committees,
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s to improve earnings quality and potential for the long term.
The target of:doubling margins has been set group-wide.

Since 1990, q;" r £14 million has been invested in new markets and first class
technology. Aspen has consistently invested in the latest printing presses, digital
pre press equipment, digital television services and direct marketing systems.

ita %pendin_g of £6 million is planned for 1995.
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Over four ‘years, Aspen has moved to strengthen and revitalise the senior
divisional management teams within its operating companies. Enlarged
management boards ensure proper accountability across all disciplines.

Aspen completed a major review of its future strategy and objectives during
1994. As part of the process, each division’s management formulated three- .
year plans to highlight the potential to grow their businesses.

Considerable effort and resources have been devoted to training,
development and team building throughout our operations.
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Aspen Direct group invested heavily in enhancing the quality of its direct marketing Jatabase
services. The benefts of this key area are already evident and we are expecting
improvaments in profitability in both London and Amsterdam.

Direct rarketing of the group’s own insurance products 1o the retirement’ market continues
to make sound progress. 1he establishment of cur dedicatec telephone sales anc
administration centre in 1594 has enabled us to offer 2 high quality and expanded service 1o
the company's datzbase of potertial customers. There are 18 million pecple in this market
area which is set to increase rapidly in ftture and we are optimistic of strong profits growth in
the mediurm and fong term.

Strategic Review

The Board has recentiy complated its group-wide review of operations which foliowed 2
thorough examingtion of each division's three year plans. These plans identified that Aspen’s
divisions are well positioned in market areas with considerable potential. In addition,
opporiunities for improved business focus were identified which highiighted where the group
will concentrate its resources 1o provide the best long term velue for shareholders. Your
direciors befieve that the group's investrnents of the past four years, in capital equipment,
additional szles capability, new products and market seciors, have enhanced its ability to
celiver consistent growth in earnings.

25 Year Anniversary

During the year, the group celebrated its 25th anniversary with an event for 500 ciients and
supporters in Londen. Here, we announced & donation of £25,000 to start & trust to be
used for educating and training people in the industries that Aspen serves.

Board and Staff

As has already been announced, Andraw McRae, finance direcion will be leaving nexe mont
1o tzke up 2 new position. Plans 1o appoint his replacement are progressing satisfactorily.
We thank him for his valuable cantribution to the group since joining in 1589

The good progress in 1994 would not have been possible without the hard work and
dedication shown by afl cur teams of people, and | thank everyone within Aspen most
sincerely for their efforts.

Qutlook

Whilst the trading environment remains competitive, we are now seeing more positive
market conditions. The steps taken 1o improve our fong terr growth potential are yielding
results and tracing margins in the second half of [994 increased by 33% over the first halfl It
is pleasing o report that profits in the current year are substantially ahead of the
corrasponding period in 1994, | believe 1995 will see further progress towards our cbjective,
stated at the interim stage, of doubling trading margins over the next tweo years.

b

Henry Meakin
Chairrnan
23rd March 1995



Chairman’s Statement

Key financial information for the

year is:

Profits before tax rose to £2.5m

(1993: £157,000)

Profits on continuing operations
before exceptional items increased

by 77% to £2.88m (1993: £1.63m)

Earnings per share adjusted for
exceptional items grew by 179% to

11.7 pence (1993: 4.2 pence)

Turnover increased 9% to £69.9m

1994 was an important year for Aspen's continuing developrent, during which the benefits of
the investment, innovation, product development and cost reduction initiatives of the last four
years started to become apparent. Against the background of competitive but stable markets,
alt three divisions delivered much improved performances and the group achieved strong
profits growth. ) )

A finat dividend of 3.2p, a 10.3% increase, is being recommended giving a total for the year of
5.35p, a 9.2% uplift. At the year end, gearing had been reduced to 2% from 21% and net
cash flow generated from operating activities was £6.8m (1993 £3.2m).

Specialist Printing

The specialist print division more than doubled operating profits to £1.33m (1993: £573,000)
reflecting good performances from both mailing products and business magazines.

The division’s investment in additional sales peaple has been rewarded with a much expanded
customer base and a range of new products for new markets. In the last quarter of 1994,
the division embarked on a record £5m capital investment progremme in digital pre press
equipment, mufti-colour presses and specialised finishing equipment which will increase

capacity and productivity.

Media and Communications
The media and communications division increased profits to £839,000 (1993: £548,000).

The airline media and entertainment company had an excellent year and continued to build
its leading position by adding new income streams and developing its global operations. It

" now has offices in London, New York, Toronto and Singapore. The sales team represents 40

of the world’s zirlines delivering an audience of aver 240 million to advertisers.

The speciatist media business continues to expand its range of media products with the Post
Office and more recently, with London Underground. Qur plans to buitd awnership of
magazine titles progressed with the acquisition of Lithame Publishing, which added seven
consumer titles to the existing contract publishing base. Already significant operating benefits
are being seen from the integration of our publishing operations.

Excellent results were delivered by our television services activity, in a growing broadcast
television market. The company received substantial capital investment in 1994 and continues
to enjoy demand from the terrestrial and satellite broadcasters and from the rapidly
developing independent sector.

Business communications made further progress and continued to benefit from its positioning
as a provider of integrated marketing communications. ]

Mabile radie communications enjoyed a year of good growth. The encouraging trend for its
celiular products continues with increasing dermand for the company’s expanded range of
security equipment. Development of new products continues to be a priority and further
excellent progress is expected in the current year,

Marketing Services ]

The marketing services division showed a 96% increase in profitability with profits of £761,000
(1993: £388,000).

Considerable progress was made in our field marketing activity, where a number of major
clients chose to increase substantially their investment in our retail sales service, Large
rnanufacturers are increasingly cut-sourcing this activity and the company’s strong presence in
this market has been 2 major factor in its competitive success.



Financial Highlights

Turnover

Adiusted earnings per share

Dividends per share Profit before tax

Aspen Communications PLC

Operations

Specialist Media and Marketing
Printing Communications Services



Aspen Communications provides

media and commumcatlons servnces to

over 3,500 busmess customers.

Its part:cular skill lies in mterpretmg

its clients’ needs by delivering

innovative products‘ to the highest

standards. Aspen’s products are mainly in print, video and electromc

screen based media which increasingly use digital technology.

The group sets out to provide a stimulating and challenging

working environment where there is a determination to

achieve profitable growth of the company.

The company aims to achieve leadership in its chosen market

areas-and thereby reward its shareholders and its people.
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